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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report-for the year ended 26 January 2019

John Lewis plc (‘the Group' or 'the Company') present their audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 26

January 2019.

The Gompany is the principal trading subsidiary. of John Lewis Partnership pic (the Partnership’}, and gwris Waitrose Limited. The
Group includes Waitrose & Pariners and John Lewis & Partnefs and has 83,900 employees — or Partners — for wham the

Partnership is owned in Trust.

Review of Parformance

Key performance indicators
2018 2018
Gros safes growth (%) 1.0 20
Like-for-like sakes grovah' (%)
- John Lewis § Partners (1.4 04
- Waitrose & Partners. (excludes. (el sales) 1.3 a9
tricrease in high spending’ customers” (%)
- Johinlewis & Pariners (2.2} (0.8)
- Wailrose & Paitners (1.5) 1.2
Net Promotes Scaore,
- John Lewis & Partners 57 +64
- Wgilrase & Pariners +22 +2
Average natvmanagemeni: Pariner hourly pay above Nalionat Living Wage® (%) 12,0 18.8
Pariner pay as a % cof sales’ 14.0 13.8
Pariner job satisfaction® (%) 71.0 70.0
Retum on Invested Gapital (ROIC)” (%) 7.3 9.1
Debt Ratio® - total net debis-as a mukiple of cash fiow 4.3x 4.3
5.0 8.9

Parinership profif per svorage full e equivalent (FTE)® (E00D)

A measuie of the year-on-year branch and. online grosé sales growih, removing the impact-of branch dpenings and closures. This,
meas\re indicates the underiying sales performance on 4 consistent basis.

‘High spending customiers. are those customers whd exceed pam::ular spend and purchase frequency thresholds over a given time
frame: As time passes the level of dala avaiable on cuslomer spend increases; primarily refuma date and the abiliiy 1o link spend fo &
specific custamer. The historical KPls are-therefore reslated cach year lo reflect the most recent data avaiable,

Far 2018/19, this is cakulated as the percatage above the 2018/19 National Living Wage of £7.83.

From 2017118, theé Partrierstip created 4 satisfaction index, based on'an aggregate of nine questions; to provide a wider view of satistying
employment. ’
The Dieht Ratio is'defined as iotdl net debis as a mulliple of cash flow. Total net debls: represerus the-tolal borrowings, of the Partnership

including nef debt (defined on page-27) adjusted for #n'estimate of- nor-liquitl cash, the |AS 16 pension defich net of deferred tax, and the -
present vake of fulure rertals paystle under operating leases. .

Partnership profit before Partnership Bofus and exceplional flems, bul after tax, adjusled for above: market rewards divided by the
average number of full time equivalent Partneis.. '

Prior year figure restated to adjust for above markel reward.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Strategic report for the year-ended 26 January 2019 {continued)
Performance summary

As we expected profits were substantially lower than last year, in what has been a chatlenging year, particularly In non food.

Waltrose & Pariners operating profit was up 18% due to like-for-like sales growm of 1.3% and improved gross margin. John Lewis
& Pariners profits were down 56%; weaker sales in the Home category combined with gross margin pressures drove around half of
1he reduction, with the remainder largely dué to additional IT costs and property related items.

Partnars' hard work during the year was key {o delivering gross sales of £11.7bn, up 1.0%, However, profit before Partnership
Bonus, tax and exceptional items was down 45,7% to £158.3m.

Our strafegy update in the summer-to Partrers, media, analysts and our bondholders showed our focus on baing different. Our
strategy has become sharper, even mare important and our pace has quickened, giving us the resitience o cope financially with
market pressures. We have-a strong liquidity position at nearly'£1.56n ‘which s almost double the level five years ago, despita
having made deficit reduction contiibutions of more than £250m to our pension fund over the last three ysars., We have reduced
total net debts by aver £400m whilst malnlaining annual investment of £400m—£500m per year:

Partrisrship Borlus has begn awarded at 3%. We also rémain committéd to increasing pay rates for nan-management Pariners. As
at January 2019, the average hourly rate of pay for a non-management Partner. was £9:16.

Waitrose & Parfners

Waitiose' & Partners achleved gross’ sales of £6.84bn, up 1.2%, with like-for-ike sales, oxcluding fuel, up by 1:3%. This
improveinent was drivel by better like-fordike volumes, as well as improved product avallablllty and growth in online sales.
Operating-profit before exceplional items and bonus was. £203. 2m, up 18%, malnly due toimproved gross margins,

Significant investmerit in waitrose.com, Including new customer smartphone apps led 16 14% growih in onfine grocery sales over
the finaricial year and improvemant in online customer satisfaction leveis over the yaar, We closed the Pick Your Own customer
.offer and’launched Just For You, a rewards programme of lailored vouchers and personalisad offers, with the focus on custorners’
favourite products and rewardlng most ioyal customers.

In 14 London postcodes we are trialling a service of dellvering groceries within two hours aof ordering. Waiirose & Partners Rapid
Delivery means customers can choose up 10 25 items from mare than 2,000 products, including fresh sushi. Rapid Delivery joins
-another trial, While You're Away' where Waltrose: & Partnars became the UK's first supermarket to dsliver groceries 1o customers
inside their homes and then put therm away while they are out,

Our customeérs look ta us for food inspiration. Daring the . year we developed and updated more than 5,000 products, including an
exclusive own-label range of over 48 vegar and vegetarian produets The opening of our £1.5m new food innovation. stidio also
now gives us the edge when it comes to product innovation, with seven chels working on new and unique products. We won 37
irdependent Chtistias taste tests, almost twicé the nuimber as the previous year and considerably shead of the next best retailer
at 21,

We further developed our health and wellbeing offer ‘at Waltrose & Partners, inchuding training Paitners as Healthy Eating
Specialists in gur shops ta help customers who want to make heallhier choloes We:also launched Waitrose & Partriars Health
magazine.

Waifrose & Partners removed black plastic from hundreds of producls including hard to recycle blatk plastic in fresh meat, .fish,
poultry, fruit and- vegstablas amounting to a reduction of over 1,300 tonnas of black plastic per annum. This pragress means. we
are more than halfway to achieving our goal to remiove.black: plastic from all own-brand products by the end of 2018, We also
brought forward our target to make all our own-brand packaging widely récyclable, reusable o home compostable from 2025 to
2023.

John Lewis & Partners

Oparating profits In John Lewis & Partners were substantially lower due to weaker sales in the Home category, gross margin
pressures, higher IT costs, the propery impact of new shops and lowar profit on assets sales. Gross sales were up 0.7% to
£4.89bn with a 12.9% percentage growth in own-brand womeriswear and 711.2% Incfease in dwn-brand electiicals. Operating profit
before exceptional items was £414.7m, down 56%.

During our pesak trading Christmas period we saw our biggest nimiber of Parinership Card applications-in the last decads, This year
Partnership Card applications are up 30% and foreign exchange transactions are up 38%..




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019 {continued)

Net Promoter Score — whichi indicetés ‘customers’ willingness {o recommend us to:others - increased. As part of our- drive fo
improve customer experience we raplatiormed johnlewis.com and continued our investing in our digital capabilties. The roll out of
two hour delivery windows and live onling delivary tracking improved communications with customers, Our Click & Collect order
service was @xpanded and is now available in 339 Waitrose & Partners shops.

Personal Styling: was iransformed this year, with specialised training, new appoiniment. types, upgraded styling suites and
dedicated fashion event spacos. A new Kaaping in Touch $ervice enables: stylists to keep cuslomers updated with excluslve offers,

personalised suggestions and stock availability. Our Expérienice: Desks are now available in 13 Jfohn Lewis & Pariners shops,
making it easler for customers to access the services and events offered by our expert Partners. A new Beauty Conclerge service,
was |aunched in Leeds and-Cambtidge offering. impartial and petscnalised beauty advice, And this summer the Dxjord Strast
rooftap proved more popular than éver, with customers. enjoymg Dds ard live bands: We alsctearried up with Samsung-to create
an.outdoor cinema experience.

Last autumn saw the most significant Fashion invesiment to date launched - a 300-piece womenswear ranige, calléd John Lewis &
Partners womenswear, which was created by the in houge déesign stidio t6am: At the 'samei time, a new 40,000 sdft Womenswear
experience was launched 4t our Oxford Stroet store, incliding a Style Stidio where 12 personal shylist Partners. offer customers
complimentary appaintments and daily fashion talks. The shoe department also increased In size and the first ever ‘Shoe Room by
Kurl Geigey” boutique was launched. We also opened two.new shops in White Cily, Westfisld Londén and in Cheltenham.

Group

Group includes the net ioperating costs for our Group offices, pan- Partnership initiatives,. our JLP Venturas operation which
develops new Gustomer propositions, and certain pension operating costs. Overall Gmup et costs {before exceptional #ems)
incraaset by £25.6m to £92.9m, primarily due to ingreased investment spend, higher (T costs and increased depreczahon offset by
a reduction in recharges to athar comipanies within the Group,

During the year, in alignmentwith Partnership group strategy, there has been increased functional centralisation. This is resulhng in

-costs pre\nously accounted for in"Waitrose and John Lewis being recorded in Group.. Gronp costs include; Central IT, Challman
Group Development, Productivity 8. Change, Communications, Customer Insight, Finance, Pensions, Legal, Pe_rgnnnel
infrastruclure Security, Procuremient, Property Services, Registry and Residential Clubs.. Group slso includes the costs far
transformation programmes:

Rebranding & Pariners

Qur S'epi_t,ernbe_r: ralaunch of both brands to include & Pariners was an importanl sighal of cur determination to place Partnors atthe
heart of the compelitive difforence we offer to custorners. Our differénceé comes from .our Parthers, ‘and the enefgy, commitment
and personafity they biing to delivering excellent-customer service afd high quiality products to our customers.

Greater investment in our Pattners is key to our stratégy, We invested significantly in leadership deveélopment for over 250 of aur
maost senlor leaders, and will extend that to many more this year. We expandéd our apprenticeship programme, with over 800
apprentices enroffing in the year in areas such as retail, Large Goods Vehicle (LGY) driving. vehicle maintanance, hospitality and
human resources, We made soma of these ‘open entry” o enable Paftriers to apply from any part of cur bustness. Among the
apprentices that have oompleted their programmes; 65% passed with distinction. Our averagé hourdy rate for non-ranagemant
Partners rose to £9.16, 17. 0% abova. the: National Living Wage. The average hourly rate of pay will increase by 4.5% following our
April 2019 pay review,

In.Waitrose & Partners wo have been trialling Service Ambassadors, placing Partners-at the front of stores-to-give a warm pefsonal
weicome:and set the tone for fantastic service, We have sel an ambition for all Partners to ba food ambassadors: Partners who not
only love food but love taking to custsmers about it and have an interest in issues surrounding food, such as packaging, sourcing
and.amimal welfare: )

In the year we sleppéed up our sarvice.difference. We made several improvements. to convenience; wiltr shorter-delivery windows,
live order fracking and trials of in-home services across both brands: We have also Introduced several added value sarvices
including Parsonal ‘Styling and Beauty Studios in John Lewis & Parners and more Healthy Eating specialists in Waitrose: &
Partriers. We-achieved our highest éver levels of customer experience. ratings in John Lewls & Partners. Our focus on customer
service. in Waitiose & Partners was recognised by Which? with the publication giving it the top' position in'its 2019 supermarket
survey.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
Strategic repott forthe year ended 26 January 2018 (continued)
Peénsions

The pension operating cost (bofore excepticnal itlems) was £219.1m, an increase of £3.5m or 1,6% on the prior year costs. Pension
finance costs were £17:0m, a decrease of £8.3m or 32.8% on the prior year, reflecting a reduction in the nominal discount rate
used to detérmine fhe finance cost at the baginning of the year from the beginning of the previous year, and was further improved
by prepaying & sighificait portion of contributions in February 2018. As-a result, total pension costs (before exceptional irems) were
£236.1m, a decreasa of £4.8m or 2.0% on the prior year.

Following the conclusion of the triennial actuarial valuation of our defined benefit pension schame at 31 March 2016, we agreed the
ongoing cortribution rate for the -defined benefit pension of 10.4% of members’ gross taxable pay, down from 16.4%, and put in
place s plan to eliminate the deficit of £479.0m over a 10 year perlod. As a result, in the year, we mads. deficit reduction
contribitions of £37 /A, and our fotal cashi contributions to the. pension scheme totalled £148.2m, a decrease of £56.0m or 27.4%
on the previous year, At 26 January 2019 the estimated actuarial pension deficit is £180m.

“The total accounting pension deficit at 26 Janiuary 2019 was £468.1m, a decrease of £263:2m (36.0%) since 27 January 2018, Last
yeat, the methodology for deriving the nominal discount rate assumption used in valuing the pension obligatién was revised as the
Directors- believe this more appropriately reflects expectsd Yields on high quality corporate bonds over the duration of the
Partnership's pension scheme as required by IAS 12 and a consistent methodology has been tised this year:

Since January 2018 the nomirial discount rale has increased by 5 basis points {bps) te 2.80%, contributing £62.5m 1o the overall
reduction in the pension liability. Mortality assumptions wera updated.in July to reflect the mosl tecantly available mortality studies
{CMI 2017), At the year-end, we adopted the new period siroothing paramater of 7.0 (2018: 7.5 to reflect recent sxperience
showing mortality improvements weakening compared to historical frends. This resulted in a reduction.in the pension liability of
£103.0m for the curent year. Overall thé accounting valuation of pension fund liabllities decreased by £141,0m to £6,083.0m, whils
the. pension fund assets increased by £122.2m o £5.614.6m.

Financing

A1 26 January 2019, net debt for the Group was -'E:}D._j m, a decrease of £112.5m {78.9%) in the vear, reflacting our facus on cash
generation and the reduction in capital investment. During the year we have afso further improved our liquidity position by the.
addition of £125.0m medium-term bank debt.

tn addition to the reduction in net debt we have.made positive progress in reducing our total ret debts, which also includes our
post-tax accounting penswn deficit, During the.year we have made £37.1m I pension deficlt repair payments énd our Dabt Ratio
has remained cansistent at 4.3 times. We continue 1o target a long-term Debt Ratio of around thres times.

Net finance costs on- borrowings' and investments- decreased by £0.5in to £47.0m. After including the financing slements of
pensions and long service leave and non-cash falr value adjustments, niet finance costs decreassd by £4.4m (6.2%) to'£66.7m,
benefiting from lower pension and long leave financing costs offsat by adverse fair value adjustments on embedded derivatives.

Sustainabllity

A new app was launched by Waitrose & Fartners to make it éasier to donate-surplus food. The FareShare Go programme enables
over 280 shaps to let Jocal charities know about surplus goods by inputting details of available food into the app. Over 500,000
meals haveé been donated t& mora than 1,000 charitigs.

John Lewis & Partners primary schools programme - Bringing Skills To Life - reaches- over 26,000 children annually, through
défined themes and challenges pupils develop skills such as creative thought, feamwork and communications. Schools are most
engaged in our Chrisimas prize draw ang our Innovafion Challenge. In 2018, 132 schools registered to take part with 226 amazing
entries received.

Our flagship volunteering programms, the. Golden Juoilee Trust, continued this. year with 57 Parner secondments, scross 52
charities, amounting to over 24,500 hours donated.

In 2018 wa achieved a 70% reduction in our carhon intehsity since 2010 — 4% better than last year. This year also saw Waitrose &
Pariners announce the removal of disposable coffee cups resuiting In' 52 million fewer takeaway tea and coffee cups used in
Walirose & Pariners shops. Looking fotward, we have committed to opirating within nét.zero carbon emissions. by 2060. In John
Lewis & Pariners, to help retluce the estimated 300,000 tonnes of clothing which gels sent to landfill each year in the UK, in an
industry first, we pitoted.an innovative ‘buyback’ service, with an app based Sodial énterprise business. Stuffstr. We also pledged our
owr-label Christmas cards, wraps, crackers, tegs, flowers and planis will either be glitter-free or will use an environmentally friend!y
alternative by Christrnas 2020.




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019 (contiriued)

Information on the strategies, policies or activities we pursue towards our environmental and social goals, and related risks, Is in the
Johin Lewis Partnership Carporate Responsibility Report, available at.www.johnlewispartnership.co.uk.

Principal risks and uncertainties

John Lewis pic's priricipat risks and uncerlainties. are in line with those of the Partriership.

1 Compatitive customer proposition

Dascription

Failwelodelverourwslunerpmlﬂseand

ot maintain our. compelitive advantage dueto:

« GCompetilor deliohs putiing pressurs on market
value. oux margin and threatening our
voluniés i grocery, and;

« ‘Tha growih of-anling business models in the
general merchangise sector, mean customery
focus iviore-on value for money ind are less
loyal

Polential consaquence

Controls in place
» Confining to secue valué far
2 of our customers theough cur
price matching comwnilviefits:

+ Reguiar sirategic nisk redewand
mofitoring by the Executivé. team
« Reguiar hofizot) scanning b inforim
siralegic-reviews to conﬁmdly enhangce
oy Gugtomar offor

» Regar siralegy implementation, tustomar
and pedformance melrics evaluation by senior

Progress in the year

« Lipdated Parfnership stralegy launched:

» New Partnership. branding letnctied

+ Improved online-and in store pfopasiion in
Johiv Lewis & Parlners; and coritinued price
“investment in Wallrose & Partnars alongside
new in store-Inifiatives fo improve customer
axperience

« Product launches such as new Womenswear
collection in John Lewis & Paiiriers and a
vegan rangs in Waiirose & Pariners

Streasos: oh 0w operating model may result in
shrgin on our Pariners. systems and operational
potential; Ukimatety these could impair our abilty
1o meel cusiomer needs and grow prafitably,

» Regular review of programmes to reprigrifise
and support the ongoing development of our
aperating medel

Cistomer proposition and service is negatively leaders and Executive team Furthar actions
impacled, which may resutl :nlosi'lg custormers, + Differeniiate further on product,
Iipairing our abiity to grow long-term + Confinue ta develop MarkeHeading customer
proitabitty. service and develop service offerings fhrough
Partners

» Unlock further vatue befween our brands:

» Develop online oflering

« Buld groater cistomer insight

| 2 Operating model straln '

Description Cantrola in place Progress in the year
Increasing eitemal pressures, such as the “» Annual business plan prooess robustly » Improved siock managemient in John Lewis &
ongoing mowve-to online and.Increased spend on reviewed on a guarterly basis Partners and new kexible operaiing structre
iT create sirain on our operating. modal, » Monibly Execulive feam business implemented in Waitrose & Parinérs branches
Potential consequence pesfonmance review and action iaken + Head office reotganismlnn

« Benefils being realsedfmmmenewpmduc{
sourcing-ofiice i Hong Kong

« Robust business pian review

Further actions

» Implementation of further change
prejjiammes across 1T, Supply Chen and
other aseas of haad office

Developmeni of proposifion toi n¢rease value
to our-customers




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019 (continued)

3 Information sacurity

Description Controls in place Progress in the year
A breach.of Partner or customer data dUé 1o . Rabuslneimksemiyamregdarlesthg » Significant enhancements made to the
‘an external threat causing disruption or acoess- to provide early ideniification of network systerns and controls that hetd Partner and
to sensithve data. or sysiern - Winerabilties custamer data fo improve resiience
Potential consaquence « Continuous security monftoring » Impravements lo preventing, detecting -and
A'significant data bigach and loss of efther » Pariner training responding to external yber atiscis
Partner or cuslomer data could cause: finandlal, ' Further dctions
reguislory, fegal andior ieputational damage. » Caonfinue o implement the (T Security
programmie
= Conlinue the aivarenesé campalgn
= Simplify IT estate

4-Penslon obligations
Dascription Controls in place Progwess in tha year
Increases in the:penston fisblies, drivenby s | « Reguilar review of vakuation assumiptions e Cantinued costreduction realised fom ihe
decréase in théréal discount rate for @xample, through intemnal and extenal monitoring 2015 Pension Banefit- Review
and;a significan! devajuation tn the assets being | , Pensionriskandﬁmngstra:agy = -A-new Pension Benelt Review has
heidcﬂulﬂMEaﬁmﬁGﬂm Increase in ihe reviewed m[‘aﬂy commenced
siza of the penision deficit, « The pensiondalcll de-isking plan, theough
Potential conseqtience = increased inferest rate and equity hedging.
A'arger pension deficit could fesull in acdifideia) Fuither actions ' '
funding required by-the Pastnerstip, diverting Pension Banefi Reviewo be appro

2 2T i ; s P 10 be approved by
resources awady from oftier investment Partnarshi Board
opporiunites. ship Coundl and
8§ Changje delivery )
Pescription Controls in piace Progress In the yeor
The complex nature and scate.of » Programme and project govermnance in place = Embedded new dhiange govemancé and
interdepetidencies of tha chiange picgramings enabies ety identification and remediation ways of working
mavaﬁeotmraumytoimptemem of issués considaring the impact on Partners | Parinership wide reporting contiruesd o be,

mgrammesfprojads on time, to'budget .

&nd quality, ourabffly to manags, and our ability

'to efnbed te changé into e business.and
realise the benefis,

Potential conseguence:

Failire to develop. mplement ahd embéd
change effecively could result in increased.
‘costs, disruption 1 our trading ‘aciivities
impacting our customer experience, missing our
growih ambitions and losing the engagemer of
-our Partners,

and inmerdépendencies on other programmes
and prolects

« Quarterly review of pragramme status at the
Executive team level

improved o provide better insight

Further actions

» Confinue to-afign the change operating model
‘19 support-the delivery-of the new Parinership
siralegy




JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019 (continued)

8 Extemnal e_nﬂronmnn!

and lower pay Increases, redice owr cUstomeDs!
mmmmmuusm
Enancial resiffence.

-Potentldl consegquence:

Our customers may rove away XoN our coie
product offers or buy less. Key suppliers inay
mmmmeeswhﬂl&ﬂmmdd

« Horizon scanning

« The Brexit team reguiarly reviews and’
comminicates on the polertial impacis and
opporiunities to infivence outcomes infermally

Description Conirols in plice Progress i the year
Extemal economic pressures, dug tothe Impact | » Manihty menitoring of business performarice | « Extarnizl economic feciors and insighis have
of govenwnent poticy, Briudl, a weakes Boonomy by the Execufive fear been incorporated inta the business plan’

o Afialysis and activity In rekalion o Brexit risk
singce vote

Furiher actions
Ongnm monitaring, anelysis and acﬂons

impfémentation 1o mitigate the potential
ieripacts of Brexk: ’

+ Conlinued focus ¢n differentiating our

impair our bty fo grow profitably, customer sefvioe, product quatity and product:
Innovatien '

7 Cwnorshlp modal strain

Description Caontrols in place Progress in-the year

» Compleﬁeddwd&smdbahncesreﬁewmr
'mrserinrgovenameénd controfs to deliver

Partners. and thelr engagement are key tothe
success of our co-ownarship model. Commercial

= Leadership endagement thvough change
» Annual Your Voice Partner sunvey fo

decislons made o seture the econormic suctess assese Parinersentiment the Constifidion

s e e | T Eacm stz | - ikt e

bedief in, and commiment fa, our cownership | * Wﬁwﬂgﬁ:: Execpitve team and our oppiounities for Pardnérs, improve lotal
“modef. Aemo reward, continua o davalop the quaity of

Polentlal conseduence Leddership and increase purpose and’
VLossorbenefhouco-ammsrmnmdalcmid tearming across ai roles.

compromise Indhidual Partner performance, » Increased communication inresponse 1o

coliactive-productivily and brand advocacy Partner fecdback

(Principle. 1) thus losing the competitive Further actions

advantage of our co-ownership model. » Gonfiwe ln facus on devaloping the

effectiveness of dcemocratic channels and
leading through change

« Lead on wellbeing in the workplace

s Confinued fagus on Indiatives lo empower
Partngis

‘Brexit

The Partnarship continues to takie a proactive approach to preparing for- Brexit and mangging the potentlal impacts it may have on
the Parthership. Since the referendum in 2016, the Parinership-has.been preparing for a worst case, no deal scenario as this would
cause the most disruption to Paitriers, customers and trade.

Throughout 2018 we have-seen the impact of low consumer confiidence, exacerbated by Brexit uncariginty z@ind other extsrnal
sogio-economic drivers: having a significant negative effect on the Partnership and retail more broadly. Brexit has placed-additional
sirain on the Partnership’s existing principal risk profile.

A Partnership-witle approach has been adopfed to fisk assess the pntanﬁal impact of Brexil, develop plans and miligate ongdirg
risks across both trading brands. A Paﬂnership Brexit group-with established risk leaders has been leading on planmng. monitoring
and atlioning options. to mitigate the potential impacis: Of‘EI'E)_CIt.

Progress and recomrmendations in refation to qur highest risks have. be‘gn regularly reporte_ci through our existing governance
struclure. Thay have baen raviewad by Divisiong! Risk Commitiees and Divisional Boards, the Exscutive team, and the Audit and
Risk Cornmitteé on behalf of the Partriarship Board on a quarterly basis,

Brexit affects the Partnership in a large. number of ways. Our detailed analysis and activity hds been focused .on the areas that
would have.the Jargest impsct en our Pariners, customers and frade: The areas of most risk are detailed on page 42 of the
Partdership's Annuat Report and Actounts.




JOMN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019 {continued)
Equal opportunities, diversity and inclusion

The Pannershnp s committed to promoting equal opportunlties in employment for existing Partners and prospective Partners
throughout the recruitment process. All Partners and job applicants will recaive equal treatment reégardiess of age, disability, gender
reassignment, marital or civil partner status, pregnancy or raaternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national ongln, religion or
belief, sex or sexual orientation {these arg known as “Protecied Charactariatics®).

The Partnership has a Diversity and Inclision policy, and an Equal Opportunities policy. These policies are underpinned by the
following rules contained‘in the Constitution:

Rule 54: The Partnership takes rio account of age; sex, marital status, sexual arientation, ethnic.origin, social position or religious or
political views.

Rule 55: The Partnership employs disabled people in sultable vacancies and offers them appropriate training and careers.

Ensuring the Paftnership is diverse and inclusive is at the heart of our ultimate pumpose, our commitment to the wider welfbeing of
our.communifies, our commarcial advantage and our future success.

it is.vital that every Pariner in our business has the opporh.unrty to reach their potential. That is why the sub;ect of diversity and
ificlusion fs of such great impartance to us. Investment in inclsicn is fundamental as itis enabling a culture that will help pecple
flourish, Thereforé, we are developing our ability to. understand and appremata the different backgrounds and perspeclives that
each of our Partners bring. From a diversity perspective, our primary conceim Is to ensure we are achieving a great mix of Partnars
in our business. .Our under-represantation Is more prominent for some groups. Where wa see that our mix of Partners is not-good
‘enough we take action, which is why back In"2014. pur Chainhan sét a Partnership goal to increase the represenlahon of Blsick,

Asian and minority ethnic (BAME) Partners in management posttiqns_ 10 10% by 2020. As et January 2019, 9,57% of mariagement
positions were held by BAME Partners.

Thera are variolis ways we have set about improving the representation of BAME managers in the Partnarship including bias
training; diverse recruitment paneis and our UNITY Network.

We published our second annual Gender Pay Gap repart. Taken from April 2018 data, Parthership resulls are'12,7% for the mean.
.gap— a reduction of 1.2% and 8.2% for themedian gap - a slight incresise of 0.4%, since April 2017. We're committed to providing
aqual opportumli&a far all our Partners and eur iong-temn:godl is to significantly reduce the gap and achieve gender parity across all
levels. We've already started to introtuce new talent developmenit programmes, stterigthen access to coaches and mentors,

explore new flexible. working arrangements and build intarnal support networks. Our gerider pay gap report is avallable st
www. johnlewispartnership,co,ukicsrireports.html.

Within the Partnership we run eight networks which exist to inspire and influence Partners around the business on.the topic of
Inclusion, Our natworks are: LINkAGE, Working Parents, UNITY, .GEN, Pride in the Partnership, Faith, Belief and Religion, Ability
and School of Thought: Most rietworks: have senior sponsorship, for example our Group Finance Director, Patrick Lewis, sponsors
our Gendear Equality Network (GEN).

The Farinership recruits people with disabilities to suitatle vacancies on merit, We offer tailored. suppbrt through the recruitment .
process for applicants v.rho declare their disability. In particular, we know adjustments are of ulmost impartance for our Partners
wilh disabilities, be they physical or oogn]twe and arrange reasonable adjustments at -an individual level to ensuré our disabled
applicants and Partners are supported. We are-proud fo bave been-awarded a 'Getting Started’ gong by the Recruitment Industry
Disability Initiative for making our recruitment pracess more accessitile for disabled candidates; this accompanies the Disabillty
Confident Loader employer status that we also gained.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019 (continued)
2018/19: 201718
Ethnlcity splltofthe Partnemhlp e " o S TR g
AstanorAsmnElnhsh ‘ N - 676 S erm
BladtorBlacanush [ ' 747|"=' '"”455
Chineseorotharemnlcgroup - S _ 132:{ ) 1.34
e e Juix
180 qs8
- 8ae 83.17
Génder diversity of the Partnership 201819 '  Make%  Female%
Partnershup Board ) S - o 62. a8
Directors and Management Boart - 28
SEnlorManagers S ‘ - : - - . 50 50
Allother Partners T a2 58
Gender diversity of the Parthership 201718 |  Male%:.  Femake %
Partnersh\p Board S R ' 64 BT
Direcicrs and ManagementBoard . ' - " 29
Seananagars - ' - - 53 . 47
All othef Partnerss o ' o 43 57

Approved by the Directors and gigned on behalf of tha Board,.

b Ay

Sir Charlie Mayfield
Director, John Lewis plc
11 Aprl 2019
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 26 January 2019

The Diraciors present their report qnd‘th& audited consolidated financial statements for the year endsd 26 January 2019.

The Comparly has chosen, as permitied under section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2008, to include certain. matters in its
Strategic repart that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in the Directors' repoert as the Board considers them to.be of
strategic imporiance. Spécifically, thase are:

— Future businass developments on pages 4-to 6

~ Rigk management on pages 7.t0 9

— Equal oppertunities, diversity and iriclusion on pages 10 1o 11
— Research and development on pages 4 1o 6

Principal activities

John Lewis-plc is incorparated and registsred in England and Wales, The principal activity of John Lewis ple is Tetalling, with the
main {rading operations. being the:Waitrase & Pariners and John Lewis 8 Pariners businesses: John Lewis & Partners operates in
a number of different formats including John Lewis & Partners depariment stores, John Lewis & Partners at home stores, online
(johnlewis.com), two intemational offices in India and one In Hong Kong: Waitrose & Padnars operstes Waitrose & Partners
‘supermarkets and corivenience stores including shops which operate under licence in the Middle East, online (wailrose.com) and
‘the Leckford Estate {the Waitrose Farm). Theré- are also business to business contracts in the' UK and abroad and ancillary
mariufacturing activities. The Company's subsidiaries and related undertakings are listad in note.35.

Diroctars and Company Secretary

The Directors and Company Secretary of the Company, whe held offica during the year, and up to the date of signing the financial
staterments unless utherwise slated, were as follows:

Sir Charlle Mayfield (Chairman)

Tracey Killen-

Patrick Lewis

Bérangérs Michel

Paula Nickolds

Keith Hubber {Company Secretary, resighed 31 January 2018)
Peter Simpgon {Company Secretary, appointed 31 January 2018}

Gorporate governance statement

John Lewis plc, as the principal trading subsidiary of John Lewis Partnership plc, falls within the govemance auspices of the
Partnership. The: Directors of Johri Lewis pks comprise certain .Executive Directors and the Finance Director of John Lewis &
Partners. The Company Secrelary of John Lewis Parinership plc is tha '‘Company Secretary of John Lewis pic.

To comply with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules spplicable to John Lewis pic, its corporate govemnance. arrangements are
provided by the Partnership Board and its Committees. These arrangements are explained in the Governance seclion an pages 44
to 85 of the Partnership’s Annual Report and Accounts.

The rnanagsment functions are-responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements for John Lewis ple and its Internal
Audit.and Risk management functions are provided by the Partnership, The Jotin Lewis Parthership plc Audit sind Risk Committee,

{the Cammxttee) which ‘has at least one independent meniber and at least cne ¢ompétent in accounting, {i) oversees. the
Partnership’s external financial reporting, including the integrity of the Partnership’s Arinual Report and Accounts,-and other formal
announcemeNts relating to the Partnership’s financial performarice; (li) oversees the Parinership's elatioriship with its external
auditors; (i} oversees the work and findings of the Parinership’s Internal Audit function; (iv) ovérsees the Parinership’s systems of
risk management and intemal contral, including an annual review ‘of ihe effectiveness. of the. Parinership’s processes; and (v)
oversees the effectivenass of the Partnership’s whistieblowing procédures. The. Committeé's acfivities in these areas are detajled in
the Partnersfiip's Audit and Risk Committee feport on pages 58 to 65 6f the Paytnership's Annust Report and Accounts,

KPMG' LLP were the Partnership’s external auditor for 2018119, They provided the Commitfee with relevant reports, reviews,
information and advice throughout thee year, as set out in thelr engagement letter.
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JOHN‘ LEWIS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 26 January 2019 (continuéd)

The Gommittee is reSponslble fot fiaking a recommendation to the Parthership Board: relating to this appmmment, re-appointment
or removal of the extemal audiitor.

The Parinership has.a risk- management framework, including & process for hew we identify; evaluate, manage and monitor the
principal tiske faced by the Partnership, supported by tools, dedicated” Pariners and a risk govemnanea structure with defined
accountability, The principal risks and uncertainties and mmgauons for those risks for Jahn Lawis plc are bxplained on pages 7 10.9
of the Strategnr: report. These risks are reviewed and monitored by the Partnership's Audit and Risk Committee. The wark
undertaken by the Partnership's Audit and Risk Committee dufing the year 1o review these risks is detalled in the Comimittee’s-
repoit on pages 58 to 65 of the Pamgrshlp g. Annual Report and ‘Accounts.

The Parinetship Board receives updates: through the Chalr of the Committee and.copies of its minules on the operation of the

sysfems ‘of intermal contrel for risk management. Reporting is through prasemations from senior managament the chairs of

Divisional Risk Committees and.financial control as well as the work of internal Audit, which provides objective assurance on the
effectivenass of controls through the. delivery of a risk-basad work plan, The Director Audit & Rlsk reparts functionally to the Chalr
of the Committee and operationally to the Group Financer Direcior:

Employees
The Constitytion of the Partnership provides for the demecratic involvement of our Pariners as co-owners of the business. Partners

are provided with extensive information on all aspecis of business- operations and are eficouraged fo take an active interest in
promoling fts commercial success!

The aim is o ensure that the co-owners are given the information they need {0 be able fo decide whether the Chairman, the
Partnership Board and management are being efieciive. The Partnership's democratically elected bodies, including the Parinership

"Council and other elected counclls and forum, provida regular opportunities at all levels of the business for management to report to-

Partners and for Pariners o quesfion management. Additionally, there is an open system of journalism, including the weekly
Gazette, which provides a means of sharing information exlensively with all Pariners and contributes to effective accountability.

Partrers.receive an annual Parinership Bonus from Hie profits of the business, This is a shared bonus for shared sffort,
The Group-seeks to émbrace diversity and this is reflected in all we do.
Conflicts of interest

The- Partnership Board maintains procedures- ihat ailow for- the: regular review of pdtential confficts of interest. All Direciors: aré
required to daclare periinent inferests and absent thernselves from any discussion that might give rise to a confiict of interest. A
regisier of imerssts is maintained by the- Company Secretary.

-At'no time during the year did any Director hold a material interest im any contract of significance with the Partnershlp orany of its

subsidiary uhdertakings, other than 2 third party indemnity between each Director-and the Company, as grantad by the Company's
Articles of Association and service confracts betwsen each Director and the Gompany.

Directors’ respdnsibilities

The statement of Direciors’ responsibilities in rélation to the Strategic report, Diréctors’ report and financial statements is set out an
page 82 of the Partnership's Annual Repoit and Accounts.

Directors’ interests

Under the Constitution: of the Parmershlp gll the Directars, as employees of John Lewis plc, are necessarily |nierested i the
612,000 Deferred Ordmary Shares in John Lewis Parinership ple which are held in trust for the benefit of employees of Jobn Lewis
plé and of gertain other Group companies, No Director has or had @ mafenai interest in-any contract or arrangement to-which the
Company ls or was a party.

Capital structure

A 26 January 2019, the Comipany has in issue 6.7m Qrdinary Shares of £1 each. Each Ordinary Share carries the right to'one vote
a\ a genaral meeting of the Company. The Ordinary Shares are wholly owned by John Lewis Partnership plc..

Liating on the London Stock Exchange (LSE)

John Lewis pic. is a. Standard Listed company ‘in respect of three corporate bonds kigted on the LSE. The Comparny has no
securiies carfying veting rights admitted to trading on a reguiated market.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
Directors’ report for the year ended 26 January 2019 (continued)

Dividends
The Directors do not recomend the payment of a dividend on the Ordinary Shares (2018: nil).
Use of financial instruments

The notes to the financial statements, including note 7 from pages 74 to 81, include further infarmation o our use of financisl
instruments.

Going concern

The Directors, after reviewing the Group's operaling budgets, investment plans and financing armangements, consider that the:
Company and Graup havé sufficient financing available-at the date of approval of these accounts: Accordingly, the Dirsctors are
satisfiad that it is.appropriate t6 adopt the gaing concern basis in preparing the ﬁnancial statements.

A full description of the Group's business activities, financial position, cash flows, [liquidity -position, committed facilities and
borrawing position, togethsr with the factors likely to affecl its future development and performance, are sat out in the Strategic
report ori pages 3 to 11.

Political donations
The Group made no palitical donations during the year {2018: £nil).
Corporate Responsibility Report and Modern Stavery Statement

The Partiiership’s Corporate Responsibility Report and Modern Slavery Statement.are available at
wWw.johhlewispartnership.co,ukjtsr.

Annual General Mesting

The Annual General Meeting will be hield on 17 July 2019 at 171 Victoria.Street, London, SW1E 5NN,

Events after the balance shioet date

Since 26 January 2019, there have been events which réquire disciosure In the financial stalements. See note 8.3.

Appointment of auditor

KPMG LLP have indicated thelr wilingnéss to continue in:office, and'a resolution that they will be reappointed will be proposed to
the Annual General Maeting, together with a resolition to autherise the Directors to datarmine the audttnr’s remuneration.

Disclosure of Information ta auditor
Each of the persons who are Directors at the date of approval of this report confitms that:

1. The Director has taken all reascnable steps that hefshe ought to have takén as a Director in order to riake himselfherself
aware of any relevani audit information 4nd to. establish the Gioup's auditor is aware of that information.
2. Sofaras the Director is aware, there is no relevant sudit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware.

Approved by the Diractors.and signed on behalf of the Board.
. 50 ' ard.

Peter Simpson
Gompany:Secretary
11 April 2019
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 26 JANUARY 2019

2049 2018

£m {resiatd,

-See nate 1.1.4)

Notes £m

12,21 Grosssalis 11,7241 11,609.5
21,22 Revenua 103167 10,2758

Coist-of iales, (6:231.0) (6.847.7)

‘Gross profit 33857 33881

2.3 Other oporatinig) income 1124 11,3

2.4 Operating expenses beftre exceptionnl tams-and Partnership Bonus. {3,.272.1) (3,115.9)

33 Share of ldss ool venturs (net of tak) f07) (.o

24 Operating profit before excaptional items and Partnership Bonus 1260 w25

25 Exceptional items® 24 {1113}

24 Qperating profit batosa Partnership Boaus. 2274 2512
8.1 Finance costs: (90.3) (85.2) 7

5.1 Finarce income: 138 14.1

Profit bafore Partnership Bontis. and tax, 1604 180,1

Parinarship Bonus: (aa.n {74.0)

28 Profit betore tax 1157 106.1

238 Yaxation R (3.3}

' Profit for the-year 150 74.8

21 Profit bafore Partnershij Bonus, tax and-exceptional items 1883 2014

The accompanying nctes are an integral pari of thefinancial stataments.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENOED 26 JANUARY 2018

2018 018
Em (restated,
see note'1.1.4)
Notes' £m
Profit for the yaar %0 748
Other comprehensive lncome;
Eems that will not e rechssified to profit or Joss:
61  Remeasuraniant of defined benefit penaibn acheme w27 24735
29 Movement in deferred tax on penaion scheme (68.3) (57_4)'
29 Movament in current iax on pension schieme 74 172
Reins that may be reclassified suhnquenily to profit or logs:
Fair value gainiiass) an cash ficw hidges 28 (30.9)
28 Movement in defamed tax on cash flow hadgas (1) &8
Gam on forgign currency branslations 0.2 o4
Other comprehensive income for the year 2424 1827
Tatal comprehensive income for the year 3184 2576

1 Prasentation has changed as-a result of IFRS 8. See note 1.1.4.
The accompanying riates are’an integral pdrt of the financial statements.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

£35S AT 26 JANUARY 2019
2019 - aoss
Em {restated.
see nots .14}
Notes £m
Non-current assots
3.4 Intangible asseis and Goodwil 2t 495.7
32  Property, plant and souipment 3.800.7 39712
4.2 Trade and olher recefvables.. 68:4 65.3.
7.4 Dedvative fnancial ingtruments 02 -
33 Investment in mid loans to joint ventire. 27 28
g Deferred tax asset -~ 280
43831 4,563,
Currant aasets
a4 Inveniodes 8576 6615
4.2 Trade and other mceivablés 2693 2;?
‘72 Detivalive mancial insfuments X 52
34 Assets held for sald 234 -
53 Shori-term Invéstments 2654 . 165,0
54 Cash an cash-equivalonts 58 596.2
1,929.0 1,690.5
Tatal asgats 83121 8,250.%
Current liabilities
55  Bonowings and ouerdiratis (274.9) {©.1)
4.3 Trade and other payables 11,660.7} (1,756.3)
Cument tax payable .y a7
56  Finance laate ablifies {0.5) {©.7n
44 Provisions (112.3) (e7.8)
72 Derlvative financial instruments (-5 (19.8)
{2,062.6) (4,054.5)
Non-currént iabilties.
58  Borawings {713.8) (862.8)
43 Trade and. othar payakies {258.6) (252.1)
586  Financs lease ¥abilities [z0.5) (22.8)
44 Frovisions 34T (1227}
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

7.2 Dervatwva financial instruments (2.0% (4.0
6,1 Reticament benefit obligaticns {468.1) (731.3)
29  Defeved taxiiabiny (36.2) 1

{1634 (20015}

Total liablitties {3,897.8) {3.956.1)
Net asests 28146 22976
'Equity

8.1 Shari capital 6T 8T
Share pramium 0. 0.3
Other reservas 0.9 {15.5}
Retained eamings 2,600.6 2:306,1
“Total equity. 2614.5 2,291.5

The financial statements on pages 15 to 82 were approved by the Board of Direciars on 11 Apil 2019 and signed-on its Gahalf by Sir Charke Mayfietd and Patrick
Lewis, Diratddrs, John Lewis PLC,

Registonds number 00233462

The accormpanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemants, %N
AL

e
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED.26 JANUARY 2019

JOHN LEWIS PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Shars Share  Copitedl  Hedging  Foielgn  Rethined  Total
capitd  premium  [osefve fesarve  cumrency  eamings squity
trandlation
reserve

Notes £m £Em Em mn £m £m £m

Balance wl 28 Jarwary 2017 8.7 03 14 8.1 ©.5 20374 20534

1.1 Restatament for IFRS 15 - - - - - t134) (134

Bolance at 28 Janyery 2017 ' 6z 03 14 81 (0.5 2000 20400

Profil fof the: year' - - - - - 74.8 4.8
Remaasurement of defined benefit

8.1 pension scharhe - - - - - 247.6 2475

Fair valua Josses on cash flow hedges - - - (228 = - {228

— wransfers % Inventories * - - - (8.1 - - 8.1y

29 Tax on above fems recognised-in.equity. - - - 59 - (402}  (34.3)

Galn on foreign eurency transiations - - - - 04 - 0.4

Total comprehensive incomeX(axpense) for the year - - - (25.0) 04 2821 2675

Balance at 27 January 2018" 67 K 14 E.9)- (0.1 23064 22975

Priofit for the year —- - - - - 760, 76.0
Remeasuromerit of defined benedit

8.1 pension scheme - - - - - 272.7 2727

Fair valua. gains on cash fiow hedgas - - - 218 - - 2t

‘2.8 Taxcn above ledis racognised in equity - - - ) - 482 (52.3)

Gain on foreigr currency translations - - - - a2 - 6.2

Tatel comprahensive insoma for the year - - - 177 02 300.5 84

Hedging gains sranatered to cost of myenlory* - - - {1 = - {1.4)

Batancs at 26 January 2H9 8.7 03 14 (0.6) 04 2,6086 26145

T Restalad, Bos nota.1.1.4.
2 Presentation has chariged as a reaglit of IFRS.9,  See nots 11,4,

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED-26 JANUARY 2019

2019 2018

&m (restated. ses note.

7 1.1.4)
Notes €m
27  Cagh gensrated from cparstions befora Parinership SBonus 595.0 s_-ar.:‘{
“Net taxation paid (33.3) (44.3)
Pension deficit raduciion paymenis o7 (B8.8)

Finahce costs paid (1.3} (25),

Nat cash gemérated from operating activities befoie Partriarship Bopus 6222 5009
Partnerihip Sonus paid 74.9) (89.2)

Net cash genaratod Froin operating activitias after Parinaréhip Banus 7.3 “M1.7

Cash flowt from Investing activities

32 Purchese of property, plant and equipment (1439} (228.5)
3 Purchase of intangible assets {184.2) (166.8}
Progoeds from sale of property, plant and squipment-and intangible assets 136 68.0°

Financa income received- 24 17

33 Cash ouifiow iram investment in and loans to joint venture (0:5) -
BZ  Cash-outfiow from short-ierm invastmedts’ {99.0) (1068.9)
Cash guifiow ffom acquishicn of rade and assats (1.0} -

Not carh isséd in investing activities {394.8) {434.6)

Cash fidws from financing acivitlés

Firwnce costs paid in respact of bonids (54:2) 154.2)

Finance (costs paidMinicoma raceivad in respedt of financisl instruments:- {0.5). 0.7

52 Paymentof capital éfement of finance lsaxes an 1.2)
Casivinfiow from bomowings 1244 -

Net cash-fropv{used in) finaneing activities 68:0- {54.7)
Increase/(dacrease) in net cash and cosh equivalonts 1207 {77.8)

5.2 Neteath and cash efuivalents at beginning of.the year' 595.1 737
Net gash and cash aguivalerts ot end of the year 7168 ‘586.1
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

54  Net cosh and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash &t bank and I hand 128.2 1284

Stort-tarm daposits 588.6 467.8.

Bank cverdrafis - o)
7168 596.1

| Restated. See note 1.1.4.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO. THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING INFORMATION

IN THIS SECTICN

In this section, we explain the basis of preparation. of the Group's consolidated financial stgtements and mommﬂg policles
which relate to the financial statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy or Gritical accounting estimate and judgement is
specific to a particuiar note, 1t is dascribed within that note.

This section also detalls new or amendad accounting standards and when thay are effective. Wa alao give an explanation of the
impact these accounting. standards have had; or the current view of the impact they will have, on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES
We prepare our financial statements under Irtermationial Firiancial Reporting Standards {{FRS) as adopted by the Eurcpean Unlop.

We have set out our sigrifficant accounting palicies in these nofes. These have been applied in the current reporting peried and apply tothe
ﬂnandal statements as a whole. All of the Group's accounting policies are set [ line with the requirements of IFRS.

During the year, we have-adopled two new- accounting standards, IFRS 15 ‘Revanue from Contracts with Customers' and IFRS 9 ‘Financial
‘Instruments’ as raquired by IFRS and prior yaar balances: have béen restated where appropriate. We: have also revisiled the presentation
of tha components df cash and cash equivalents and the split of curment and non-current borrawings, reclassifying prior year balances, and:
we have updated our accounting policy for Exceptional items.’

1.1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The finariclal statements are prepared under the hisforical cost convention, with the exception of gertain land and buildings which are
included at their degmed cost amounts, and financlal assets and financial ligbilities (including derivative financial ingtiuments) which are
‘valued at falr vafue through profit orloss, in- accordance with International Finzncial Reporting Standards. {IFRS) .as adopted by the
.Eurapaan Unfon and with those parts of the Companies Act 2005 applicakle to.companies reporting under IFRS..

The preparition of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requiires the use of jodgements and estimates that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the datg of-the consolidated finaincial statéments and the reported amounis of reveniues and
‘axpenses during the year. Althdugh these estimates are based on management's-best knowlkedge of the amount, event or actions, actual
results ultimately may differ from those estimates. The' crifical accounting estimates and key judgements made by management are
disclosetd in section 1.1.6,

The financial year is the 52 weeks ended.26, Januaty 2016 (prior year: 62 weeks ended 27 January 2018).

Guaing concem

The Direclors; sifter reviewing the Group's operaling budgets, investment plans and finanding arrangements, consider that the Company
and Group have- sufficient financing avallable at the date of approval of this report. Accordingly, the Dlrectors ‘are salisfied that #t &
-appropriate to adopt the gnmg concem basis in praparirig the Annual Report and Accournits.,

1.1.2 BASIS OF CONSOCLIDATION

The cansolidated Group. financial stalements incorporate the results for the Company and afl entities controlted by the Gompany including
its subsidiaries and the Group’s share of ifs interest in jaint venturas mada up @ the yedr-end date,

1.1.3 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS

Subsidiary undertakings are afl entiies over which the Group has control. Conliol exists when the Group: has the power to direct
the relewant activities of an éntity 56 as to affect the refurn on investment. Joint veniures. are. investments for which the Group shares joint
control with a third pary.

Allintercompany balances, trangactions and unrealised gains are eliminated upon consolidation.

1.1.4 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES FROM PRIOR YEAR

The following policies Rave been cansiétenﬂy applied to:all the years presanted, unless otherwise stated.

Thie following policies were adopted by the Group for the year ended 26 January 2019.and_have had a significant impact on the Group's
profit for the year, Equity and disclosures:

= IFRS 1S 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (applicable for the petiod beginning. 28- January 2018);

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces IAS
18 ‘Revenus.and related interpretations’. The Group adopled IFRS 15 from 28 January: 2018 using a fully retrogpective approach.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.1 ACCOURTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) '
1.1.4 AMENDMENTS TG ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES FROM PRIOR YEAR {CONTINUED)

The main impact for the Group on adoption was in respect of the Uming of revenue recognition:of frée service guarantées in John Lewis.
& Partners, principally for cettain’electrical products. Under IAS 18, the full sale valug paid by the-customer was recognised.in the
Incorme statement at the ime of sale and a Provision was recorded on the Balance sheal for the expectad liability for fufure repair costs’
under the warranty, Under IFRS 15, the free warranty is considered a separate performance obligation, therefore the Group allocates a
paetion of the considaralion received fo providing thie warranty. The aliocation is based on the sland alona selling price of the product
and the relative fair valtie of the warranty which includes an associaled profit margip. The amount alloceted to free warranties is then
recorded as Déferred income on the Balance shest and refeased to Revenue dverthi peticd of the warranty.

The impact of these changes, going forward, is 8 decraase in Revenue recognised at the point-of sale with a corresponding increase in
the_ Deferred income liability hekd in Trade and olher payables and the elimination of the Provision hefd in refation ta'the warranlies on
the Balanca sheet,

TheOpening balarice sheet pasition and comparative pericds have baen restated through Retained eamings lo reflect the decreass in
Pravisione and the increase in the Deferred ifcome liability, as well as the impact of Taxation, On the transition date, Operiing ratainéd
earnings malnly decraased- a3 a result of previously recognised revenue: being deferred under IFRS 15, and subisequently being
released to Revenue over the period of the warfanty resulling in an increase in the amounts pravieusly reported as Revenue in 2018,
Following the application-of IFRS 15, the Impact on Revenuein any given year is the net of Revenue deferred in relation to warranties
sold In year and the racognition of Revenue released from Deferred income in respect of warraniies-deferred in prior years (as
fllustrated in note 4.3).

As 8t 28 Japuary 2017 there is a decrease of £13.4m to brought forward -Reialngd eamings.as a result of the fully retrospective
approach.

The changes as at, and for the period-endéd 27 January 2078 are shown in the tables below:

Cu od B alance Sheet
718 Afjustments s
{rastated) ' Em
4.}
Assots
Delerred tex.asset’ 280 25 255
Other assals 6,226:6 - §.2268
‘Total assoln 6.2536 25 -8,251.4
Liabfitles
Trade and other payables (2,008.4} 166.1) (1.940.3)
Provisions {290.6) 581 {345.7)
Other lisbillies- (1,657.4) - (LBET ).
Toted Rabiitles (3.956 1), (13.9) {3.943,1}
Equity .
Shafe capital 8.7 - [ X3
Share premium 0.3 - 0.3.
Other resarves (15.8) - {15.8)
Retuinad aarmings 23061 (10.5), 23168
Total aquity 22978 (10.5) '2.308.0°
-Consotidated Income. Statement
2018 Adjustments e
{restated) £m
phd !
Gross-sales 11,8085 1.8 11,5877
Revenue 10,2158 11.8 10,204.0
Gost.of sales (6.847.7) 8.2} 16.830.5)
Gross profit 3,388 35, 3,364.5
Operaling expenses and finance Gosie {3,262.0) - (3,262.09
Profit bafora tax, 1081 36 102.5
. Taxation (31.3) (0.7} {30.8)
Profit for the yéar 748 29 71,9
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1:4 AMENOMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES FROM PRIOR YEAR (CONTINUED)

= IFRS 9 ‘Financlal Instryments’ {applicatile'for the pariod beginning 28 January 2018)

IFRS 9 *Financial Instruinents’ sets out the requirements for recognising, classifying and measuring financial assets and financial
liabfities and inchides guldance In respect of general hedge accounting. This standard replaces 1AS 29 and sels out two key critefia for
determining- the classification-and measurément of financial asseis including the entity's buslness model for managing finandial assets:
and the contractual’ cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9. also sets. out-a singla impairment model to ensure expecled credit losses
onfinancial ingtruments are always recognised as soon as they are forecast. The Group has assessed the credil risk arcund the
financial Instniments and expectad credit losses are not considared to be material. in relation to liedge accounting, IFRS- 9 adopts a
principles-basgd approach for tesling hedge effectiveness instaad of setting specific numerical threshokis.

The adoption of IFRS 8 has had no material impact on the Group's financial slatlements. Under IAS 39, the cash flow hedging reserve
relating to cash fiow hedges Tor foreign currency risk aesociated with: forecast inventory purchases ware. subsequently reclassified to
inventory and the amount was presented within the Stalement of other comprehensive incomef{expense), Under IFRS 9, the 'amounts
gccumulated in the cash flow hedging rezerve are instead included directly in the nitial-cost of the Inventory item when it is recogrisad
and are no longer presenied within the Statement of other comprehensive incomef{expense). Ptior year balances have not been
restated, Thetfe has been ho impact on the Group’s Income statement, Balance sheet and Staternent of cash flows,

The following standards, ‘amendments and inferpretations were applicable for the period beginning 28 January 2018, and were adopled by
the. Group for the year ended 26 January 2019, They havé not had a significant impact on the Gioup's profit for the year; eqully or
disciosures: ’ ‘ '

- Aonual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle-{Amendments to IFRS 1 and 1AS 28)

= IFRIC 22; Foreign Cutrency Transactions and Advance Consideration

- Ameridments to IAS 40: Transfers of Investment Property

~ Clarifications to IFRS 16 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The foliowing are new accounting standards and amendments to exisling standards that have been published and ate applicable for the
Group's accounting pericds beginning 27 January 2018 onwerds. which the Group has nol adopled early:
~ IFRS 16 'Leases’ (applicable for the period beginning 27 January 2018)

IFRS 16 ‘Leases' specifizs how 1o recognise, measura, present and disclose leases, The: standard will be effective for the Group for the.
year ending: 25 January 2020 and its adoption is ekpetted fo have a very significant impact on the Group’s Cansolidated income
statement and Consclidated balance sheet, The Group infends to adopf the modifisd refréspective approach on trénsition. For each
individual lease, the Right-6f-use asset will be measured at the aniount of the Leasa kability on adopiion (adjusted for eny prepald or
accrued lease expenses and any provision for impairment). ' '

This will require an adjusiment to. Equity 85 at 27 January 2018, hawever prior year comparatives will not ba restated, The Group. will
apply both the shorttarm and low value lease exemptions on transition and will adopt the transition reliefs fn refation to initlal direct
costs and use of hindsight.

The Group’s IFRS 16 project is governed by a Steéring Group which oversees tha relevant projact wark streams, approves key
decisions and provides regular updates o the Audit and Risk Committse. Duiing the year to 26 January 2018, work has progressed o
finalise ‘he. distcount rafé methodology, accounting policles and internal cantrols, comiilete the dats: colection and Validation of the
Group's portfolio of leasd data.and fully Implernént the IT system solution which will record and caleulate the IFRS 16-impact,

The Group's lease portfolio is principaly comprisad of property leases in relation o Waitrose & Partners and John Lewis & Pariners
stores, distribution centres and head offices. As shown in note 3.5, the undiscounted value of operating lease commitments in refation
to the Group’s leasas'is £3.7bn,

On adoplion of IFRS 16, the main impagt for the Group will be the recognition of Right-of-use assets and Lease liabililes on the
Consolidated dpening balance-shéel for alf applicable. leases. Gn 27 January 2018, the Group expects to recognise Lease liabilities of
£2.1bn, representing the total cash commitments under Operating leases (£3.7bn) discounted to present valug. The Group will also
recognise Right-of-use assels of the equivalént value (£2.1bn). The Right-of-use assefs will be adjusted for the reclassification of
prepaid lbase expenses, Deferred incame -and cnerous lease provisions (£151m) and £62m of fmpairmenl, resulling in a net Right-of-
use assefs baiprice of £1,96n on transition, Overall Net assets wil decrease by FA6m, after adjusting existing IAS 17 Finance leases by
E7m and recognising £62m for impairment of the Right-of-use assets. A Deferred tax asset of £9m will slso be recogniset as a result of
this adjustment to Equily. ‘ ’

Going forwand, a straight-line depreclation expense will be fécognised In’the Consofidated Income statémont In refation 1o the Right-of
use assals and an amortising inferest charge will be recognised in the Consolidated Incoms statement in relation 1o the. Lease abilities.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1.4 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES FROM PRIOR YEAR (CONTINUED)

The interest-charge will b front-loaded in the earlier periods of & lease s the. interest element unwinds. This will replace the- Operating
lease axpenes currefitly recognised in the income statement under IAS 17: For the year ending 25 January 2020, assuming no
changes In the lease portfalio, this wil resuli in.a malarial reduction in Profit before tax of approximatsly £40m; comprising an Increase
in Operating profit of approximately £63m affset by an estimated i increasea in Finance costs of £103m.

There will be ie quantitative:impact-to cash flows (othar than the-phasing of tax cash fiows related fo.movemants in Prafit), however the:
classification of cash flows will change: 1t is estimated that the Group's Operaling cash duflows Wil decrease and Finaricing cash
oufflows will increase by approximately £88m ‘as repayment of the principal portion of the Lease labilities-wil be classified as Cagh
Nows-from financing activibes,

The effact of thesa changes will also be reflected in‘lhe Group's KPIs inchiding the' Delit Rativ, Relum on Invested Capital (ROIC) and
Profit per average fuil-time equivalent (FTE). For the year ending 25 January 2020, assuming no ¢hanges in the-lease porifclio, this will
result in a 0.4% decrease in ROIC snd a £550 decrease in Profit per average FTE. The Debt Ratio will remain consistent as the [FRS
18 Lease ligbilities on transition are closaly aligned 1o the eslimales previously included in the published Debl Ratip figures.

The Group's activities as a.léssor aré nol material and therefors the Group does not expect any- slgmncant impact on the financlsl
slalements. Howsver, as raquired by IFRS 16, -addifional disclosures will be induded within the notes:io the' financial statements fof e
year ‘ending 25 Jahuary 2020;

IFRIG Z3: Uhcertainfy over Income Tax Treatmaorits. The agoption of IFRIC 23 is nol expected 1o have any impact on the' Group's
Consclidated income statement or Consolidated balante sheet,

Amendmenis to [AS 28: Long-term Interests in Assoclates and Joint Ventures

Annuml Improvemerts to IFRSs 2015-17 Cycle— vartous standards

Amandments to JAS 19: Plan Amsndment, Curtaliment or Bettlement

~ Amendments to IFRS 1 Prepayment Features with Negative Compefisation

t

The Group 'is“also currently assessinig the impact of the following new and amended standaris, which have been issued and are awaiting

endorsement by the European Union: ‘

- Amerudments to Referances to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS. Standards {applicatle for the period beginning 26 Jenuary
2020) ' '

- IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts (applicaide for the pericd beginning 31 January 2021).

- Amendmenis te IFRS 3: Business Combinations (applicable for the pariod beginning 26 January 2020)

- Amendments to [AS 1 and 1AS 8: Definition of Material {appiicable far the pariod beginnifig 26 January 2020}

Change In accounting policy: Exceptional items

During the year, the Directors have reviewed the accounting poilcy for- Excephonal llems, As part of this review, the Direciors have
changed e accounting policy for Exceplional items (o improve-tha transparincy and clarity of the application of the policy. The néw policy
is desgribed In note 1.2.2.

No restaternent. of tems disclosed in pnor periods is required as a resull of this change in accounting policy, howaver the classifications of
some balances willin Excegtiona) ftems have been relabeiled lo mpre. appropriale descriplions and provide clearer comparability yoar on
year.

Réclassification of Short-term investments and Cash and cash eguivatents

Following-a review of the Group's. Shorkderm deposits, erlain deposits previously presented as-Cash and cash equivalents. at 27 Jamaary
2018 are now considered Short-teim investments due to (hie risk: of variability in value of these funds. As a result. £46.0m of deposits
previously classified as Cash and -cash equivalents have been reclassified to Short-term inviestmenls in the cirent and comparative
peilods, impacting the Balance shiest, Statément of cash flows and reiated notes t¢ the accounts. There is-no impact on-Gurrent assets,
Cash generated from operations after Parthership Borius or Net debt. For futther details o Short-térm investments and Cash dnd -¢ash
‘equivalants please fefer o notes 5.3 arid 5.4.

Reclassification of BonusSave recaivable

Jobn Lawis Parmerahlp plc operates a BonusSave scheme (the scheme), a Share Incentive Plan {SIP) which aliows Partners to elect to”
invast part of their Partnership Bonus back into the Partnership. The schema is operated by John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited which
purchages SiP shares on behalf of Pattners. who have ¢hasen toinvest a portion of their Partnership: Bonus for this purpoee.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1.4 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND CHANGES FROM PRIOR YEAR (CONTINUED|

Where there are an excess number of shares In Issue the shares are not canicelled, instead the Company provides a loan to the scheme in
order to cover the cash outficws resulting from redemptions, and they are held as “unallocated™ sharas within the Plan, The-Company hokis
a réceivable in respect of the loah meidé to the scheme for these unallocalad shares. ’
Following a review of the scheme, Johi Lewis Parinership ple.his concluded that contra! of the scheme is held by John Lewis Partnership
pic.and accordfingly the scheme is now consolidated within the Parlnership's consolidated financial statements. This has resulted in a
reclassification cf the receivable held by the Company in respect of the loan made 10 the BonusSave scheme for unaflocated shares from
Other receivables to an Intercompany receivable from the BonusSave scheme. This is reflected in both the Company and the Group's
consolidated accounts. The BonusSave scheme does not form part of the Group's consolidated financial statements. There is ho impact n
thé Income staternent, Cash generated from operations after Parthership Bonus or Net debt.

1.1.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ,POLICIES ,
Where significant accounting policies are spacific to & particular nofe, they are described within that note. Cther Eignificant: accounting
policies are included below.

Financial instruments. .
The Group uses derivative.firancial instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in firancial markets, inclixiing foreign exchange
rates; Interest rates and certain commodity prices. Darivative financial instruments used by the Group include forward cuirency and

commeodity confracts, interest rate swaps and foreign exchange.options.

Derivative financial instruments are iniilally measured at fair value. The fair value-of a derivative financial instrument represents-the
difference between the vatue of the outstanding contracts at their contracted rates and a valuation calculated using the forward rates of
exchange. and inlerest rates prevailing al the Balance sheet date. Subsequent to initial recognition, unless designated as hedging
instruments, derivatives afe measured at fair value and any gaing or lksses arising from chianges in fair value are taken directly fo the
Income statement. '

Hatige accounting has been adopted for Derivative financial inshuments where possible: Af inception of designated hedging relationships;
the risk management objective and stralegy for undertaking the hedge is documented, Additionally, 1hé. Group documents the economic
relationship betwean the item being hedgeq and the hedging insttument, and a qualitative and forward-looking approach is taken fo.
assossing whether the hedpe will ba effactive on an ongoing basis. At the end of gach financial reporting period, for each Dénvative
“finangial instrument, prospective testing ls performed to ensure that the economiic relationship remains, the impact of credit risk on changes
in values Is reviewed, and the hedging ratio is reassessed, B

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging Insttument matures, i terminated or exercised, the designation is ravoked or it-no
‘longer quaiifies for hedge accounting.

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to varability of cash flows that are either-attributable to a particular risk associatad with a
recoghised asset or llability, of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effectivé portion of changes in the intrinsic- fair value of
terivatives thal are designaled and qualify as cash flow hedges Is recognised jn Eguity. All other changes in fair value are reécognised
immediately in the Income. statement wilhin other gains or losses. When the hadged foracast transaction subsequenlly results in the
reccgnifian of a non-financial item &uch as Inventory, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is included directly in the initial cost’
of the non-financial iterm when it is recognlsed, Foi all olher hedged forecast transactions, amounts accumulatad In Equily are recycled to
the Income statement in the pertods whaen the hedged item affects Profit or loss. Derlvative financial instruments qualifying for cash ficay
hedge accounting-are principally forward curréncy conhlracts. ' '

A faif value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recpgnised asset or liability. Derivative financlal instruments
qualifying for fair value hedge accounting are principally Interest rate swaps and foreign éxcharige optiohs.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1,1 ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1.5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The table balow sets ouiihe Growp's accounting classification of each class of its financial agsets and liabilities:

Nole ‘Measurement
Financial assels:
Trada receivables 4z Amortised cost
Ofher recejvables 4z Amortigad cost
;Shaﬁ-lqﬁn invéstments 5.3 Amortised cost
.Cash and cash equivalenty 54 -AmoHised cost
Derivative financis! instrumerits ¥z Fair valué through profit and isse or.GCT
Financial lisblitios:
Bomowings and overdrafls 55 Anmiortisad cost
Trade payabies 43 Amortised ogst
Cther paysbles 43 Amortised cost
Acerusle 43 Amiitised.cost
Partnership Bonus. 43 Amorilsed oost
Finarice lhase liabities 58 Amortised cost
""".!"‘" financial | it 7z Fair valisa through prafit and loss'or OCI
1 Gash how hedges-designated s being in 8 hadged relationship upon inial recogrition are d at fair valua with the .effective porfion of any changes i’ the

intrinsic villue recognised in equty.

As a result of the Introduction of IFRS 9, there has been o change to the méthiod of measurement or camying value of any of the Groug's
financiat assets and liabilithes.

Oftsatting
Balance sheet retling orily accurs to the extent sl there is the legal ability andintention to setlle fist. As suth, bank overdraits are
presented in current liabilities to the extent that there is no intention fa offset with any cash balances.:

Fareign currencies

Transactions deriominated In foreign currencies: are'ranslaled at the exchange rale at the date of tha fransaction. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the sétiement of suth transactions, and from the transiation &t year-énd ekchange rates of monetary assets and
labilities dencminated in foraigh curmncies are recogrised in the Income.statement, excépt whan deferred in Other comprehensive Income
as qualifying cash flow hedges: On Yranslation of assels and liabilities in foreign currencies. movements go through the foreign currency
translalion reserve.

1.1.6 KEY JUDGEMENTS AND CRITICAL ACCQUNTING ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgtmenis aré conlinually evaluated and are based on historical expefience and other relevant Taclors, including
management’s reasonabie expectations of fulure events,

The preparation of the financial statements requirés. management to.make ésfimates and juiigements concerning the future. The Tesulting
doeaunting estimates will, by definiton, be Ikely 1o differ fram the related -actual results. The estimates and judgements thet have a
significant rsk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and liabifiies within the next finaricial year arg:

— Retiremint behetits: Detalls.of ctical accounting estimates and assumptions are givenin note 6.1

Provisions and liabitities: Delails of ctilical accounting estimates and assumptions are given in hotes 4.3 and 4.4

- Impairment: Detalls of eritical accounting estimates and assumptions are given in noles-3.1 and 3:2

Depreciation.and amortisation: Details of critical accounting estimates and assumpliofis-are given in notes 3.1 and 3.2
Value of Intangible work In progress: Details of key judgements-are given in note 3.1

Application 6f residual values: Detalls. of key judgements aré given In note 3.2

- Exceptional items: Details of key judgements are given in note 4.5

- Revenue/Deferred income: Details of criticat accounting estimates are aiven in ndtas 2.2and 4:3.

blos
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1.2 NON-GAAP MEASURES.

1.2.1 GROSS SALES

Gross sales represents the amount récelvablé by thi Group for goods and sepvices supplied to custdmers. Gross sales includes the sale of
stack purchased on o sale o return basis, VAT and adjustments for expecied cusiomer returng. Gross sales js net-of any discount offered
and revenue deferred in respect of free service guarantees, This measure shows the headline sales trend.

1.2.2 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

ltlems which are significant- by wirtue of their size and nature are presented as Exceplional ilems within their relevant Consolidated income
stafement category.

The separate reporting of Exceptional items hielps to provide an indication of the. Group’s underlying business performance. Exceptional
items-relate to cartain-casts or incomes that individually or, if of a similar type. In aggregate, are significant by virtue of their size and nalure
and are separataly reported to help users of the fi nancial statements understand the underlying business performance of the Group.

In assessing whether an item is eXcepiional, the nature of the item. is considered. This assessment mcludes bath individually and
collactively, each of the following:

*  Whather the Hem is ouiskie df the principal activities of the business;

The specific circumstances which have lad to the item arising;

The likelihaed of recutrence; and

If the.item is likely to recur, whether lhe iterny is unissual by virtue of its size.

[ )

No restatement of items disc!oﬁed in pdgr'per_iods is required as a result of this change in accounting policy, For details of our-Exceptional
items sea note 2.5,

1.2.3 PROFIT BEFORE PARTNERSHIP BONUS AND TAX

Frofit belfore Partnership Bonus and tax is presented as a separate financial statement caplion within the Consolidated income staterient.
This measure provides further information on the Group's underlying proﬁtabllity and Is a corg measure of parformance for Partners.

1.2.4 NET DEBT

Net debt incorporales fhie Group's consclidated Boirowings, bank overdrafts, fair value of derivative financial instrumsits arid obllgatlons
under Finance leases, less Cash and cash equivalents, Short-term investments and unamoriised bond ransaction costs. This measure
indicates the Group's debt position, excluding the pension deficit and opérating leases.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '(CONTINUED)

2 GROUP PERFORMANCE

IN THIS SECTION

This section focuses on our performance during the year ended 26 January 2019, Information |s provided on segmantal
performiance, reventie, other operating income, operating expenses; exceptional items, Partner-falatﬂd costs and taxation. This
section also Includas:a reconciliation of our profit before tax to the cash generated from operations’ hefore Partnership Bonus,
which shows how our performance transiates: Info cash,

2.1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Segmeantal reporting: The Group's reporting segments are delermined bdsed cn business acthities. far which operating fesults- are
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Group's CODM is the Paitnership Board and the reparting segments reflect

“the management siructure of the Group.

Partnership Bonus: The Partnership Banus is annouhced and paid to- Pariners each ‘March and is detenmined in. relation tor the
pefformance for the previous financial year. No liability is recorded for Parinership Bonus atthe hialf-year as the’ majority of the Group's

‘profit and cash flows are-eamed in the secdnd half of the year, Consequently. it is. not possible to make a Telisble- eslimale of tfie liabllity
untll the-annual profit is known,

A liability fur the-Partnership Bonus is induded in the year-end accounts, with the amount confimed.by the Partnership Board ‘s'horny_afte,r
the year-and.

1is recorded in the year it relates (6 rather than-the ysar it was dsclared because thefa is a.constiuctive obligation io pay a Partriership

‘Bonus and the amount can be reliably estimated ontce thi resuits for the year:are kntwn and prioe o the approval of the Group's financial

statements,
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUER)
2.1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Waltrose & John Lewis Group Total
L Partnars & Partnars
2019 " ftm’ £m “m £m
Gross sales 6,8365.0 A4,089.1 - 11,7241
Adjusimenit for sake or retivm Sales. - j2e38) - {258.0)
‘Valua added tax (4055)  [(429) - W44
Revenue 8,420.5 338722 - 10,316.7
Operating profit bafore exveptional itama, Parinership Bonus and net profit on sale.of propesty’ 202.5 1134 (83.3) 2220
Nalprofit on sele of propesty 07 13 08 29
Operating profit hfors sxcéptional iterns and Parinership Bonus 2022 114.7 192.5) 228.0
Exceptionat ftems 4.0 {22.1) 28.2 24
Opaerating prafit before Partnership Bonus 199.2 92,6 847 27
Finance costs (80.3)
Finance Income 13.6
Parnership Bonus (47
Profit before tax 187
Taxation 08.7)
Profit for the:yeir 7680
Reconcliation of Profit before Partnership Bonue, tax ard sxceptional iteins fo Profit before tar
Profit before Partnership Bonus, tax and exceptional tams 158.3
Fartnership Bonus wn
Excapticnal lems 24
Profik hefore tax 115.7
Segment pssels 28308 2,105.7 1,366.6 63124
Segment lisbilitien 7937} (877.3)  (2.0268)  (387.6)
Net assets 2.046.1 1,2184. {660:0) 2,814.8
Othar segment itemn:
— Depracialion’ {153.3) 119.8) (14.8 (2875}
~ Amortisation’ _i:z—.z) {51.3) {29.3) {1229}
~ Capital axpandiivre — propery,-pant and equipment 0.0 1.3 9.5 184.1
~ Capital expanditure — intangible assats §2.8 a5 do.r 158.1
~ Decraase i provisions 23) {.5) {31.9) {43.6)
] Included within-Operating profit bafore sxceptionsl flems, Partnership Bonus -and net prolit-on sale of prpenty is a £0.7m share of losé of a'join! veniure in
Johin Lewds: & Partnars (2018; £1,0m share of loss), See nole 3.3,
2 Net profit on sale of property incluges losses.of £0.2m in Waitrove & Parinars.(2018: £2.1m), £0.5m in Group {2018 Enif). and £0.1m'in John Lewis &
Pariners (2019: £nl.). ‘ T
3 Intiudes net—chargg.l for impainnent. See notes 3.1 and 3.2,
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING {CONTINUED)

Waitrose™ John Lewis Group Total
& Pannars - & Partners

306 £m £m £m £m
Grods wajes’ 6757 49568 - L6085
Adusiment for sale of relum seles: - (234.6) - (254.6)
Value added 1ax (398:0) {14a1). - f1138.)
Revenue" :6,364.7 3.861,1 ‘= 10,215.%
Qporating peofit befora exceptional Hems, Partnership Bonus and net profit.on sale of proporty™ 169.1 247.3 67.3) 3.1
Nat profit on ssle of propery” 23 105 - 13,4
Operatin profit hefore excaptional kams znd Partnership Bonus' 1730 2578 167.9) 3635
Exceptiong ilenis {62:2) 21.3) (37.8) {111.3)
Qperating profit Giefore Partnership Bamr* 1103 205  (105) 2512
Finance cosis {85.2)
Finance incorme. 14,3
Parinarship Bonus {74.0)
Prafit hafore tax' 106.1
Taxation' 3Ly
Profit for thd yoar* 74.8
Reconcilistion of Profit before Parinership Soms. 1ax and exceptional ilems to Profit bafore tax:

Profit before Partnershin Bonus. tax and excoptional tams’ 294
Partnesship Sotus {74
Exceptional tems 113
Profit before tax' 106.1
Segmanbt ascets’ 2E901 21508 12127 62536
Segment labilities’ (784.8) (9020} {2,289.2)  (¥954.1)
Net asseta’ 2,105,2 12468  (1.056.5) 2,287.5
Othar segment tems: )
— Daprediation* {198.2) (110.2) {16.9) (823.:3)
~ Amortisation®” {38.2) (54.3) @18) (1141
— Cipital expenditure —~ proparty, plant wid equipment 108.0 728 45.0- 2268
—Capital expénditure - intangible assets 5.7 107.0 228 1826
~Increasai{decreass} in provisions' (2.0) 10.6 7.4. 15:9
ki Resiated, 308 hole 1.0.4.

2 Natproﬁtomdedrpmpmyandmnomsorzz 1m n'VWaitrose & Parlners,

3 included withio Operabing proft belore Fartnership Bonus i an impairment charge of £52.3m, of whiich £42_ Tt {6 in Waitrose & Partners, £7.2m is-in John

Lewis & Parness, and £2.4m s thnn(seénotes:! 1and 32}
4 Includes.net chargas forimpairment: Sad notes 3.1 and 3.2..
5 {ncluded Within Operaling profit befre excepﬁm-ml fterns, Patinership Bonus and net profit on sais of property i is.a £1.0m share ot oss of a joint venturerin

John Lewis & Pertners (sew note3.3),
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.2 REVENUE

AGCCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue: We evdluate our revenue with customers based on the five-slep model undér IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers: (1) identify the contract with ihe customer; (2) identify the performance obiigations in the contract; {3) determine the transaction
price; (4) allocate the hansactton price o separate. performance obligations; and (5) recognise revenues when (or as} each performancs.
obfigation Is satisfied. We generate the majorily of our revenue from the sale of goods or from providing services to. our customers..
Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised when the Group. has satisfied its'pérformance obfigations by transferting.a
promised good or service to the customer. The good or service is-conskiered to be transferred when the customar oblains control of that
good, or the sarvice Is complete, Revenue i respect of ‘sals or return: sales’ which réprasents coficession Income Is stated at the-value of
‘tha margin that tha Group receives on the transaclion. Revenue is also net of Partner discounts and VAT, adjustments for the sale of free
service guarantees. and adjustments for expected customer retums. Revenus is recognised in respect of sales urder bill..and-hold:
-girangements when the buyer takes control of the asset; even if it has not physicaliy been transferred to the customer. Revenus-under bill
and hold arrangements is not recognised when Hiere is simply-an intsintion to-acquire.

Sales of gift vouchers and gift cards are treated as liabilities, and revenue is recognised when the giRt vouchere or cards aré redeemed
-against a later transaztion. Non redesmption revenue is recognised In propornon to-the pattern of-dghits esiercised by the custamer. Cerain
-entities. within the Group eall products with a- right of retum; and experience is-used lo estimate and provide for-the value of such returns at
the time of sale. Thia is further discussad under inventory note 4,1,

Business is predominantly-camred out i the United Kingdom and gross sales and revenus derive. almost antivaly from that source..

2,2.1 DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

We analyse our reveriue betwean goods and services. Goods are split info four major product ‘lines: Grocery, Home, Fashion and
Electricals .and Home Technology (EHT) Services comprise free service guarantees on selected goods. This presentation is Gonsistent
with how our Partnershig-Board afid Divisiorial Maniagement Boards réview parformance throughout th year,

2019 2018
Major produck lines £m Em
Goods
—Grocery B A20:6 £,384.7
- Home' 1,005.8 1,133.6
— Fashign 12167 $.170.4
- EHT (Electsicals and Home Tachnology) 1,3936 1,370.1
Services
- Fres service guarantae 41.3 3.3
Other revenue- 150.8 146.7
10,316.T 10,215.8°
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JORN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUER)
2:2 REVENUE (CONTINUED)

2.2.2 REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES
The following table provides infarmation about the natute of the majér product service fines generating revenue.

Partners-and include items intended Tor.usein the:
home envirenment.

Custorners obtain control of home products when the
goods are recelved by the cuslomer.

Customers pay at the point of sale in John Lewis. &
Pariners slores. Where a home produci is ordeied

online, it is generally futﬁllad from-a centralised
Ioeation.

For B2B customers, invoices are raised and are
payable on a varlely of payment terms upto 30 days.

John Lewis & Partners accefpts returns in-gceordance
with-a €ustomer's stalutofy rights under consumer laws
ifvthe United Kingdom and has: adlscreuonafv goodunll
pélicy. Undér the goodwill policy, customers can return
products within“35 days: after receipt; If not entirely
salisfied,

wheri the goods have
been reciived by tha
customer and confrof
Adjustrients are
recorded for returns
whére material, based on
Historc trends and recent
sales patlefns. The fight
fo retutn goods s
included under inventery,
note 4.1.

Type of Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance Revenue recognition Revenue recognition
product! ohligations undar IFRS. 16 {néw under IAS 18 (previous
‘pervice accounting policy) accounting policy)
Grocery Grocery products.are principally sold by Wailrose & ‘Revenue 18 recogmsed Revenue is recognised

Partners and include food; drink, household and bther- | when the goods have when the goods have

itama, Addltionally, fuel sales-are shown hera. heen received by the been received by the

Custemers ebtain control of grocery products when the gﬁfa?,:zrand control custoimar.

goods are received by the customer. L

Customers pay at the point of sale in Witrose & e Adjustments ars

recorded for rétums

Pariners stores. Where a2 grocery product i8 ordered where material, based on recorded for refurns

Gnline, it is fulfilled-by a Waitrose & Partners'siore_and hisloric trends and-recent whefe material, bazed-on

.customers are chapged an the day of delivery. sales patiems. The right hlstoric frends and- recen!

For business to business (B2B) customers, involces foretumgoodsis salet patterns.

-are raised and are usually payable within 30.days. 'ﬂcl'"'ie:* under inventory,

note

Waitrosie & Paitners accepls raturns in accagrdance ’

with.a eustomer’'s statutory rights: under consumer laws

iy tha United Kingdom and has a discretionary goodwill

policy. Under the goodwill. policy. customers can returm

piodutts within 35-days after receipt, If not entirely

satisfied.
Home Home producis are principally sold by John Lewis & Revenue is recognised Revenue is recognised

when ihe goods have
beeh received by the
customer,

Adjusiments are
recorded for retums
whete material, based on
historic frends and recent
saleé patlemns.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.2 REVENUE (GCONTINUED)

2.2.2 REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES {CONTINUED)

policy. Under the goodwi] policy, customers can return
products within 35 days after receipt, if not entirely
saliafied.

included under inventory,
note 4,1

“Typa-of Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance Reventle recognition Revenue recognition
product/ obligations under IFRS 15 (new under [AS 18 (previous:
service accounting policy) accounting policy)
| “Fashion Fashion products ané priricipally sold by John Lewfs & | Revanue is recognised Revenue is recognlsed
Partners and include clothing, jewesllsry and other when the goods have when the gocds have
itams. This also Includes. ‘sale or return’ sales. been feceived by the baen received by the
Gustomets obtain controf of fastiari products when the | Sy - CorTl | customer.
goods are received by the customer, _ . 7
Customers pay at the point of sale in John Lewis & m%tﬁlzms Adjustments-ara
Parinars siofes. Where a fashion praduct is ordered where material. baged on | recoried for returnis
online, it is generally fulfiled from a centralised historic.rends and recent | Where material, based on
ocation, : . s historic rends and recent
sales patiefns. The right sales m
For B2B customers, invoices aré raised and are lometum goodsis les patlamns.
payable on a variety of payment ferms up to 30 days. ln&'”'ﬂ’ under inveritoty,
) . o nofe 4.1.
John tewis & Partners accepts returns in accordance .
with a customer’s Statulory righis under consumer. laws:
in the United Kingdom and has a discretionary goodwill
policy. Under the goodwill pol‘cy, cuslomers can return
products within 35 days after receipt, if not entirely
salisfied..
Electricals EHT products are principally sold by John Lewis & Revenue is récognised Revenue is recoghised
and Home Paitners and include televisions, computars, tablets ‘when the goods have when the goods have
Technology and ofher electrical items, been tecgived by the been received by the
0| Cusoman an conel o 7 prcucivhan e | S5 W SHT | emore el
ived by the customer. p L o price o 99 Y
goods are rece : free service guarantee an { excluding VAT.
Customers pay at the point of sale in John Lewis & gle,mem of the sales price
Partners stares: Where an EHT product is ordered is allocsted to the
online, it js generally fulfilled from a centralisad performance of that
location, service (see below),
For B2B cugtomers, invoices are raised and are Adi“:dt?e':?w-'af‘; Adjustiments ate
able on # variety of payment lemms up lo 30 days. | recorded for refurns justrmen
pay: oYy of pay P o whefe malerial, based on | recorded for réturns
John Lewis & Parthers accepls réturns In accordahce historic: trenda and recent | where material, based on
with a customer's statutory rights under consumer laws sales patterns. The right. historic trends and recent
i the United Kingdom and has a discrationary goodwill | to retum goods is sales pattemns.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2,2 REVENUE(CONTINUED)
2.2.2 REVENUE RECOGNITION POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Typeof Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance Ravanue recognition Rovenue recoghition.

product/ obligations under IFRS 15 (new under [AS 18

service accounting policy) (previous accounting

_ policy)

Freg service The free service guarantee is provided with certain Revenua s deferfed on The frea service:

guarantes EHT products which ame sofd by John Lewis & the Balance shest afid guarantae was,
Pariners. then released io the accountad for under
Customars recefi a free service guarantee of between E::bﬂeﬁi'ﬁg:gémtgg IAS 37 Provelons.

‘twio and five years on the purchase of specified EHT astraighi-ine basis No adjustment was
products. No separate payment Is mada tor the free R o made 1o revenus which
sarvice guaraniee. Deferred income is shown | was fully rscog';lised at

. . ! . under lrade-and other the point of eale and
An slement of the sales price of the EHT productis payables, see note 4.3, the gest'e,stima_le of-the
allocated to the free service guarantee on a cost plus : ‘ casis of fuifiling the
margin basis. This amount is deducted from revenue free servica warranity
and deferred on the Balance sheet. The deferred was recorded as a
incoma is released fo the Income stalement over the provision.
period of the guaraniee on & straight-line basis. ’

Other revenue | Olher ravenue products/services are principally sold by | Revenus is recognised Revenue is recognised
Johi Lewis & Partners and iriclude catering, custamer- | when the when the o
delivary, foodhalls and workrooms. productsiservices have productsfservices have
Gustomers.oblain contral.of other revenue when the mw:::f :’:: :‘ithe b;:g: e:f by the
preducis/services have been rendered and the performance obiigations '
_performance obligaions have been met, have been met.

‘Customers pay at the-poirit of sale in John Lewis &
‘Pariners stores. Where other revenue
producis/services are orderad online, these are
generally fufilled from a ¢entralised location,
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES T¢ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Olher operating income is income thal dois not ralste to the main trading opetations of the Group, Other operating income includes:
Commiissions: Commissions ara recognised when the Gréup has satisfied its performance obligations by delivering a promised setvice fo-

the customer in accordante with the. tranisaction price agreed.

Rental income; Rental income is recognised on a straight-ine basis based on the length of the contraci.and when the performance

obligation.of theé-contract is satisfied.

Other Income: Other income is recognised when the services have béen rendered to the customer and performance obligations have

been met.

For those services below, within the scope of IFRS 15, there was no change in recognition pelicy upon ad_o_ption of the accounting

standard, and therefore the comparatives have-not. been restated.

) 2010 28
Uther opemting Income j £m
‘Commissions 64.7 86:1
‘Rental Income 18 68
Lisante faes’ 27 3.0
Oter income 374 364

11241 1113

Other. income- mainly relates to: car parking income; ba;:khau[ing; concession income; and compensation for [ess of profit undar fandiord
commercial agreements Wheie development woik has impacted branch sales. If js made up of iterns thal individually are not material and

nao other material groups were considered to be shown,

2.4 OPERATING EXPENSES BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND PARTNERSHIP BONUS

. 2m9 2018

Operating expenses belore exceptional toms and Parfnerihip Bonue £m Em
Branch operaling expenses (2.188.1)  (2.158.4)
Adminisirative Expensss (1,0740)  (367.5)
@B.2r2.1)  (3.1158)

In dddition to the items disclosed T néte 2.6, within Operating expenses befora excaptionat items -and Parinership Bonus we include

charges such as marketing expenses. ganeral rates, rent payable, and customer defivery.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.5 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional items are items of income and/or expense that aré significant by virtus of their size and fiature’ {see note 1.2.2). We believe

Diese axceplionat items are relgvent for 3 better understanding of our undsrylng business- parformance, and therefore are highlighted

separataly on the face of the Income $tatément. This-note provides detadl of the exceplional fienis reported in both the current and prior
year

KEY JUDGEMENTS

Exceptianal items: Exoepibnal iterns are those where, In'management’s apinion, thair separate reporting provides a better-understanding
of the Group's uhderlying busingss performance; and which-are-significant by virtue of their size and nalure. In consideiing the natire of an
iter, management's. assessmint inciudes, both individually and collectively, whether the. item is outsidé the pnncnpal activities of the
busingss; the specific circymstances which have led to the ilem arising: the Jkelhood of recurrance; and if the itern is fikely to recur,

whethet it is unusual by virliie of ity size.

Na slfigle triteria akone ckassifies an ilem as exceplional,. ahd theratore management must evercise judgement when determining whather,
oh balance. presenting an item as exceptional wh help users of the financial sisteients understand the Group's bnderying business
performance,

2019 2018 #018 2018
Opertting  Taxalion Operating Taxation
{expensa)! crait!  (expenna)y credht

Imconse  (chargs) incoma

- Exceptional tteps - Em ‘Em £m £m

Slrategic vesimyctyring and redundancy programmes -

Haad.ofTioe réviews: 8.3} 37 {40.5) 75
Physical estate {5:1} 15 {5.5) 04

Shop operlibhs {6.7) 1.3 @92} B.5 .
(31.49) 6.5 5.2} 135
Branth impakments (Wajirose & Parlners) - - psn 45
Bmanch impagment (John Lewis & Pattners) 125 12 - -
John Lewis & Pariners supply chain 0.5 0.1, (3,1) 06
' Pay-provision 303 (6.6) o~ -
Legsl setierment 150 (29 - -
Pricit pn disposal of items previously recognised as sxdeptional - - 27 -
. .24 @.8 (113 18.6

Strategls restructuring and redundancy programmes

In April 2016, the Group taunchied its long-term strategy. s Your Busingss 2028 (IYB 2028). The IYE 2028 strategy oullined three key
pillarg centred on Cusfomer, Parther and Profit and the steps we would neet fo {ake in order to adapt the Group for the future. The
‘accaleration 6F our plans In arder to ensuré the Group's success ¥ requiring an unprecedented tevel of internal change. In June 2018, the
Group provided a sirategy update outfining in mare detafl the key focus areas furdamental to meefing our Piofit obiective. Further detall an
these can be.found on pagesa 34 10 37 of: the Strategit report In the Partnership's Annual Repart and Accounis. Given the scate-of these
changes, the programmes of activilty will take a number of years to deliver These costs form. part of our Sirateqic tranisformation
‘prograinme. and . therefore will recur across a number of financial years. As we mave towards delivering our sirategic vision, transformation
programmes in ofher areas may be required. Over theé Iife of the programms they are-significant in valua and, pivén’ the level of change
they arg significant In nature and therefore the Group considers them exceptianal tems. The-financial impact of these for 2019 and.2018 is
detailed below:

Head office: As part of IYB 2028, an internal productivity agenda was iaunched in 2016 with the appoirtment.of 4 Group: Produc!rwiy
Director, the main focus of which was a transformation of pan-Group functions and 'offer head office operations. These principally
inclided evaluations af a number of. funclions which began at the end-of 2017. Given the scale of the change, the delivery of these was
expectad (o.take four years, and'Is now well progressed; but furfher costs” ang expected aver the next two years as we finatise the
reviews: of the remalilng funclions. It 2018 we have incurred expenses of £19.3m {2018 £40. 5} in relalion to this pragramue, The
expense includes project costs, onerous contracts and, where announced; redundancy cdsts.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.5 EXCEPTIONAL [TEMS (CONTINUED)

Physical estate: In 2017, we announced our. intention 0 cut back on plans to open new shops and instead to prioritise investment in
our existing asiata, This led to exceptional charges in 2017 for the write down of properly, other assels and related costs, principally in
relation fo future development plans of the Wailrose & Partrers astate (previcusly presented In exceptianal lteme as Stralegic review),
Since 2017, our focus has shifted lc an assessment and optimisation of our éxisting estale, and as. highlighted In our June 2018
update, this continuss to bé a key part of our sirategy, which Includes ensuring that the size and shape of our physicai estate i
delivering on both our customer proposition, .and financial refurs, We expect this programme and the associated costs and incomies to
iake @ fotal of approximately five years to deliver. This year we have recognised a net exceptional expense of £5.1m (2018:£5.5m).
The pet charge includes the impairment of assets {reflecting the shortening of-the useful economic [ife), accelerated depreciation of
buiklings, fixtures and filtings and management's.best estimate of closure cosis including onerous leases, difapidations and, where
closure has: been approved and announced, redundancy costs. Where income in relation ta previously estimated costs has been
realised in the year, this has been shiown nel, reflecting that the original expenses were shown.as excepticnal,

Shop operations. Alongside the assessment of gur physical estate, we. also identifisd that ths way in which we run and manage our
shapa would require adjustment: in order o improve the customer experience and efficencies in our stores, we-hava made a number
of changes in our shop operating models. This. has included reviewing store management struciures, the centralisation of certain
functionis, and aligning régional offerings. in order to deliver a more flexible; multi-skiled ‘and productive.model. This programme is now
largély complete with cosis of £8.7m (2018: £28:.2m) recognised this year. The. expeénses -in the cuirent year principally include.
redundancy costs, where announced, as specific elements of our shop operaling models aie restnictured:

Included within operating expenses, and not separately reported as exceptional, are-£12.7m of restructuring and redundancy costs which
are considered by the Group-lo be separate from our sirategic programmes and part of the.underlying business performante.

Branch impairments {Waitrose & Partriers)

in 2018, £38.5m of impairmant:charges were-recognised in felation tc Waitrose 8, Parinars stores. OF this, £3.2m related to stores due.for
closure, which have now been relabelled. as. Physical estate within the 2018 comparative balances above. The remalning £35.7m was,
driven by continuing uncertainty with respect to Brexit oulcomes and changes. to the grocery maiket, leading us to review our approach and
assumptions willv respact 10" possible impairmaent in Waitrosie & Partniers, where margins were treriding-significantly lower: Thig £35.7m was
recognised as exceptional given the nature of the exercise and the size of the cost. In 2019 no such impairment charges have beén
fecognised as exceptional, ard any impairments as a result of store dosures are included within Physicat estate, while any impairments
resulling from poor store performance hava been included within operating expenses, '

Branch impairment (Johnh Lewis & Partners)

Following the signing of an amendéd lease contract, a'charge-of £12.6m (2018 E£nll) has been recorded in relation to branch impaiment in
John Lewis & Partners, ) ’ ’

John'Lewls & Partners supply chain

In 2017, a review of the John Lewis & Paririers supply chaln led fo significant redundaricy and restructuring costs which were recognised
-8s exceptional, During the year o January 2018, a small credit of £0.5m (2018: £3.1m charge) has been (ecognised as actual costs
incurred have been smaller than anticipated.

Pay provision

In 2017, a £36.0m provision was recorded as an exceplional charge fo cover the polential-costs of complying with the Nationat Minimum
Wage Regulations. During the year, the methodology for ¢alculating the labifity has beén clarified and the project finalised; resulting in a
£30.3m (2018: Enil) release of the provision. Discussions with HMRC have now been completed and rectification payments have been
mada. ' |

Legal sattlement

In September 2018, the Group reached a settlement in relation to-an ongoing legal dispute, recelving income of £15.0m. Dug 1o the skze
and nature of this seftlement, this income has been recognised as exceptional.

Profit on disposal of items previously.recognised as excaptional

In 2018, incoina of £2.7m wad recognised upon fihalisation of 'a properly dispesal which was previously recorded as exceptional. In 2019
profif on disposel of iters previously. regognised as exceptional was £ail,




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.6 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
20118
o
219 1.1.4)
£m Em
Staff costs (note 2,6.2) {1,863.2)  (1.846.8)
Depreciation — owned sssats’ {286.6) (322,6)
Degreciation - assets held uider finance isases 0.7 ©.7}
Amortisabon of intangible acsels” {122.9) (114.1)
Nt profit on sale of properly (inchuding excepional ilems) 3.9 16.1
Net loxs on dispesal.of other plant.and equipment and intangihla 2ssats 3] 0.3
Jnventory — castofinventory recognised a3 an expanse® 6.931.0)  (6,847.7)
Operating |ease rentale: '
~ fand and buldings #1907y (185.9)
- plant-and machinary {4.3) {0.5)
Subease income:
-~ land and bulidings &7 58 A

1 Inchuded within depreciation — gwned assels is.anmpairment charge of £18.6m (2018; £40.7m) of which £6.0m (2018: £40.7m} ia In Waeitrose- & Pariners and £12.6m
{2018: £nl} ia In Jolid Lewis & Pajtners,

2 Inciuded within amortisation of Intangible assels (s an mpen‘manl charge of £2.0m {2013 £11.6m} of whith £0:2m (2018 -£2.0m)is i Wallrose & Paﬂners £0? (2018:-
£7:2m) is in Johin Lewis & Partnars and £1.3m (2018: £2. 4myis in Grm-p,

3 Rastalad, see hote 1.1.4,

Contingent rents expensed during the year were £2 2in (2018; £0.8m). Contingent rents are determined based on store revenues,
Totaf audilor's remuniration Is included within administrative expenses, and is payabie to our auditor, KPMG LLP,; as analysed below:

2019 2018
Auditor's remunerdtion £m tm
Audit and audit-related services:
- Audit of the parent Company and consoliiated financial slatenients (0.9 {0.3)
- ._t\udii of the Company's subsidiaries sy (0.6)
noy 0.9)
Non-sudrt sérvises:
— Other pssurance services 0.1 10.2)
@13 @)
Total fags e {1.4)
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.7 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO.CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS BEFORE PARTNERSHIP BONUS

2019 2018
£m £m
‘Profit before tax' 187 1081
- Amortisation and write-offs of intangible-assets’ 1.7 141
Deprecistion® 2875 3233
Share of logs of joint-verrturs (net of tax) b.7 1.0
Net:finance costs 88.7 T
.Faftnership Bonus 44.7 . 74.0
Fait value Insses on dervative tinandial insruments 1 0.2
Loss/{profity on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assats* 1.4 (15.8)
‘Decrepsedincrease) i inventories 39 {33.7}
Decresse/(increaso) in receivabins B3 (218
(Decrease)ingrease in payablast {60.9) e2n
Incréase in rafirement benefit obligation s 28.6 28.5
(Decrenselfincreas in provisions' {46.8) 120
Cash generaied from operations before Partnership Bonus 596.0 §37.3

1 Restated, sse-nole 1.1.4,

2 Inchudes nat impairnent charges. See roje 3.1.

-3 . Includes net impaiment changes, See pote 3.2, L ) . . .

4 ;his impuntnr:tpuzs,;msmlyme cash recaived in tha yeas, amounts.due to-be receivid next year of £1.5m are induded within recenvables, The net of ihése amounts
£0.1in per note 2.4,

40




JOHN LEWIS PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.8 PARTNERS

2.8.4 PARTNER NUMBERS
During the year the average number of Parlnars in the Group was as-follows:

2019 2018
John Lewis & Partners 2400 26,500
Wailrosé & Partners 52,400 53,000
Group X200 3,000
83700 84,500
2.8.2 PARTNER PAY AND BENEFITS
Employment and related costs were as follows:
2018 2018
£m £m
Slaff'u_os%s
Wages ad salaries- AE0.0)  (1,444.3)
Social setulily Costs (11085). (1116
Partnership Banus e F ) (85.7)
Emgloyers’ nalional insuranca on Partnership Bonus 8 (8.3
Cihar pension expenses (note 6.1,2)° (219.1) (215.6)
Long feave coul. a.9} {4.4)
Total betocs Parmes discounts 1.883.2) (18465}
‘Partrier digtaunts {excluded from fevenus) 82y {69.3y
(1,229.4)  (1.918.2)
2.8.3 KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
Salaries and short-term banefits {132) {13.9)
Postemployment benefits' (24 (2:0)
{156} (i5.1)

1 indudes cash supplements in lieu of fulure pansion- acerual,

Key management Includes the Directors of the Company, members of the Group's Divisional Klanagement Boards and other officers of the
Group. Key mahagiement compensation includes salaries, Parinérship Bonus, national insurance costs, pensioni casls and the cost of other
employment benefits, .such ag company. cars, privale medical insurance and lermination payments where applicable. Costs of key
managament-compensation are included within operating bxpenses and exceplsona! items as applicable.

Key management participate in the Group's. long leave cheme, which is open to all Pariners and praviges up 1o six months’ paid leave
after 25 years’ service. There-is no propartional entitiement for shorter pefiods of service. IL s ot practical to aRocate the cost:of accring

eritiflamant to this benefit to individuals, and therefore no allowance has. been made for this benafit in the amounts disclosed.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTE5 TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.8 PARTNERS (CONTINUED)
2.8.4 DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

An:Executive Direcfor with an éxternal appclnlmenl fnay niot, ratain any eamlngs from such appointment Unless i dates from befera he or
she joined the Group.

Highest paid director

The tota) efmicliments for the year ended 26 January 2019 end 27 January 2018 of the Ghairman, wha was also the highest gaid Direclor,
ware £1.444,000 (2018: £1,411,000), comprising pay 'of £1,109.000 {2018: £1 109 000), Partnership Bonus of £33,000 (2018: £nip,
pension supplement in lieu of further definéd pension accival of £266,000 (2018; £288.000) and. benefits with a cash velue of £14,000
(2018; £14,000).

Pension arjangements

Their accrued pansions increase in iine with either price inflaion or future pay increases, depanding on thelr Indhvidual arrangsments.
Where there are any accrued defiried benefit pensions rémaining on ah unfunded ‘basis, the Group has made provision for the associated
liability. During the. year, tha total pension supplement paid- to the Direcltors was £0.8m (2018 £0.8m). The aggregate defined benefit
pénsion entitlement accrued at the end of the year wae £0.7m (2018: £0. 7m) relating to five (2018 five} Directors. At the end of the
reporting period, one (2018: one) Director continues to accrue further benefits in the-Group's pension scheme. Thia aggregate value of the-
Company’s contiibution lo this scheme in'respect of that Diréctor was £0,1m (2018: £0. 1m).

The Chairm#n's aggrafiate defined benefit pénsion entilement from the age of 60 accroed at the end of the year was £300,000 per annum
(2018: £300,000 per annum). There was no increase in the accrued income entifiement abova the corisumer price inflation during the year.

Na compenaalion for 10ss &f office was paid to departing Directors of the Partnership Board during the period or for the date of this repart.

Contracts of émployment for the-Directors provide for a notice period of between six months and one year. No contract confains a provision
regarding early termination compensation.

Directors’ emoluments have beeqy stmmarised below.

2019 2018

£in tm
Aggregata emolumants’ {4.5) 4.4)

42
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NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.9 TAXATION

Our Tax strategy aligns to the Principles of our Constitution and, as a responsible leading retailer, we believe that paymg taxes afising from
our activities is an important. part of how our business cantributes to the socletivs in which we operafe, The Tax Strategy adopied by the
Partisarship Board is availatile on_the Group's website.

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Taxation: Fax on the profi{ or kese for the year comprisés current and defoived tax, Tax is recognised in the Income statemeiit except lo
the axtent that it refates to Hemse recognised directly in Other comprehensive incame/(expense), in which case it ¥ recognised directly in
‘Gther comprehensive income/{expetise).

Current tax:is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the. year, using lax rates enacted or substantively
enacted al the Balarice sheet date, and any adjusimenis 1o tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferréd tax Is accounted for using the Balance stieat liability methed in respect of temparary différences artsing f From differences hefween
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and-thelr canying amounis In tha financial stalemefits. Deferred tax ariing from the initial recogmlion
of an asset or Jability in°a transaction, other than-a business combitiation; that at the time of the transacticn affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or lass, is not recognised. In principle, deferred tax fiabilities are recognised for all taxable lémparary differences and defeired
taX assets -are. recognised to tha. extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available againgt which deductible temparary
differences-can be uilised.

Deforred {ax-is cakulated al the tax rates that are enacléd of substaritively enacted at the Balance sheet date that-are axpected'lo apnly to
the period when the asset is realised or the Hability is settied.

2.9.1 ANALYSIS OF TAX GHARGE FOR THE YEAR

2019 2018
Tax (chargéd)icradited to the income slatement’ Em Em
Curment {ax — cerant yaar {45.8) &)
Curent tax ~ adjustment i respect of prior years 23 (.6
Gurrent tax on IFRS 15 restaternent 26 -
Tatal curent tax charge {41.0) (53.3)
Delemed tex - currenl year' 54 M7
Peferred tax - rals charige - .
Defenad tax — odjustmant | respect of prior yews 1.3} 7.8
Deferred tax.on IFRS 15 restalemant (2.5 -
Tolal defarrad fax cradit 13 0.
(38.7) (31.3)
B . 2013 2018
Tax (chargediferedited to other.comprahensive incoma €m £m
‘Currart tax on pension scheme® 14 172
Tolal carpant mx credil EA 17.2
‘Ocfened tax on pansinn scheme (85.3) &)
Deferred-1ax an cath flow hedges 4.1 59
Total deferred-Lax changs (69.4) {51.5)
{52.3) (34.3)

1 Restated, seg note 1.1,4.

2 An sdilional deficlk funding confiibution of £37.7m has been paid by the Group tuling the yeef (Z018: Eﬂhamj i refation to the aefined henefit pansion schome,
resdl.m,g In & tax credit of £7.1m (2015 £17.2m) 1o tha Stetement of other comiprebiensive income(expefisd} and a coprssponding reduction in opr glitent tax lishiity.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2.9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2.9.2 FACTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGE FOR THE YEAR

The tax charge for the yeat is higher (2018: higher) than the siandard corporation tax rate of 10.0% (2018: 19. 2%"), The diffarences are
explamed below:

2018 2018
& Em
Proflt before tax 1187 1051
Profi bietors tax multipiied by standard rate of corperation tax in the UK of 18.0% (2018: 12.2%") (22.0) 120.3)
Effects of;
Changes in.tax rate - {73
Adjustment in, respec of prior years 1.0 6.0
Defwertalion on assets notqualifying for tax rabief (t4.4) 14.0)
Difference. batwaan accounting and lax base Tor fand and buldings [2m 5.0 -
Differences In overssas tax rates w.1) %
-Sundry disallowables {2.2} 0.2 .
Cther permanan diffrences on sale of property - (0:8)
Total tax charge * (£ 5] {31.3)
Efiective tax-rate ? (%} 34.3 20.5

1 Based on a bYended Wpoﬂﬂanhxrﬂaoumpﬂud of two menths at 20.0% gc!ntingto the 2018/17 fiscal yaarand {enmanths at 19.0% rélating to the 201718 fiscal.

2 Resiated; seenote 1.1.4.

29,3 DEFERRED TAX

Defeired tax i calcilated on temporary differences using a tax rate of 15% for deferred tax.assats.and lisbilities oxpected to. reverse before
1 April 2020, and 17% for those assets and llabiliies expected to reverse after 1 April 2020, In the year o 27 January-2018; a tax rata of
19% was used for deferred tax dssels and lfabilities expected fo reverse before- 1 April 2020 and 17% for those assels and flabifities
expected to reverse after 1 Aprif 2020..

The movemént on the deferred tax accourit 8. shown below;

2018 2018
Deferrod tax Em Em
Opening net asset ™ e 514
Creditad & Income statement ! 13 220
Charged 10 other conipiehencive incomes{expense) 58.4) 1.5
Closing net asset ' 136.%) 219

1 Restated, iee nate 1.1.4.

NOTES.TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
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JOHN LEWIS PLC.
2.8 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
2.9.3 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabiltles duiing the year are showr bejow:

Accelerated Reval : Roidl Total
tay oﬂand and’ geins
.depréciation hull dlhgl'

Deferred tax Watiftites £m £m Em
AL 28 January 2013 (10&.5_) (5.8 @e {144.0)
Credilsd 4 incoma staiément 26 05 0.4 35
Ava7 Janusry 2018 (96.9) {8.3) (383 (1455
Creiited tc medme siatemett 73 03 - 76
At 26 January 2019 (81.5) {8.0) 383 (132.9)
Capital gains  Pensions Othor: Total l
tax an lanid “and ’
_ ang bulkiings provisions
Deforied tax asiats’ £m Em em £m
;123' January 2017 ¥ 2.8 181.2 8:4 2004
 Credasticharged) loincome staement’ 14 172 ©1 18.5
{Chdgéd)icnidited to ofhix comprehensive Incomesexpenise) - (57.4) 5.9 (61.5)
At 27 January 2018° 14.2 1.0 12.2 167.4
-(Chargedperedited to income statement {4.1) a7 3sy ‘(s'.:-i_;
Enarged 16 othar donigrenensive income/(expensa)” - (5.3} @ {59:4)
At 26 January 2019 13 5.4 42 109.7

1 Restated, sea note 1.1.4,

The deferred tax asset in relation to the defined benefit pension scheme is £63.3m (2018; £109.9m),

Deferred tax assels and Rabilities are only offset where' Ihere is a Jegalfy enforceable: right of olfset and there (s an intention 1o settie the
balances riet. Certain deferred tax assets and liabilitles have been oifset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset):

_ . 2018 2018
Daferred tax £ Em
Deferved tax ,-,mensi -~ '28.0
Digfoired tax liabiities (38.2) €1
Defarred tax nat {38.2) 248

1 Rastatéd, see note 1.1.4.

The recoverability of daferred {ax assets is supporied by the expetted level.of fulure profits in the countries concemed,

Deferred tax.dssets ang recognised fof tak lossas carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the réfated tax benefit through future
brofils is probable. There are unrecognised deferred iax assets. in respect of losses-for the year ended 26 January 2019 relating. to losses
in John Cewis Hong Kong Limited of £0.7m (2018: Enil).

The deferred tax balance assodated with the pension deficit has been adjustad to reflect the current tax benefit obtained in the financial
year ended-30 Januaiy 2010; following the contiibution of the fimted Group interast in JLP Seottish Limiled Partaership to the: pension
scheme (see note 6,1},

The deferred tax-assets and liabllities are racoverable afler. ore than one year.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GONTINUED)
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
2.9 TAXATION (CONTINUED)
2.9.3 DEFERRED TAX {(CONTINUED)

As & result of examplions. on dividénds from subsidiaries -and capital gains on disposal, there are no si'gniﬁcant"'laitabla tembq_r’ary
differences associated with investmenis in subsidiares and interests In joint arrangements. i

2.9.4 FAGTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGES IN CURRENT AND FUTURE YEARS

Legislation has been enacled to reduce the UK corporaflon tax rate from 19% o 17% from 1 April 2020,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

3 OPERATING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

IN.-THIS SECTION

This-saction shows the assets used In generating the Group's performance. and. rafated future commitments. This Includes
intangible assets and goodwlll, property, plant and -equilpment, investment In and loans t9 ‘our joint venture, as weH as
commitmants for future: expenditure which will be used to help generate our performance in future years. Assets held for sale are
included within this section as they rolate to cuent assets which have previously been used In delivering our resuits.

3.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Intangible assets: (ntangible assets, comprising both purchased aid internally developsd computer software, are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairments. The cost of inlernally developed software, including all directly attributable costs necessary to
create, produce and-prepare the softwars for use. is capiialiset-where the davelopmenl meels the criteria far cap]laﬂsaiion tequired by 1AS
38. This may include capitalised bomowing costs, Intemally developed software assels that ara not yet in use are feviewed al each
‘Teparting date to ensure thaf the developmant still meets the criteriafor capitalisation, and is not expected to become impaired ¢f abortive.

Amortisation: Once’ available for use, the purchased or internally developad -saftware is amartised on 2 straight-line basis over its useful
‘economic: ifa, which'ls deemed 10 be between threé and ten years. The assgts’ useful sconomic lives are revieved and adjusted if
-appropriate at each Balance sheetdate,

‘Goodwill: Goodwill arises on consolidation and represents the. surplus of Fair value of the amount paid for a buslness (o company) less
the fair value of tha nel assels acquitad- (assels, liabilities. and conlingent liabiiities). .Goodwill is- not amorlised but subject to annual
impairmant testing, Revisions to-goodwill ara accounted fof in the same manher as ihe oliginal goodwill.

Impairment: Assels ate reviewed for impairment at [¢ast annually or whenever events or circumstances indicate that the amortised value
may not.be. recoverable, An impalmment loss is recognised for the amount by whichi the asset’s amonised cost exceeds its recoverable
amount, the latter being the higher of the assel's fair value less costs fo.disposa and value in 'usé. The reversal of an impaiment loss Is
recognised immediately as a credit to lhe Income statement,

KEY JUDGEMENTS

Value of [ntangible work in progress: The Group has incured a significant amount of deveiopment expenditure refating {o intangible
assets, particularly IT systéms and. software. These development costs are recorded within Work in Progress (WIP)-on the Balance sheet
until the assets that they relata to are available fof use. If managément belleve that 8 deve(opment projec is no longer likely to-rasult in the
creation of a useful intangible apset, the related developmant expenditure should be reclassified from WIP and expensed as an abortive
cost thiough prof it and loss. Management's Judgemenl over the likely cufcome of these’ development projects can therefore affect the level
of aboitive costs.in any one year and the amount capitalised as intangible assets in the future..

During the year lo 26 January 2019; the Group has capitalised -a significant proportion of WIP that has bullt up over recent years
Management's raview kas concluded that. the ramaining intangible WIP balances presented at the.reporting dale are expected io result in
intangible assats as defined by IAS 38,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Amortisation: Amortisation is recorded to write. down intangible-assets to a resigual value of il over their ugeful economic lives (LIELs),
Management rust therefore astimate the -appropriate’ UELs to 2pply to gach class of mtanglble asset. Changes in the esiimated UELs
would alter the amaunt of amortisation charged: each year, which cauld materially impact the canying value of the. aseets in question over
the' long terin. UELs gre.thereforg reviewed on an annual basis {o ensure that they are in line with policy and that those policies remain
appropriate:

Impalmlont As part of their impairment reviews, management must assass whether intangible assels will continue ta deliver economic
benefits in the fulure, Given the nature of these asssts and the current pace-of change within retall, previous estimates of economic benefit
may be reduced if assets become obsolele or are likely to be superseded prior to the end of their UEL. Where a significant reduction in
astimated future economic benefits occurs, it coukd resilt in & mateérial impairment charge. Afthough the risk of a materid) impaiment s
reduced by capping intangible UELs ata maximum of-18 years and not applying residual valies, intangibles -are assessed at least annually
forindications of impairment, which requires a tegres.of subjectivity on the part of mi#nagement:
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill . Computer software
Purchaesd  Intemally: Work in Totsl
. drveloped  progress’

Intangible ass+ts and goodwiil £m &m Em &m £m
Coat

At 28 Januafy 2017 - 216.6 4913 1574 853
Additons - - - s 1925
Tranvfers . - 234 720 (85.4) -
Disposale amd wrile-offs - {25.8) {80.6) (6.4) {92.8)’
A27 Jaausry 2018 = 2134 6027 2391 9552
Additions ! 1.1 - = 167.0 158.1
Transfors - 46:9 W2 2a) -
Disposals and wiite-offs. 1.1 {8.8) {19.5) (177 (46.8)
AL 28 January 2019 - 2657 8774 1373 10664
Auymnlﬂpﬂllﬂmrﬂuﬁoﬂ

At 28-Januery 2017 - {1363)  (2025) - 4328),
Tharge for the year * - {30.5) (B38) - (114.1) '
Ditposals an write-olfs - n2 80.0- - 812
AL 27 Jarwary 2018. - {1424) 317.1) - (459.5)
‘Charga for the year - 43.4) (79:5) - (122:8)
Disposals and write-off - B85 19.5 - 28:9
At 26 January 2018 = {77.2) B7T7) - {5543
Net bookvailie at January 2017 - 7.6 187.8 157.4 4327
et book value at January 2018 - 7.0 1856 239:1 495.7
et book valuie st January 2019 - 74.5 300:3 137.3 2t

'1 For the year ended 25 January 2019, addiions for the yearinclude ihe non-cash capital expenditure accrial on intanglbla mssets of £7,1m(2018: £22.3m).

2 Forthe year ended 28 January 2018, this includes-an Impaiment charge of £2.0m (2018; £11.6m) 1o intangibia assats of which £0:2m (2018: £2.0m) s i Waitrose &
Parimaes, £nil (_201& £7.2m}is In John Lewis & Pantners l.n_u.ﬂi_:am (2018:; £2.4m) is in Group,

Intenglble assets principally reiate to Gusiomer and distribution projects with useful economic livas of up to 10 yaars.

There are four individually significant assets within the total carrying: amount of intangible assets ‘as at 26 Janoary 2019; {wo are customer
projects (£139.0m, 2018: £126.8m) and two are distribution projecta (£126.2m, 2018: £126.2m), '

During the year to 26 January 2019, computer systems valied at-£241.1m (2018: £85.4m) were brought inlo use. This covered a renge. of
selling, support, supply-chain, administration and information technology Infrastructure applications, with. asset Iivés ranging from three_to
ten years.

Amortisation of intangible assels is charged within operating expenses.

Gaodwill relates to the surplus of consideration pver the assets and liabllities acquired as part of the atquisition of the Irade of Opun Group
Limited on 1 June 2018: This was subsequently wrilten off in full during the year.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

ACCOUNTING PCLICIES

'Propeny plant and equipment:.The cost of property, plant and equlpmnt includes the purchase price and direcily atirfbutable costs of

brlnglng the.asset in 16 working condition ready. forits intended use. This may include capitalised borrowing costs.

The Gfoup's freehold and long leasehold propedies were: last revalued 1o fair valua by the Directors, efter consultation with CB Righard
Ellis, Chartered 3urveyors at 31 January 2004. These values have been incomporated as deemed cost, -subject to the requiremant
{o test-for impainment in accordange with LAS 36. The Group has-decided not to adopt a policy of revalualion since’ ‘31 January 2004,

Other assels are held at-cosl.

Depreciation: No dapreciaﬁon fs.charged on freehold. land or assets in the course of construction. Depreciatian is calculated for &l other
assets to write.off the cosl or valuation, less residual value. on & straight-fine basks over the following expected useful economic lives
(UELs):

Freehold and tong leasehold bulldings — 25-50 years

Othar leaseholds — aver tha shorter of the useful economic life or the remaining period of the lease

“Buiiltiing fixtures —10-40 years
"Fixtures, fittings and equipment (including vehicles and information techiiology equipmient) —3-10-years

residual values are-assessed as the price i current terms that a property would be expecled fo realise. if the buildings were at the:
end of their useful ecenomic Ife. The assets’ residual valués and useful lives are reviewed and adjusied if appropriate at least-al each
Balance sheel date.

Impairment: Agsels are reviewed for impalmient at lgast annually or whenéver events or drcumstances indicate that the nef book value
may notbe recovarable. Impaiment lesting is performed: on cash generating units (CGUs) which are branghes inciuding an alfocation of

-online, baing thia lowest leve! of Separataly klentifiable cash Rows. An impainment foss is recagnised for the amount by which the. asset's

net book .value exceeds its recoverable amount, the laiter being the. higher-of the assel's fair valug less cosis lo dispbse and vaiue in use,
Value in use calculations aré petformed using cash fiow projections, discounted at a pre-tax rale, whichi reflacts the assat specific risks and
the time value of money.-

Whete an impaimment loss subsequently reverses; the carfying amount of the CGU is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable
amount, but ensuring the increased carrying amount does not exceed the canying amount that would have been determined if no
imgaitent joss had been recognised for the- CGU in prior years. A reversal of an impairmaent |oss s recognised immediately as a credit
ta the Income statement.

KEY JUDGEMENTS

Application of rasidual valiles: The application of residual values to-shell assets on freehold antl fong léasehold properties is.a key
accounting judgement thit impacts the depreciation- charge recognised in respscl of these assets. Management have assessed that it is
appropriate lo apply residual values to these assels as the buildings will Telain sighificant valie-both duding-and at the end of their useful
economit fife. This'residual value cotld be realised through a sale of the property or a sublelting arrangement. Menagement has therefore
conciuded that the-appfication of residuel values ia consistent with the definition sat out in IAS 186.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Depreciation: Deprecialion is récorded to write down: property. plant and equipment assels to thelr residual valuss. over their useful
economis lives (UELs). Management must therefore estimate the appropriate WELs to apply to aach ‘tlass of asset as:set out in the
accounting policy above. Changes.irvlhe éstimated DELs would alter the amount of depreciation charged each year, which could materially
impact the tarrying value: of the assets. In question ovar tha long term. UELs are theretore reviewsd on an annual basis 1o ensure that they
are in line with policy and that those policies. remain agpropriate,

Impairment: In line wilth the Groups accounting policy, management must assess the value in use of each CGU when testing for
impaiment. This tetuires estimation of the present value of fulure cash flows €xpected to arisé from the continuing operation of the CGU,

These estimates require assumptions over future sales- pettormatice; future costs; and long-term growth rates, as-well as the application of
ari- appropriate discourit rate. Were there to be significant changes in these assumptions, it could materially impact the amount chargad as
impairment during the year, or lead to-thie reversal of impairment chargss recognised in-pravious years..
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Landand  Fintures, Assets in Total
bulidings filtings caurge of
ol Pt!:!!d construction

Preperty, prant and equipmerit Em £m Em
Cost

Al 28 January 2097 4568.5° 19572 B5.9  6E1Z6
Additians ' - - 228.8 2268
Transfers - 138.0 5.3 (2313 -
Disposais and write-offs {622)  (1333) ©4)  (1953)
. At 27 Junuary 2018 46433 1,818,2 810 65438
Adtlfiong ' 28 - 1612 164.1
Transters 9.1 8.0 (1B8.1} -
Disposais and write-offs {31.4) (808 A1) ez,
Transfars to assats hald for sl T - - nn
At 26 Japuaty 2019 4,628:2 1,.940.4 530 68275
Aséumulited depraciation

AL 28 January 2017 (14810 (1,320 - (25002
iy forthe ysar * (i728) (1604 - (a3
Disposals and write-oifs 18.0 1332 - 151.2 -
ALZ7 January 2018, (1.318.1)  (13562) - (26723)
‘Charga forihe year ! {1424)  (145.4) - (2678)
Disposals and wrile-offs 19.8 675 - 7.3
Transters to assets bald for sale 54.6 - - 54.6
At 26 Janiary 2019 {(1.386.1)  (1,431.8) - [2317.8)
Net book yalue af Jonuary 2017 3,408.3 B18.2 858 aM24
Net book.valise at January 2618 35272 5630 81.0 397z
Net book value atfanusry 2019 32421 5148 530 38097

1 F':pr-the rarend_ed 26 Janoary 2018, addifions. for the ysar includel this non-cash-capitdl expenditure accrual on propérty, plant and equipment of £28.7m (2018
E£12.7m),

2 Forthe year ended 28 Jamuary 2019, this.Includes a net impaltment charge of £18.6m ta land and buldings (2018: £40,7m),

included above are land .and bullding .assels,hek!-under finance leases with a nat book value of £14.8m (2018, £15.8m).

In accordsiice with IAS' 36, the Group reviews its pragierty, plant and equipment for impaimment at lzasf annually or whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the value an.the Balance sheet may not be recovarable,

The imipairment review- compares the recoverable amount for each CGU fo the carrying value on the Balance sheet. Thé key assumptions
used in the caloulations are the discdunt rate, long-tarm growth rate, expacted salas performance and coéts.

The valire In use calculation s based on ihree-yaar cash flow projections using the latest budgal and forecast data, Anly changes In sales
performance and costs ‘are based on past experierce and .expectalions of futute changes in the market. The forecasts are- then
extrapolated beyond the three-year period using a keng-term growth.rale. The discount rate is derived from the Group's, pre-tak weighted
average cost of capital of 8% (2018; 8%).




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3,2 PROPERTY, PLANY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The impaiment review performed considers the value in use calculation based on the above methodology and assumptions, as well as
other potential impairment triggers such as strategy changes. Fo!lcming the impakrment review, the Group recognised -an impakrment
charge to tand and bulldings it the year of £6.0m.in Waitrose & Parthers {2018; £40.7m) and £12.6m in' John-Lewis & Parinars {2018: £nil).

A reduction of 0.6% in the long-term grawith rate would fesult In sn additional impairment charge of £1.5m (2018: £0.3m). An increase in

‘the discouint rate of 0.5% would result in'an additional impairment charge of £0.9m {2018: £4.8m),

3.3 INVESTMENT IN AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURE

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Joint arrangements: The Group applies IFRS 11 to al joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11 Invastments in joint arangemerits are
classified as either joint operaliong- of joint ventures tepending on the ¢ontractual rights: and obligations of eath invesior. The Group has
assessed the nalure of its jpint grm_ngernents and detesmined Ihem fo be joint ventures.

interests in joint ventures are accounted for Lsing the equity miethod after initially beirg recognised at cost in the Consolidated balance.
sheet.

“The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profil or loss and other comprehensive income of the sGuity’
-accounted invesiees, from the-déte that oirt controf commences until the datg that joint contraf ceases.

John.Lewis pic and Clipper Logistics plc.are both investors.- in Clickiink Loglstics Limited. Each party owns 50.0% of the equity of Clicklink

Logistics Limited and dacisions fegarding Clicklink Logistics Lirited requiré the unanimous consant of both parties,

Investment Loan Yol

Jolnt venture, £m Em. £m
.Cost

A28 darivary 2017 2.1 1.5 36
Addttions. - . -
A% 27 January 2018 Al 15 36
Addiions - 0.5 05
_AY26 January 2013 24 20 4t
Share of {{oss)iprofit

ALZ8 January 2017 a3 - 0.3
Shara.of loss (1.0% - 1.0}
AL 27 Janusry 2018 0.0 - 0.7
Share of loss 0 - on
At 26 Junuary 2019 (L4 - .4}
Al 27 Janupey 2018 14. AE 29
At 26 January 2049 07 20 27
3.4 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

At 26 January 2019, five praperty assets in Walilrose & Pariners (£13.7m) and one’in John Lewis & Partners (£0: 4m) were recorded as
held for sale with a tofal camrying value of £23.4m. Two of these properlies have been sold-since. ihé year-end and the rémaining four arg
kpected to complete within the riext 12 months.

At 27 January 2018, there were no assefs recorded as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.5 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
3.5.1 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 26 January.2013, coritracis- had ‘baen .enterad into for future capital expenditure of £44,1m (2018 £36.0m) of which £33.0m (2018
£20.3m) relates to property, plant and equipment and £11.1m (2018; £6.7m) relales to Intangible assets.

3.5.2 LEASE GUARANTEES

Previously, John Lewis pic provided lease guarantees in favour of the Group’s fonmer associate. company, Ocado Limited, in respect of
ieasad land and buildings. For 2018, the maximum. liabiltly due from the Group:as the guamantor was £6.8m which would have become
payable had Ocddo Limited defautted on rental payments. For 2018, this guarantee is no longer provided.

3.6.3 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The -Group's opersting lesses rélate to supermarkels, department stores, offices and distribution cenires. Leases may incude. break
clauses or options to renew {options to renew are ot included in the commitments table). The majority of our lease payments are subject
to mdrkel review, usually every five years, to reflect market rentals, but bacause of the uncertalnty over the amount of any future changes,
such chenges have notbeen reflected.in the table below. Some of ouf lease agreements include rental payments contingent on turriover or
economic indices. These contingent rents are alse excluded from the tabls beiow.

2019 2018
Landand  land and
bulkdings  buildings

Future *gRTofats minimum lease payments uxa{er non-cancellable operating lenses, payahle: Em “Ern
Within bne yaar {182.5) _(133‘;9)'
Latei than ons year and l=ss than five yearns 519 (7382)
After five years 2748,1) (31488
2019 2018

Land and  Land.and
uulmmys bullding$

Fuliire aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating Isases, payable after five years: Em

‘Later than five yeBrs and less than 10 years (825:7) {847.8)
Laler thari 10 years anid jeds than 20 years. (1!{;31‘5) (1.152,0)
tater than 20.years and less than 40 yesrs: (517.71} (598.0)
Lster than 40 years and less than 80 years. (G48.9) (71
Afiér 84 yeurs #383)  (e798)

(2.116.1) (3:1485)

For the year ending 25 January 2020, the Group will adopt the new accounting standand for leases; [FRS 16. Under this standard the
sommitnents under operating leases reflected in the tables above (£3.76n) will be recognised on the Consolidated balance sheet:as lease
liabliiies discounted 1o-present valie (£2.1bn). See'note 1:1.4,

Total fiture sub-lease paymients recelvable relating to the above operating leases amounted to £10.9m (2018; £10.9m).

Amounts recognised in the Incame statement. 22: 20!!1:2
Opurating Joase rentals:

~‘and and buildings {190.7) (186.9)
~ plart and machinery (2 (0.5
Subdaase income:

~land and huidings 57 5.8
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CD'NTINUEﬁ]

4 WORKING CAPITAL AND PROVISIONS

iN THIS SECTION
Working capital repressnts the assets and liabififes: that the Group generates through its day-to-duy trading activities. This

section shows the elements of working capital, including inventorles, trade aid other receivables and trade and other payables.
Provisions ara alse Insluded In this section as they fepresent operating liabilities.

4.1 INVENTORIES

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Inventory valuation: Inventory is staled at the Kwer of tost, which is corhputled on the basis of average unit cost, and net realisable vaiue,
Inventary exciudes merchandise held by the Group on a sale or relum basis, where the Group does not have e sisks and rewards of
ownarship: Slow moving and ‘obscigte inventory Is assessed for Impaimment at each reporting period based on past experience and an
appropriate provislon is made.

inveritory also incdudes a 'right to return goods’ assel. which represents the value of kwentory éxpected to be retumed as .a result of
customers exercising their rights under the Partnership's retums policy. The expacted kevel of returis is based on past éxperiance:

2019 2018
Inveritory £m £m
Raw materials 36 42
Work in progress o 01
Finished gaods and goods for msals BE3.S 8572
B57.6 6615

Provisions against invenlarigs of £27.7m were:charged (2018; £40.7m charged) lo cost of sales.
Finished goods and goods for resale include a ‘right fo retuen goods” asset of £20.0m (2018: £22.5m).
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

4.2 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trada recelvables: Trade receivables are initally racognised at fair-valie and subsequently measdred at amortised cost less an allowance
for expacted credit losses. Such.allowances are based on-an individual assessment of each recelvable, which is informed by past
Bxperience, and are fecognised-at amounts equal to the losses expected 1o resull from all possible. defaultevents over the life of each
ﬁnarlrcti;nl assel, The Group also; perfurms analysis on.a case by case [basls for panticular trade receivables with imegular payment patlemns
br histery.
-Supplier income (shown as part of accrued income); The price that the Group pays suppliers for goods Is determined through
negotiations with suppliers regarding both the liét price and a variety of rebates and digcounls. The principal calegories of rebate fncome
are in the formn of volume and.marketing rebates. Supplier income 15 broadly spiit evenly belween the two tategeries as follows:

Volume rebates: Volume rebates are eamed based an sales or purchase triggers set aver spacific periods, such as the number of units
sold fo customars or purchased from the supplier. Volume rebates are recognised over the period set out in the supplier agreemant.

Marketing rebates: Marketing rebates include promotions, mark downs or marketmg suppart provided by suppliers. Merketing rebates
are agreed with suppllers for specific periods and products.

‘Rebate income b‘shown as part of trade recaivables) Is recognised when the Group has contractual entiiement fo the-income; it can'be
-estimatad ralia ly and it is prababie that it wil be. recelved.

‘Rebate Income. recognised Is recorded against cost of sales and inventory, which s adjusted to reflect the lower purchase cosl-for-the
goods.on which a rebats hag been eamed. Depending on the agreement with suppliers, rebates invaiced are either recaived in.cash from
the suppfier or netted off against payments rade to suppliers.

For promotions.which are-confinmed after tha Balance sheet date, the Group is sometimes:required to estifnate the amounts due from
suppliérs at the yearend. Estimates of supplier income are accrued within accrued incorne; and are based on & review of the supplier
agreements in place and of relevant sales and purchase data,

The majority of rebates are confimned bafore the year-end, therefore the level of esimala and judgemant required I delermining the year-
end recaivable is; limited,

9. 2018
Trade and cther receivables -£m £m
Gurrent:
Trada recefvables 4.5 B4.6
Other feceivabies' 391 30,7
Prapayments ) 1166 1016
Accrued income 26,1 35.9-
‘2693 261.8
Non-currant;
Other racelvables 8.2 183
Prepayments 422 47.0
Eda 852,

1 -Restated, sea note 1, 1.4

Trade recéivables are non-interest bearing and generally on credit terms of leag than 90 days, Concentralions of cred|tnsk are considered
to be very limited. The camying amount of.trade and other recaivables approximates to faif value and is denominated in Sterling, Within
trade recaivables is suppfier income-that-tias baen invoicad but not pafd of £15.4m (2018: £9.7m). Supplier income that has been invoicad
buf not yet-settied against future-rade payable balances Is included in trade payabies (see note 4.3).

Within accrued income; there is £12.7m {2018: £3.3m) in relation to supplier income which has not yetbeen invoiced. Additionally, actrued
Incoma incliidas £20.5m (2018: £24.6m) in relation to other operating- Incorie items (see note 2.3) which has not bean billed at the
reporiing date. The-unbilied amounts of other operaling income 8 'made up of tems that are individually nol material for fusthar disclosures
and had no sionificant chianges during the. pariod,
Tha Partnership recognises loss allowances for expectad credit losses within aperating expenses in the Income statement, As at 26
January 2019, frade and other recelvables of £4.0m (2018: £2.9m) weve partially or fully impalred: As at 26 January 20189, trade and other
recejvables of £23,3m (2018: £26.2m) were past due but not impalred. The ageing analysis of the past dus amounts is as follows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
4.2 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED]

208

. 2019
Ageing anstysis £m £m
Up to 3 months past due 229 245
31512 months past due 04 1.1
Over 42 months past due - 0.6
733

%2

4.3 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

ACCOUNTING POLICY
Trade payables: Trade payables are initially recognised at Faif value and subsequently ineasuréd at amartised cost,

Deferred Income: Deferred income is recognised when the Gioup has received cash in advance -of providing a good or service, i(
includes revenue in respect of free genvice guarantses for EHT products. The Group alocales. 3 periion of the. consideration recaived for
the EHT product to the free service guarantée on a cost plus margin-basis. The amount allocated {o the free service guarantes is deferred
and récognised as revenud over the period of the guarantea bt a siraight-ine basis.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Liabilities: Liabillties recognised. ii (fis note.at the feporting date include amounis for unredeeriied gift vouchars and gift cards. in order- o
estimate these liabilities, management must make assumplions around likaly redemption rates. Management must therefore exercise 4.
degrae of éstimation when predicting fedemption pitlema based on actual experfence:

Deferred income:. In refation lo free-service guaraniees, deferred incemeris, based en the expected fulure: repair costs- for all goods sold
plus a margin. The expected fullre costs are based ofi historical evidence of claims and cast to repait. Management axarcise a degraa of
estimation regarding the margin percentage.

. 2019 2018
Trade and dther payahles Em- £m
Gurrent:

Trade payables {19.7) (B42.3)
Amounls Gwing 1o parent undartakings” ' (85.3) (o4
Gthar payables 187y {ied.3)
Qther taxalion and social secudly {178.9) (178.8)
Accruals {182.9)  (921)
Defarred income’ (9.0} (111.9)
Pannership Bonus (38.7) (56.5)
:860.7)  (1.756,3
Non-current:
Other payables” 07 @)
Delafred incma' {258.4) {251.8)

{268.6) {252.1)

1+ Resiatad, sag note 1.1.4.
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4.3 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

The canrying: ambunt of rade and cther payables approximates to falr value,

Déferred income: primarily relatas to free service guarantees. During the year an amount of £41.3m (2018 £31.3m restated) was reieased
1o the income statement, The charge for the yeer wag £25.6m (2018: £21.5m restated). The year-end position of free service guarantees Is
£50.0m (2018: £65.8m restated), The remaining balarice in.deferred income felates to goods and services soki but not yet delivered and
lease incentives,




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSQUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'(CONTINUED)

4.4 PROVISIONS

AGCOUNTING POLICIES

Provislions: Provisions ara recognisad when the-Group has an cbligation; iii respact of a past-event, it is more likely than not that payiment
{oranon-cash seitlement) will be required to Seitle the obligation and whera the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisiens are
‘discounted when tha time value of money is considered malenal.

Emplayee benéfits: The Graup has a sciieme ta provide up to six monthe paid leave after 25 years' service (lonig leave). The cost of
providing the benefits under the scheme is determined using the projected unit credit actiartal valuation iethod, The. cutreni service cost
is included within Gperating profit in the Consolidatéd income statement. The financing elements of long leave are-Included Infinance costs
in the Consolidatsd income statement. Actuarial gains or losses are laken directly to the Consolidated income statement,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Provistans: As the: provisicn for liabfities under the long leave-scheme is assesséd on an actuarial basis, éstmales are required for the
apprdpriate discount rate, staff tumover; salary increases and infation. Significant movemants in these-agsumptions could cause a material
adjirstmant to the carrying amounl of the provision.

Loiig Customsr Imsurance Redrganisation Other Total
. loaye refynds claims

Provisking Em, £m Em Em Em Em
AL27 January 2018° {1396) (3g4) (25.0) (202 (56.4) (290.6}
Charged {6 intome statenignt (144} {54.3} ({8:0) 272} (6.2) (91.8
Relaasad Yo incoma. statemenit 4,8 - o3 58 35.3 4877
Utiised ¥ 394 73 71 .8 887
AL26 January 2018 1.8 ETEY) {24.9) P48 @8 (2670
Of wrhich:
Current {35.9) {34.3) {9.8) (2.9 (2] {112.3)
Nop-current (1055} - (15.1) e (138 (138.7)

1 Restated ses nole 1:1.4,

The Group has &'Jang leave scheme, Gpen to all Parinars, winch provides up to six-months paid leave after 25 years' service: There s no
proportional enlillement for shorter periods of sefvice. The provision for the liabllities under the scheme is.assessed on an actuarial basis,
reflecting Partners' expected service profiles, and using econbmic assumplions consistent with ihose used for the Group's retiremént
beqefits (note £.1), with the exceplion of the real discaunt rate, where 3 rate appropriate to the ghartar duralion of the long leave: lisbility is
used, so as io acorue ihe cost over Parindrs' service penods

Provisions for customer rafungds reflect the Group's expectd liabllity for relurns of goods sold based on experience of rates of refurn.

Provisions for msuranee claims are in respact of the Group's employers, public and vehicle third party {iability inswrances and extended
wairanty products.

Provisions for insurance chaints .are bdsed on reservas held in the Group's captive'insurance company, JUP Insurance Limited. These
tegervas are estabished usging. independentt acluarial assessments wheraver | possrbla or & reasenable assessment baséd on past claims
experiénce.

Provisiong: for reorganjsation reflect resiruciuring and redundancy. costs, principally v relation to our branch distribution ‘and retail
operationt as wall as functional testrusturings. in FinanGe. Personne| and (T.

Other provisions include property related costs and pay prnwssons The release of £35.3m in the year principally relates fo releases in
respect of the National Minimum Wage provision of £30.3m, as detailed in noté2,5,
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5 FINANCING

IN THIS SECTION

This section-sets out what makes up our net-finance costs, which are costs to service our financial and pension debt and income
genarated on our cash and Investment balances., We also include revaluation movements on certaln financial assets and
liabllities. Information on the significant components of net debt Is given in this section, Including cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings and overdrafts and finance leases.

5.1 NET FINANCE COSTS

21 2018

£m e
Finanie.costs

flﬂinhr_iﬂpﬂfﬁhi&,pn?

Commitment foes and bank overdrafts {1.5) .3
Other loans repayable-within five years (19.5) {18.3)
Otnor Joans repayabie in more than five yesrs' (33.6) (322)
Finance lease intdrest payabld (b9) {0.9)
Amortiaation of issus costs of bonds and credH faciiGes (1.6} (1.5)
Finance costs in respect of berrowings (57.1} (54.2)
Falr value measurements and other (5.9} (1.8}
Net finance cosls arising on defined benefit and pther emplpyee benefit schames \r 28 {20.2)
Total finance costs 80.3) {85.2)
Finance ncome

Finance income in raspect of cash and short-term investments” 104 6.8
Falr value measuraments snd othar, 16 7.3
Total finance income: 13.6 14.1
Net finance costs {68.7) (714}

1 Otherloans repayable in moré than five years includes intersat payable an interaat faté ‘swaps of £5.7m (2018; £4. 7m)..
2. Finange income in respect of cash and sharktamm nvastments inchudes interest recaivable.on interest rate. sweps of £6.9m (2018' £8.4m).




JOHN LEWIS PLC

NOTES TO THECONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
6.1 NET FINANGE COSTS (CONTINUED)

2018 2016
Em. Em
Tatatfinance costs In respect of bormowings, exciuding interest rate swapa. 51.4) “e:s)
Net Interest receivabié fn respect of interes rie swape 04 o7
Financs income i réspect of cash and shert-tenm imvesiments, excluding intores! rale swaps as 14
Mei fnance costs i respect of borrowligs and shori-term invesiments. @re {47.4)
'Fair valtie messurément afid other @4 55
Net finence costs arising Gn defined benefit reixement sch (170 {25.3)
Net finance costs arising on other amployee. henofit schemes [LA] (3.9
Net finance costa {66.T) 1.1

.Capitalised barrowing ¢osts tolakied £7:4m (2018: £8.4m) of which £6.1m (2018
£1.3m (2018 £1.2m} were capitalised within properly; piant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.2 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT
2018 Cash. Cttier 2019
mcvemenis. non-cash
£m £m £m £m
Non-currént assete
Derivative financial insiraments - - 6.2 0.2
- - 02 0.2
Current asssis
Cash and cash equivalents' 508.2 1206 - T16.8
Short-ferm investménts’ 166.0 99.0' 0.4 266.4
Derivatve financial instruments 5,2 (0.2 1.8 6.8 '
7874 7194 22, Wm0
Cuerent llabillies
Bomrawings and.overdrafts {@.1) 04  {27s0y {2750}
'Unsmo,ﬂﬁas bond transaction costs - - 0.1 1 %]
Finance Indsas ©.n 1.7 (1.5 {0.6)
Derivative financial instrumants {19.8) 26 97 (7.5
(20.8) 44 (266.7) {282.9}
Non-curent llaiilities
Borrowings {875.0) (125.0} 2750 (725.0)
Unasmortised band transaction costs 1.1 6.7 (1.4} 10.4
Falir vaiure, adustiient for hadged efamant on bongs. 11 - (0.3} 08
Finance leases - {22.6} - 20 {20.8)-
Derivative financial instruments (4.0)- - 20 {z0)
{888.4) (124.3) 27A 3sa)
“Total net debt (142.6) 99,5, 130 {30.1)
1 Resiated, see note 1,14, '
19 2618
Rlconqmatlm ol netcash flow to net deht Em £m
Increasei{decreape).n natcash and cash aguiizhents' in the yeai’ 1207 rr.8)
Cash outflow (ram movement [n-shari-tenm investments’ 990 106.0
Cash (inflow)/cutiow from movemant in ciher net debtitams 1203 93
Cash movement in net debt for the year 896 krira
Opening net dalst (1426)  (1454)
Non-cash movement in nét dobi for the year 13.0 {33.9)
Closing netdobt (30.1)  (1428)

t Reslated, see note 1.1.4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5.2 ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT (CONTINUED)
Our total borrowings and finance foase [fabdftits are summarisad befow,

Borrowings Finance “Total
loase
Em  beblites Eny
£m
‘AU28 Januacy 2017 (875.0) (24.5) (499.5)
Movements arising from finencing cash flows 4.1} 2- 14
AL 27 January 2018 {8751 {23.3) {898.4}
Movements ecising from Financing cast fows. (124.9) 17 (123.2)
[Other nori-cdsh moverenty - o5 0.5
AL 26 Janusry-2019 {4,000:0) ) ezt
‘Bomowinigh unemoriised bond transstton costs-af £40,5m (2048: £41. 1m).and e fair value adjustment for the hedged etement on bonds of £0.6m (2018:
£1.1m). '

5.3 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Shiost-term Investments: Short-{erm investments comprise iradable securities and deposits with original malurities of greater: thah 80 days
but Iess than oné year. Matuiity pericds are not the sole factor. Given the AAVNAVS have a weighted -averaga maturity of less than 80
days they have been included within Short:term Invesiments-due 1o the fact thay do not bear-an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2019 208
_Short-term (nvestments £m £m
Short-térn Irvestments* 2654 166.0

1 Raestated, ses-note 1,14,

For (i year ended 26 January 2019, the effective inferest ate on shorl-tarm:investments was 1.0% (2018: 0.5%’) and these ivestmants
hadl an average maturity of 116 days (2018; 99.days'). '

5.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Cash and cash equivalents: Gash and cash equivélents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at bank and i hand -and short-term deposits
with original maturities of less then 90 days which are-subjact lo an insignificant risk of changes in valug. In the consolitiated staterviefit of
cash flows, gt cash and cash equi‘valents compitse cagh'and cash equivalents, as defined above, net of bank averdrafts.

2019 2018

Ganhi-anid cesh sgulvalents £Em Em

Cash 2t bank and i hand 1282 1284

Shart-ierm deposits’ 588.8 4875
7168 5062

1 Restated, seanote 114,

Far the year ended 26 January 2019, the effective’ mterest rate. on short:tarm deposits was 0.6% (2018: 0.3%) and these deposits had an
avarage maturily of 3- days (2018: 1 day).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5.4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {CONTINUED)

At 26 January 2019, £19,6m (2018: £20.5m) of the Group's cash balance and £0,1m {2018::£nil) of the Group's accrued interest balance
was pledged-as collateral. This is part of the Group's.insurance arrangements. and the release of these funds Is subject to approval from
third parties.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, net cash and cash 'equivaienm are shown after deducting barik overdrafts, as follows:

2018 2018

Em £m

Cagh apd cash squivalents, as above' T18.8 - 586.2
Less bank pverdrafts - 0.1)

- Netcasty and tash squivalents 7168 "596.1

" Restated, see rote 1.14.

5.5 BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Borrowings: Borrowings ar¢ Inilially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs and subsequenty. maasured at amortised cost
Where'there is an effective relaled fair valye hedge, the movement in the falr value attributable to the hedged risk is separately disclosed.
Arrangement costs for bonds and foan facilities in respect of debt are capitalised and-ameriised over the life of the debt at a-canstant rate.
Finance costs are charged to the Income statemant, based on tha effeclive interest rate of the asgociated borrawings,

Borrowing costs atiributable to the ac;qtiisithq or congtruction of a quallfying asset are capitalised. Quatfying assets are those that take a
substantial pericd of fima 1g get ready for their intended use. Capitalisation commences wheh both expendliture on the asset and botrowing.
costs are being incurred, Capafigalion ceases when the assel is.ready for its intended use. The capitalisation tate’ used o determing the
borrowiig costs eljgible-for capifalisation is 6.5%.

2018 2010

Borrowings and Overdralts £ot £m
Current:
Bank overdraft il on
BY4% Bondy, 2019 (275.0) -
Unamorisad bond transaction costs 0.1 -
t274.9) @1
Non-current:
Bank loans (126.0] -
B%U% Bands, 2019 - (Z7sy
6% Bonds, 2025 {300.0) (300.0)
47.9% Bonds, 2054 (300.0)  (300.0)
Unamortivad bond &nd iban iransacton costs 104 M4
Fair value. adjusiment for hedged element on bonds 0.8 11

(7138)  (8528)

All borrowings are ungecured. denominatéd in Steding and are repayable on the dates shown, at par.

During the year. the-Group entered inlo new loan arrangements whith its banking pariners totaliing £125.0fm. Thése loans mature baiween
2021 and 2023,

In Aprll 209 the Group repeid the 2019 Bond amounting to £275.0n,
B2




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.6 FINANCE 1.EASE LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Leased assets: Assets used by Hhe Group which have been funded through finance leases on ferms that fransfer to the Group.
substantially ali the risks and rewards. of ownership are capltalised al the inception of the fease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if
lower, -at the present value of the minimum lease paymenis, Lease paymenis ‘are apportionad belween: finance charges and rediction of
the lease Nability so as to- ‘achieve a constant Tata of interest on the remaining balance of the Gability. The interest element of finance lease

Tentals is charged to the (ncome statement. Capitalised joased assels arg depreciated over the shorter of the eslimaled usefif life. of the:

asset or the |ease term.

Leases where the Group does not tslain substantally all the risks and rewartds of ownership ol the agset are classified as opetating leasas,
Operaimg fease rental payments. other than condingeni rentals, are recognised as an éxpenge in the Income statemant on a-siraight-ling
basis over the lease termi. Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the Income statement when incurred.

Operating laase premlums. and inducements are recognised in current and non-urrent assels or tiabillies as appropriate, and amortised or
refeaged on a straight-line.basis over the lease lerm.

Sub-leage income is recognised as other operating income on & straight-line basis over the sub-lsase term, less allowances for $iluations
where recovery is doubtful. (See noté 3.5).

For the year ending 25 January 2020, the Group will adopt tha new accounting standard for laases, IFRS 16. See noles 1.1.4 and 3.5 for.
turther detals. o

. 2619. 2018
Financa lease Habilities Em -£m
The munimum lesse payments under finance leases fall chie as follows.

Net later than one yeer (1.3) {1.8)
1:ater (hén onw year but not mors than five {8 €5
tore than five years (20.4) (35.2)

6.5 ¢2.3)

’ Fulire finance ch g0 on finance lease! 154 180
‘Prasent valus of finance lease liabities {2193 (23.3)
OF which:

Not Laler than odé year- 0.5 k)
Later than one year but not more thap fiva {2.2) {2.6)
fM;lh-n_ﬁy&_yem‘ {s8.4) {2D.0)

The Group's finance lease liabilities refate to property, plant and equipment that have been <lassified as finance lesses In accorfance with
1AS 17. o
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTI NUED.)'
6 PENSIONS

IN THIS SECTION
This section sets out our net pension Nability, which Is the cumrent cost-of meeting future defined penslion paymerits, offset by
‘assats held by the scherie to meet these liabifities.

6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group’s pension schemé is miade up of two parts: the defined benafil section and the defined contritiytion section. The defined benefit
section provides a- non-cnniributory pension in retirement based on Parlneis' pensionable pay and pensionable service. The - defined
contribytion section is. where contributions made by Partners and the Group are Investéd In a choick of funds and then the contributions
and investinent retuns are used to buy benefits on retifement.

The Consolidated balance sheet includes a refirament benefit liabllity, which is the expacted future: cash flows to be paid out by the defined
benefit seclion of the pension scheme, offset by assets hakd by the scheme to-meet these liabiliiies. The expected Fabilties are calculated
by ari acfuary using a number of financial and demographic assuimptions whilst the-assats are heid at fair vakie. Changes -afising from the
Pension Benefit Review, which principally reduced ihe rate of defined benefit pension build up, were effective from 1 Aprl 2018,

The defined contribution section of the scheme is evaiiable to alf Partners. Once Pariners complete five years' service with the Group, they
autormatically join the definad benefit saction of the scheme.

“The defined contribution section of the pension scheme pays contributions into Individual investment funds on Partners’ behalf. There is
therafore no liability on tha Group balance sheet relating to the defined.contibution section of the pension scheme.

This note details the financial and demographic assumptions made in estimating the defined benefit obligation; together with an analysis of
the componants of the pansion Jiability. 1t also explains where these amounts have been recorded in the Consolldated balante sheet and
the Consolidated income stalement.

ACCOUNTING POLICY

Employee benefits: The defined benefit scheme assets are held separately from the Group. The cost of pioviding benefits under the
defined bericfit section of the scheme is determined using the projecied unit credit actuariat valuation method, which measures the liability.
based on service completed and allows. for projected future salary increases.

The current service cost is. the increase in_the present value of the retirement benefit oblagatmn resuling from Pariners’ service in the.
curent year. The-current service.cost is included within operating profitin the Consolidated income statement:

The past servica cost représants the change in the present value of the relirement benefit ohligation in'refation to Partners' servica in pridt
years. This may arise as a result of amendments made to the defined bénefit scheme during the year, or a reduction in the number of
Pariners covered by the-scheme. Past service tosts are afso included within operating profit, along with any gains or losses on getiiement.

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes due to experience adiusiments. and changes in -actuarial asaumptions are charged
or credited 1o equity in Qther comprehensive-income during the. perlod in which they arise.

There are a number of unfunded pension. lJabFlmes. where the aclusrially- aseessed costs of providing the banefit sre charged to the.
Caonsolidated ihcoma statsment. There aré no assats supporting these arangemeants.

Contributions to the Group's. dafined contribution section-are. charged to the Income stdtement as they ‘are incumed. The Group has no
furthat obligation-once the contributions have besri made.

The Group also haé a scheme to provide up to six months paid leave after 25 years'.service. (long leave). The liability relating to. long leave
is included within Provisions in note 4.4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Ratirement. benefits: This section detslls the assumptions used ta calculete the tolal defined benefit-pension obligation. This is the
asfimate 6f tha current cost of mesting fiture berefits 10'be paid dut by the pension schems. The calculation raquires the application.of a
discount rate to estimate the. present day fair value of the pension.payments, as well as assumptions on mortality rales, salary Incream
and inflation. Given the §ize of the Group's defined beriefif obligation; relatively small movaments in these: assumplions could cause a
material adjustment to the carrying amount -of the obligation. -Sensitivity analysis .on the discount rate and other key -assumptions is
provided in-note 6.1.5.

Retirement benefits ‘ ) ) .
Tha pénsion. scheme operated by the Group is-the Johi Lewis Partnership. Trust for Pefsions. The schame inchuiés & funded final salary
defined benefit section, providing pensions apd death benefits to members; and Is open to new fhembars, All contribulions to the defined
benefit section of the pensian-scheme are funded by the Group. The schieme also-inciudes a defined contribution section. Contributions: to
the defined contribution section of the scheme are made by both Partners ‘and the Group,
The scheme s governed by a corporate. Trustee which Is independent of the. Group The Trusiee is responsible for the operation and
governance of the scheme, Including making decisions regarding the schemeé's investment strategy, During 2014/15, the Chairman,
Partnership Board and Parinership Councll of John Lewis Partnership plc approved changes to the level and fotrm of future provision of
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.{CONTINUED)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
pension benefits.lo Pariners. This. was the output of the Pension Benglit Review which commenced in 2013, The changes fook place in two

‘stiges. From.1 April 2015 the walting period to join the defined banefit seclion of the scheme was increased from three to five years. Then

from 1 April 2016, the principal changes were 1o reduce the arinual defined benefit ccrual rate fromi 1/60th to 11120t of final. salary, and to
provide an enhanced level of. defined contribution pension for ihose Partners who have completed the walting period. Other changes,
applying only to‘any pension built up after 1 April 2016, included linking the Group nommal refirement agé (o the State. Pension Age, and a.
changa in the rate of pension intreases in payment.

Op 20 January 20117, the Group anneunced changes In the way that the annual discretionaty increass for pansion in refirement buik up
before-6 April 1997 wculd bé applled Prior to January 2017, increases in_pansion in retiremenit for pansionabie_service built up bafore &
April 1987 had been granted in line with RPI inflation (up 1o a maximum of 5%) From January 2017, this increasé is expecied lo be
granted in Iine with-CPl inflation (up 1o 2 maximum of 2.5%).

The Group's pension scheme is not affected by-a judgement pubished on 26 Oclober 2018 resulting from a recent High Court hearing in

respect of the equallsation of guaranided minimom pehsions. This is because the Group’s pension scheine.did not Sontract out of the

Additional State Pension (formarly-known as the State Earnings Refaled Pension Scheme].

The Group is cumeiifly engaged in dicussions with Phrtnership Councl o the jevel and foim of future provision of pension benefifs fo
Partnars.

Funding valuation

The pengion scheme is subject to & full acluarial valuation every three years using assumptions agreed belween the Truslee and the
Group. The purpose of this vatuation is 10 design a funding plan 1o ensure that the pension schemia has sufficient funds avafable to meet
tuture benefit payments. The rost recent valuation was carried out by an independent professionally quatified actuary as at 31 March 2016
and resulted in a funding deficit.of £479,0m (31 March'Z013: £840.0m). The market value of the assels of ife scheme as 21 31 March 2015
was £4,377,0m (31 March 2013: £3,168.0m), The actuarial valuation showad thal these assets wers sufficient to cover 90% (31 March
2013: 79%) of the banefits which had actrued 6 members.

The valiration caleulated under the funding valtiation basis of £478,0m is different from theé accountmg valuation which [s prasented on tha
Balance sheet in the Group's financial statements of £468:1m. Differences arise. between the funding valuation and accounting valuation,

mainly du to the usa of ditferent assumptions 1o valug the liabiliies and. changes in market conditions between the two valuation dates, of
31 March 2016 and 26 January 2019,

For funding valvation purposes the babilities are determined based on assumptions set by the- Trusiee following Gonsultatian with the
Group and scheme acluaries, The discount rate used for the most recant funding valuation is based on index linked gilt yields phs 1.6%,

in the financial statements the Nabilities are determined in accordance with 1AS-19. Tha discount rate used for tw actgunting vaiuation js
baséd on high quality (AA] corporate bond yiekds of an appropriate term..

As-a result of the funding valuation, the Group and the Trustee agieed to put in place 2 plan to eliminats the deficit of E479.0mover 8 10-

year pericd, Contributiohs agréed as part of this plan are as follows:

- A redugtion in the contribution rate from 16.4% 1o, 10.4% of eligible monthly payroll;

~ Deflgit re:iudng confributibns from 1 Aprl 2016 1o 31 March 2019 of £33.0m per annum 1o be pald in equal monthly instalments,
increasing by 3% at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018;

- DBeficit reducing contributions from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2028 ol £6.6m per-annum lo be.paid in equal :nonthly inatalments,
‘increasing .on 31 March each yaar by 3%: and

= One-off contribuions of £100,0m and £50,0h due biy 31 January 2017 and 31 March 2017 respecfively, of which the £100,0m was paid
on 18 January-2017 @nd £50.0in was paid on 24 February 2017;

The-balance of the deficit is-expectéd 1o be met by investment returns on the scheme assets, Tolal contributions to the scheme . 2019/20,
under this agreement ane expacted 1a be £908.5m, sibject kv any changes as a result of the next trisnnial acluarial valuation of the scheme
(as at 31 March 2013}, which will be completed during the 2018/20 financial year,

Subsequent to the funding valuation being agreed, it wes identified that ceriain pension scheme members wera omitied from the
cakcutalion of the pension labilities: Including thase atditional members increasad the estimated pension llabiliifes by £31.0m (C.8%), fiom
£4,856.0m to £4,887.0m; As a resull. the. Group has agreed to payménts, in addifien to'the contributions described abova, of £6.1m made
in December 2017 and a further £3.2m per annum payable in-equal monthly instalments from 1 Aprit 2018 fo-31 March 2028, increasing on
31 March gach year by 3%.

Pension commmnenfs racognised in these accounts have bean calculated based on the most recent actuanal valvation, as at 31 March
2016, which has been updated by actuaries lo rofiect the -assets and Kablities of the scheme as. at 26 January 2019, celculated on
assumptions:that are appropriate for accounting under fAS g,



JOHN LEWIS PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

6.1 RETIREMENT BEN_EEFITS (CONTINUED)

Risk ranagement . .

The.cost of the scheme {0 the Group depends upon a number of assumphions about future events, Fulure tonbibutions may be higher
or lower than those currenfly agreed if these assumptions aré ot bome out in practice or if different assumptions are agreed in the fulure:
Specific fisks include:

Changes in future expetiations of price inflation: The majorily of the schems's benefit cbligations. are tinked to inflation and higher
inflation will iead to higher Eabllities. Hence, an ircrease in inflation will increase the deficit: This is offsét in pért by the Trustse's liabillty
matching scheme as detailed in 6:1.4; o

Changes in the dizcount rate used to value penaion liabilities: A lower discount rate will lead £ a higher presant value being placed 6n
future pénsion payments. Hence, a reductioh in- discount. rate Wil increase the deficil. This % offset in part by the Trustee’s llability
matching scheme as detalled in 6.1.4; '

The retum on assets being lower than assumed: If the rale. of growth In assets falls befow the discount rate used fo value the Habilifies,
then the pension deficit will increase. This Is offset in part by the Truslee's investment strategy of holding:a highly diversified portfolia of
retum seeking assets as delailed in 6.1.4; . ’

Falls in assst values not being majched by simifar-falls in the value of liabilities; As the majority of assets held by the scheme are not.

matched to the liabilities of the scheme, a fall In plan assats will lead to.an increase In the deficit. This is offset in part by fhe Truslee's:

investment strategy of holding a highly diversified portfolic of return seeking assets as detailed in 6.1.4; and

‘Unanticipated ingreases In iife expectancy feading fo an increase in the scheme's liabilties: An increase in e expectancy would mean

pensions are expected to be paid for a longer pericd, so increasing the liabfity and the scheme's deficit. This is offset in part by the:
scheme applying a Life Expectancy .Adjustment Factor, whereby future pensions coining into payment are adjusied to allow for
incraases in fife expectancy. -




JOMN LEWIS PLC
NOTES 70 THE GONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6:1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

6.1.1 ASSUMPTIONS

This section détalls the assumptions used 16 calculate the total dafined Denefit pansion obfigation. This & the gstimate of thie: current cost
of niaeting future. benefits to be paid out:by the pension scheme. The calculation includes applying a discount rate 10 estimate the’ present
day fair value -of the penalon paymenis, allowing far fufure expected increases in earnings and pension payménts. and the life expactancy
of the members of the pension scheme.’

Financial assumptions )
‘Scheme agsets afe-stated at markef values st 26 January 2019.

The fallowing financial assumptions have been used lo value the abligatiori:

2018 2018
Discount rale - 7.80% 275%
Future-retai grice infiation (RP() 346% A725%
Fuiure consumer piica inffition (CP1- Z15% 225%
Incraase in-samings. -3.25% 3.43%
ncrease in pensions — i payment
- Pra-Apiit 1987 166%  170%
- Aped 1987-Aprl 2018 2.95% 3.00%
.~ Pogt-Apri 2016 1.585% 1.70%
Increase in pensions — deferred 248%  2326%

Nominal discount rate: IAS 19 Employae Benefits requires that the nominal discount rate is set by refergnce 1o market yislds on high
quality corporate bonds of a suitdble term consistent with the scheme cash’ flows. Wiere ihére are nio high. quality ccrpurate bands of
apprapriate duration to refarance, ah extrapolationfrom other bond yields s required,

The Group's pension scheme hag tash flows ‘spanning out over 50 years and an average duration of 22 years, Al long dufations there are
few suitable high quality corporate honds to reference in setting the nominal discount rate assumption, The madel adopled by the Group is
a yield curve approach, based on carporate bonds wilhin the iBoxx. AA corparate bond indéx. Al very fong durations, where therd are nio
high. gquality corparate bonds: of appropriate duration to reference, the yield curve is extrapolated based on ocbservable corporate bond
yields. of mig to long gurations reflecting expected yields-on figh quality corporate bonds over the duration of the Group’s pension scherme.

Increases in earnings: Incraases in &amings are.projected lo be at-3.25% undil 2022 and theh &t a long-term raté of 1.0% ahove
corsumer prlce inflation (2018 1.0% above. consumer price inflation). Increases in pensions in. payment are projected to be 0.50% below
consumer price infiation (2018. 0.55% below consumér price inflation} for pénsidnable satvice, built up belore April 1897, 0.20% {2018:
025%) below retail price Inflation for pansmnable service buill up between April 1997 and April 2016; and 0,50% (2018: 0.55%) below
consumer price inflation for pensionable service buill up after April 2016, refieciing the impact 'of a cap oni the level of pension increases.
Increases in deferred pensions are projecied to be in ling with consumer price inflation,

Demographic assmnptiuns

The postreliremant mortality assumiptions used in valuing ‘the pensmn liahilities were based on tha 57 Ugnt (2018 52 Lightj saries
standerd tablés. Based on scheme experienca, the probabilly of death at @ach age was multiplied by 127% for males. and 106% for
females. Future improvements in life expectancy. have been allowed for in line with the mosi recent CMi 2017 provemants model with a
smoothing pararmeter of 7.0 (2078 CMI 2016, -smocthing paratnater of 7.5), subject to a lofg-term trand.of 1.25%.

The average life’ expectancies assumed were as follows:

2019 2013

Min  Women Man Women

Avéirage Ee expectancy for & 85 year old {ir yedrk) 24 236 218 23.8
Average life expectancy at age 65, Tor a 50 year ofd {in yeams) 220 246 2.5 25.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.2 AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“This section details the amounts fecogniged in our consalidaled financial statements In relation to our pension scheme: This congists of the
net perision liability, recngmsed on our Balance sheet, tha cost 6f providing .the pension benefit over the year, recognised in the Income
statomant, and.acluarial ‘gains and losses (being changes. in assumpﬂons or assumplions not belng borne out in praclice) which are
recognised in ihe Statement of comprehensive income/(expense). The movements are broken down Into.the key componants that impact
the pension scheme.

2039 2018
Amounts récognised in the balance sheet £&mn Em
Defingd henefit obligation for funded arrangements (6i060.0)  (6,200.0)
Defined banefit obligation for unfunded amrangemenis {23.0) @0
Totgl defiied bensfit obligation (6,083.0)  (6224.0)
Fotal value of schems assets 66149 54927
Defined benafit kabliky af end of year {466.1) {r31.3)

The costof praviding the pengion scheme over the year, recognised in the Consolidated incame statement, is broken down as follows:
Sarvice cost is the tost to the Group of future benefils earnad by members which is attributable ta-members' service in the current period.

Contribution expense is in respect of the Group's contributions fo the defined contritiution section :of tha ‘pension scheme and cash
.supplements in respect of certain Pariners in lleu of fulure pensian accrual.

Administrative expenses are in relation to the pension scheme.
Net interest an the net defined benafit iability is made up of the interest.cost oh pension liabilities and interast income on pansion assets:

2019 2018
Amounts recognised in the Income statoment’ £m £m
Cuvrent service cost (134.6) {138.7) '
Contribution sxpense’ (128 (@6.9)
Adminisirative expenses — fundéd by the perision scheme (84} (5.3}
Adminisirative expetises —furided by tha employer (5.9} 4.7}
Total opérating axpenses @ied)  @iséy
Net intarest an net dofindd benefit lability (17.0) “(25.3) '
Total pansion charge (z6d)  (2409)

' Indudes Group eeritributions o the-defined contribution sectitn of the pension schema of £68.5m (2018! £62.5m), logsther with cash suppieinienis in respect of
-cortain Pariners in lisu of fulure pension accoal of £4.0m [2018; £44m).

. 2019 2018
Amaunts recognised In egquity Em £m
éeh_un on plan essets (iess)/greater than the discoun rale’ 5.0} 243,2-
Remeaturementa:
jgalwﬂqss_]ﬁunﬁ\!ﬂnew_'ln finaricial assumplions 1849 (87.7
~ gain from changes In demographic. assumplione 102.4 1245
~0Wmu,bainq005ﬁ3) 0.4 (22.9)
Total gatg recognised In.equity 272y 2475
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;connuueu)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

6.1.3 RECONCILIATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The nst deﬁned kenefit pension liabilty is the dlfferance betweoan the tolal pension liabillty- (belng the expected cost of making future
defined baneflt pension paymenits) and scheme assels. The lable below detais movemerits in {he net defined benefit pansion Lability
during the year. Movements in scheme assets are explained furtherin 6,1.4.

Movements in the net defined benefit-kability are.as follows:

Pension expénse, which is-the cost associated with groviding defined benefit bension benefits over the yaar. This is equal to the total
pension charge sat out in note 6.1.2, but excluding coniribution expense and administrative expenses met diréctly by the employer.

Contdbutions paid into the scheme will réduce the value of the:nal pension Tiability.

Gains or {osses recognised in equity relating to returnis on plari assets being different to the discount tate arid remeadsurements [@xplained
furthsr below).

. . ) 2018 2018
Reconciliation of net defined bonefit Kability £m £m
Netdefined bl liabiity 2 beginning-of yeau ) aonn
Pansior expense (157.7) 169.3)
Contriufions: 1482 2042
Total palna recognised in equity Far ki 247.8
Not defined bonofit liability st and of yoar |458.1} 731.3) ‘

The tolal pension ligbility (or defined benefil obligation). represents the eurrent-cost of meeting the fulure benefits i ba paid out by the.
scheme. The movements in the defined benefit obligation are broken down into key areas that meact he ohllgation as folows:

‘Senvice cosl s the cost {o the Group of fifure benefits samed by members which are aftributable to members’ service in the current period.
The. service-cost is.charged to the Income statement, along with any galns or lossas on settlemsnt,

Future pensjon obfigations are slated-at present valve. A discaunl rate is used o calculate the current value of the fulurs liabifity. The
interest on pensions liabitiies s the umwinding of this discount rate and is charged 10 the Incoma statement within net finance costs.

Remeasurements arige from the uhcartainty in making assumptions sbout future events when calculating the iiability. These may arise
from. changes in assumptions, for example movements in the discount rale, or experience adjusiments which résult from differences’
between the assumptions made and what actually cccurred over'the penicd. Remeasuroments are recognised In equity and shown in the,
Stalement of campiehensive incomel{expense).

‘Any cash'benefits paid out by the scheme will réduce the defined benefit obligation.

. L 2019 2018
Reconciijation of defined bonefit obiligation tm Em
Defined henefit obligation at beginning of yosr 6,2240)  (6.059.0)
Cuyrant safvice cogt (134.6) {138.7)
Interest ori pention liabilfties {189.2) {173.7)
Remeasursmants
- gainffloss) from changes i financial gssumpbons 1849 (97.7)
- gain from chinges in-demographic assumplions 1024 124.5
*— expatenct gains/iiosses) o4 (22.5)
‘Benefils paid. 1674 1431
Definod bonofit gbligation atand of yoar (8.0830)  (6.224.0}

Thé scheme liabilities are 31.5% In respect of active schame participants, 41.8% in respect-of deferred scheme participants and 26.7% in
respact of réfieces.
The weightad average duration of the scheme liabities at the end of the year is 22 years (2018 22 years).
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NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)-
6.1.3 RECONCILIATION OF RETIREMENT BENEFITS CONTINUED

The pension scheme holds & number of investments- fo meet future pension payments, referred to as the assets of the scheme, This note.
details movements in'the value-of pension assets duting the year, Tha maveniants are broken down into key areas that impact the pension
assets as follows:

Intereat income on gssets mprasents the expected refurn on investments if if is in line with the diecount rate. It.is calculated &% the discount:
rate at the beginning of the year muitiplied by the value. of the assels at the beginning of the year. This is recognised within nat finance
costs'in the Income statement..

Return on plan assefs greater/{less) than the discount rate represents how much grealer or less the actual return is than thie Inferest
income, This is récognised it equity and shown in the Statement of cemprehankive incomes{expensa).

Any cash banefits paid ‘out or'expenses.paid by the scheme will reduce the value of the scheme's assets.
Contributions paid into the scheme-will increase the value of the ‘scheme’s assels.

. 2013 2018
ReconcBation of value of assets £m £m
Value of asseis at the beginning of year 54927 5.046.3
Intermst income on assets 1522 1484
Return on plan assets (less)igreater-than discount rate (15.9) 432
Benefits. paid (157.1) {143.1)
Adninistrative expenges paid’ {8.1) 53)
Contibutions 1482 204.2
Valus of assdts at the e 6 year 56949 54827
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NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEM_ENTS {CONTINUED)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

6.1.4 ANALYSIS OF ASSETS
2018 2018
Quoted  Unguated Total Total Quo Unquoted Total Total
Em ‘Em £m % -£m £m £m %
Equities
UK W2 344 67.3 12% 55.4. ag.e 95,2 1.7%.
Restof the word 815 5989 18408 20.2% 623.0°  1,058.4 1,681.4 30,6%
Bonds
Gavérmment — Rast of the Worldl 102.3 28 104.8 1.8% 6.7 68, 820 15%
Corporates — UK 52 18 7.0 0.A1% 248 21 60 0%
Citporatet — Riest.of the world 965 05 1764 3% 52.2 124.4 1788 g
i
UK - 6603 550.3 9.5% - 5154 §15.4 .9.4%
Reslof fhe world - 0.4 i4 <tA% - 0.8 0.8 <0 A%
Alternative assels
Liabdsty drivan mvastments. - 9r.7 9377 i6.7% - 187 8487 15.5%
Hedge funds - 10029 10023 17.9% - 857.8 957.8 17.4%
Private equily - L7TY ) 3409 8.1% - 204.0 294.0 54%
Other affemative assets 6703 K708 11.9% - &71.6 a71.6 122%
Cash aiud ather 1168 - 1188 2.1% 164.1 - 184.1 3.0%
Total market value of asssts . 9935 46214  B6149 100% D743 45184 54827  100.0%
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NOTES TO THE GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.1 RETIREMENT BENEFTTS (CONTINUED)
6.1.4 ANALYSIS OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Trustee's investment sirategy a6 58t out in thair Statement of Investment Principles dated 27 Seplember 2018 is to hold 80%:of assets
in & return seeking portfoiio that aims to reduca conicentrations of sk by diversifying across a range of asset classes. dnd gaographies. The
remalnlng assets are used to provide a llabllity matching portfolio with the intention of matching movements in the assessed values' of the
penslon Tiabilities -due to movements In inlerest rates and Inflation, In 2016 the Trustee initiated a three to five year interest rate. ang
inflation hadging prégrammie which has increased tha lavel of liabifity malching to 60% in line with its stated larget. As this will be achieved
using derivatives.and repurchase agresments, (he allocation to return seeking assels is notintended to reduce.

Equities, honds and certain alternative assets which are traged on active markets aré included gt the quotad price, which is normally the
id price. Properties are valued by independent valuers who have recent experience of the locations and type of properties held. Equities
and alternalive assets that are nefther quoted nor fraded on an active market are stated at fair value estimales provided by the managér of
the investmient br fund:

Liability driven investments’ include. UK govemiment bond and cesh equivalent assets valued at £2,397.0m (2018 £1,561,7m) and
-asgoclated repurchase agreements and swaps valued at £{1,460.2)m (2018:£{713.0ym}. This is part of the Trustee's interect rate and
inflation hedging stralegy.

Other allamative. assets incude investments fn infrastructura funds of £275.3m (2018 £2368.6m), insurance linked funds £193.6m (2018;
£201.8m). private debt £205.8m (2018: £233.4m) and- equity oplions-£3.7m (2018 £nil).

Cash and other includes cash deposits of £101.7m (208: £118.3m), forward foreign exchange contracts valued af £13.8m (2018: £40.3m)
and other items valyed at £0.3m (2018: £5.5m)

- 2019 2018
Actual return on assety £m £m
Interest mcome on assels 182.2 1484
Retum on plan. assets (essiigreater than discount rate (160} 2432
Actual return on assets 137.2. 3916

6.1.5 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The defined. benefit deflcit Is volatile given that it is based or & number of long-term assumptions, which are likely. to changa over time.
Niustrated below is fhe sensitivity of lhe Balance sheet position to changes in key assumplions.

“The sensitivities have bieen deriviéd using approximate methods which are consistent with the rest of the disclosure:

£m % change
Deficl & ot 26 January 2049 {4eg.1}
Sensitivity of 0.1% increzse to:
— Discoynt rate’ 550 "
—Retadl price iInftation (35.0} B
— Consumer price inflation {20.0) .3
~ Balary Increanes {30:0) &4
Sonsitvity of ong-year inctesse in life expectancy (23c.0) won

1 The'dscount rate sensitivity allbows for theimpact of the Trustee’s invastmant nltalngy As sl out innote B.1:4 this s designed tnoﬁselnwvements i lhe d|scu|.||1t
ruls and theirimpact on the Hatdities.,
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NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GONTINUED)
6.1 RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
6.1.6 OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

JLP Scottish Limited Parthership
On 30 January 2010, {he Group entered into an arrangeinent with the Pension Schame Trustee to ‘addréss an element of the' scheme
deficit that éxisted at that time.

The Group established two partnershins, JLP. Scottish lerled Paﬂnershfp and JLP Scoltish Parinership, whict:-are. bath consolidated
within these Group financial stateménts,

Together with another Group company, JLP Scotlish Limited Partnership provided sufficient capltal to JLP Scottish Partnership to anable it
te procure property assels wilhj a market valug of £150.8m from othier Group companiés. The Grouy retalns control over these properties,
inciuding thie flexibility. to substituts aliernative properiies: The properties held in JUP Scotfish Parinership have been leased back to John
Lewis picand Waltrose Limited,

As a partner in JLP Scottish Limited Paitnerstiip, the pension scheme is entilled to an annual share of the profits of the J{P Scottish
Limited Partnership each year over 21 years, At-theend of this period, the “partnership capilal allocatad fo the' pension schéme will be
reassessed, dapending-on the funding posilion of the pension scheme at.thal time, with a potentjal value in the range of £0.5m to £99.5m.
At that point, the Group may be required to transfer tfiis amount In cash to the scheme.

Under IAS 18, the ifivestment held by the pension.scheme in JLP Scottish Limitad Parlnership, a consclidated entily, does not reprasent a
plan asset for the purpose of" the Group's consaldated financial Slatements. Aor.ordmgiy fhie pension daficit positioh presented in these
consalidated accounts does hot reflect the £71,7m (2048: £86.6m) investment in JLP Scoltish Limited Partnership heid by the pension
scheme, The diatribution of -JLP Scotish Limited Partnership profits 1o the penision schéme Is reflecied as pension contributions in theze
consolidated financiaf slaternents on acash basis.

John Lewis Properiles plc guarantee

A3 part of agreeing the funding valuation in 2017, John Lewis Properties plc provided a corparate guarantee lo the pension scheme. This
;guaraniee means that if- John Lewis pic fails to make Bny paymients due 10 Ihe scheme for any reason, than the pension scherme can.claim
against John Lewls Properfies plc forthgse payments. As part-of the guaramee John Lewis Properties plc is required fo maintain at least
£800.0m of net assets. The guarantes has Improved the recovery la the pension scheme in the event of nigoivency of the-Group.
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7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

IN THIS SECTION

This ‘section. sets out the policies.and’ procedures applied to manage the financial risks to whilch the Group is exposed A
breakdown of our derivative financial instruments is given here.as they. are useil by the Group to manage financiat volatility. An
analysis of aur financial assats and Habllities s alsc given.

7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

7.1.1 CAPITAL AND LONG-TERM FUNDING RISK

The Grouip's. objectives whan managing capilal are to safeguard its ability to continue as‘a giing conicem, pravide refurns for ifs Partners
ard to maintain a prudent level of funding. The Group Is a long-term business, held in Trust for ‘the benefit of its Partners. The employae
-ownership model means that i s not able 1o raise equity extemally.

The Group's capital management: strategy is. 1o maintain a prudent tapital structure, seeking to ensure the long-term financial sustainability
of the Grotp by maintalning a financial sk profie consistent with an investmeni grade. creqit rating. Although the Group does not have an
-gxternal_credit raiing, it routinely monitors s capital and liquidity requirements, primarily ihrough' the Debt Ratio (see page '6), whilst
maintaining an appropriate laval of cash ‘and committed debt headraom and a managed debt maturily profile o reduce refinancing risk and
-eqsure continuity of funding. Forms of barrowing include, bond issues, bank: debt, sssets acquired via financd leasas, assels obitained for
use via operating leases and the pension déficit.

7.1.2 UQUIDITY RISK

In line with the Partnership Board approved Treasury Standard, the Group is required to hold a minimum amount of liquidity, made up of a
mixiure of cash and undrawn commitiad credi facilities. L;quidlty reguirements are.managed in line with shord and long-term -cash flow
forecasts and reviewed against the Group's debt portfolio and matirrity profile. Surplus &ash is invested in interest bearing accounts, short-
term deposits and other short-term invesiments with- sufficient, prudent liquidity determined by the' above mentioned cash flow forecasts.
The Group activaly Feviews and mariages its cash holdings, sources of debt and commitied credit facilifids, Greater emphasis has been
plsced on cash balances providing a material portion of the Group's overall Irqusdfty with undrawn  committed credit facilities
compiementing these balances. The Group has a £450.0m. committed credit faility, maturing in Nevember 2021 and a-£50.0m committad
credit facility maturing in March 2021. At the year-end, the Group had undrawn committed credit facilities-of £500.0m (2018: £500.0m). In
-addition fo these facilities, the Groyp had listed bonds at the year-end totalling £875.0m (2018: £875.0m), of which £275.0m matured in
April 2018, with £300.0m due to mature-in 2025 and the remaining £300.0m due to mafure in 2034, The bonds have fixed: coupons, Bank
loans totalling £425.0m {2018: £nil) were agreed during the year, of which £75.0m matures in 202 and £50.0m in 2023, The loans have
variable interest payments. The maturity profiles of finangial debt are set outin note 7.3,

The Group's listed bonds, bank loans and committed credit. faclities contain financlal covenants, Throughout the year the Group
inalntalned comfortable headroom against ils covendints and is' expected to do so into the foresesabile future:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS {CONTINUED)
74,2 LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) '

The fallowing analysis shows the coniractual undiscountad cash flows. payable under inancial Hiabilities and derivative financial liabilities at
the Balance sheei dats:

Due Dus Due
‘within ~ betwsen  2years
1 yoat tand 2 " and.
£€m yoars ‘beyond’
£&m £m
Non-dertvative financlal liabEities
Bomowings and ovardrafte @750 - (12670)
t pryménis on berovings {52.2) (342 (2542
Financelaase liabliies (+.3 {1:3} (33.9)
Trade and other payables n320.0 {2.2) -
Diecivativa financial Rahiitee
Derivativa cosracts - raceipts 2604 70.6 248
Derivativé confracts — payments : (360) (72.3) (23,55
AL 36 Jangary 2018 {1.661.2} @4 {10120
Due Bue Due
wilhin betwuten 2 yaprs
1 year Tand 2 and
£m years hayond
£m Em
Non-derivative financial liabiRtisn
Borrowings and-avendrafis® @1 {275.0) (600.D)
Intierest payments on borrowings (34.2)° 134.2) (283.1)
Finance Jaase liabdives 0.5 {1.4) {39.4)
Trade and other payables (1,386.2) {0.3) -
Darivative financisl llabiities
Derivalive coniracts < receipls 835.1 g7 307,
Lierivalive Comracts — payments (43.2) {us;5) (31,51
AL2T January 2018- {1,456.1) (332.8) (8236}

1 Reslaten, see noly 1,14

For the purposes of this note, the foreign currency element of forward foreign currency contracts is translated at spot rates prevailing at the
year-end.
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7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED).

7.4.3INTEREST RATE RISK

In order to manage the risk of interest rate Auctuations on the Group’s financial debt and cash, the Group targets a range of fixed and
fioating rate dabt in line with the Partnership Board approved Treasury. Standard. An analysis of the Group's financial liabllities is detaited in
note 7.3: Exposures 1o interest: rate fluctuations areé managed, when required, psing interest rate ‘derivatives, The Group hés convered
£100.0m of fixed rate debt Lo flcating rate debt using interest rate swap contracts. The interest rate awap contracts are designated as- fair
value hedges and fair value movements are recognised within the Income statemant. Derivative financial instroments recogriisad A fair
value hedges during the year were effective.

7.1.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group uses derivalive fipancial instruments to manage exposures 1o movements in exthange rates arising from transactions’ with
overseas based suppliers and other organisations. Foreign exchange managemenl committees exist for each of Waitrose & Partners and
John Lewis & Partners, amd-they meet regularly lo oversee the foreign exchange purchasing activities for each brand. Foreign currency
exposures are hedged primarily usinig forward foreign exchange contracss: covering up lo 100% of forecast direct exposures on & rofling
basis. Forward foreign exchange contracis used to. hedge. forecast currency requirements are designated as cash flow hedges with fair
value maverients recognised 1n equily. Derivative financial instiuments that were designated as cash flow hedges during the year were
-effactive. At the Balanca sheet date, the notional value.of apen forward foreigm currency contracte of £418.5m (2018: £437.1m} had been
entered into, to hadge purchases in foreign. cumericies which will mature over the neit. 18 months,

In order to help manage its indirect. currency risk; the Group heid $200.0m of Sterling/US dollar options and £100.0iMm 6f Sterling/Euro
options at theé Balancé sheet date and as at the date of this report. Fair value movements in the option contracts are recognised within the
Income statement The indirect risk being hedged is defined as the Group's economic exposuré to the change in grice of goods and.
sarvices which have foreign cufrency irput Costs, but which are predoniinantly paid fof In: Sterling,

7.1.8 CREDIT RISK.

The Graup has no significant exposure 1o an indfvidual customer's eredit risk due. to transactions being principally of a high volume, low
value and short maturity. Cash deposifs and other financial instruments give rise to credit risk on the amounts dua from counterparties.
‘These risks aré managed by resticting such transactions to an approved list of counterparties, who have an Investment grade credit rating
by at least two of. the three primary rating agencles. Appropriate credit Hmits are designated to each countérperty.

Thé Group considers ils maximum exposure to credit risk Is as follows:

2019 2018

£m £m

Trade and cther receivables 1298 142.5
Shiort-tem ivastmants' 2854 1460
Cash and cash equivaients' 7468 596.2
Derivative financial instruments 7.0 52
1,419.0 %099

1 Restated, see nots 1.1:4,

7.1.6 ENERGY RISK.

The Group operates fisk management processes for the energy costs associated with the | Group s. activities. The Group’s enargy policy is
reviewed by an -enérgy committee, which meets regularly lo review pncmg exposwe fo diesel. elechicity and gas consumption and
determines stratégies for forward purchasing and hedging of enargy costs using fiexible purchase contracts and by entering info over-the-
counter diesel swap confracts,

Diese! cost exposures are hedged using over-the-counter diesel swaps covering up fo 100% of forecast direct exposures on a rolling basis.
Diesel swaps used o hedge foretsst diasgl requirements are designated as fair value hadges with fair vélue mbvements reccgrilsed in
profit or joss. Derivative financial instruments- that were - deslgnated as fair value hedges during the year were offéctive, At the Balance.
sheet.date, the notional value of open diesel swaps of £1.1m {2018: £1.0n) had been entered intd; 1o hedge purchases of diesel that will
mature within the next month.
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7.1 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTINUED)
7.1.7 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Thie followliiy.anslysis iliustrates:the sensitivity of the Group's financlal insirumends. to- changes in market variables; namely UK Interest
rales and the US Dollar and Euo to Stering éxchange rates. The leve! of sensillvites chosan, being. 1% movement in Steiling interest:
rates and a 10% mavernant in-Steriing when compared {o the US Dellar and Euro, provide a reasonable basks-to measure sensitivity whilst
not being the Grdup's view of what is iikely io happen inthe futura,

The: anafysls excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying vaiue of paneion and ather post-retirement obligations
and provisions, which is addressed innote 6,1.5,

This analysis had been préparéd on the basis that the amdunt of nit debt, (he ratio-of fixéd to floaling rate borrowings and the proportion of
financlal Instrumenits in forelgn currancies are constant throughout the year, based on poslhons as al the year-end.

The following assumplions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

— The-sensitivity of intsrest costs to movements in inlerest rates is calculated using fitating rate debt and investmant balances. prevailing
at the year-end;

~ Changes in the camying valye of derivative finangial instruments. not. in hedging relationships are assumed only 1o affect iha Income
statement; and

— All derivative finaricial instruments designated as hedges are agsumed to be fully affective,

2019 2018
Income Enquity- Income Equity

statament’ “staemant )
Em +- Ewi #-Em H~Em’
UK irtarest rates +~ 1% (2018: +1- 1%) 63 - 57 -
US Doltar sxchange rate (GBPILUSD) +i- 10% (2018] +1- 105%) 12.4 204 122 218
Euro.exchange. rata (GBP/EUR) +/~ 10% (208, ++ 10%) 73 15.8 0.r 157

The Groups stralegy for mariaging foreign curfency sk incliudes the use of options. The exchange rdte sensitivilies ‘above thersforg
inglude the' expected increase in the vatue of these oplions should anderlying exchange rales move unfavourably. Hawever, in the avent
that exchange tates move favourably, the Group could choose rdt to exercise. these options to benisfit from agsociated foreign exchange
gains. I this- scenario, the cast of tha oplions reflecied in tha tncome statement would be limited o the value of the premiums’ paid: fo
obtain them,
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7.2 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
7.2.1 BASIS OF FAIR VALUE

Fair value astlmatlon

The.difiérent levels per the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy have besn defined-as fallows;

Level 1: Quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for kientica! assets or liabilities:

Level 2: Inputs other than.quoted prices included within level 1 that ara cbservable for the asset or Habilify; either directly (that is; as prices)
or indirectly (that Is, derived from prices).

‘Level 3: Inputs for the asset or labilily that are not basad on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

During the year ended 26 January 2019, there have been no transfars batween. any levels of the IFRS 3 fair vaiue hierarchy and them
were no reclassifications of financial assels as a rasult of @ changiz.in the purpose or use of ihase assets.

7.2.2 FAIR VAL UE OF DERNA'TI__VE-FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of derivative financial instruments. is-as Tollows:

2013 2018
Assets  Lisbiities Recognised in Recognissd  Assets  Listéfies  Recopnisedin  Racognisedin
Other in fncome " Othes Incame
Comprshensive Statgmeont Comprehensive Satemeni
Income: © 7 Income '
- Falr value of derivative-financial instruments £m _Em £m Ein £m fm " Em tm
Non-current
Curmency defivatives-~ cash-flow hadg D.2 (14) .z - - (2:9) 2.9 -
QOther darivatives - 0.5). - (0.8) - {1.1) - (1:1)
o2 (20) (1.2} 0.6). - 4.0) (2.9 o
Current
Cumincy dafivatives — cash liow hedge ‘64 (59) 0:8 - 1.5 {18.8) (18.3) .
Other désivatives: 0.4 {1:6) - (12 37 - - a7
58 {7.5) 6.6 {1.2) 5.2 {19.8) {18.3) 37

The fair value of ‘@ derivative financial Instrument represents the difference “between the value of the: tulstanding .contracts -at their
‘contracted rates and a valuation calculated-using the forward rales of exchange and interest rales prevailing-at the Balance sheat date,

The fair value-of the derivative financial instrumerits. held by the Group are classified: ag level 2 under the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy, as
all significant mputs td the valuation mode| used are based on observable market data and are not traded in-an active market.

Specific valuation tochniques -used to value the financial Insirupients inciude quated market prices. There: havé been no changes in
vahation technigues from the prior year.
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7.2 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED}
1.2 3 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD AT AMORTISED COST

The following table compares. the Group™s fiabillties held at amortised cost, where thefe. Is 2 differencé between Gartying value (CV) and
fair value (FV):

2ms. 2018
£m £m
cv Fv cv Fyv
Financlal lub¥ities
Listed bonds’ w45 [8582)  (Skas)  (9a2B)

The' fair values of the Group's lisied bands have been determined by reference to market price quotations and are classified as leve) 1
under the IFRS 13-air value hisrarchy,

For oltier financial assets and liabllites, there:are no material ditferences between carrying value and fair value.
7.3 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

7.3.1 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Shart-lefm trade and other recdivables and derivative financlal assets are excluded from this Znalysis, on the basis thatthey are primarily-
nan-intergst bearing and denominated in Starling.

. . Non- ‘
Floating intereat Total
rata  heating
Currency analysis £m “£m £m
Slerhing financial asssts BB3G 58.2 9818
Ofer linancial assets 04 - o4
At 25 Janiiary 2019 8840 98.2 882z
Stefing financkl azsels . 6631 854 761,5
Other financiol assety o7 - 07
AL 27 January 2018 -663.8 98.4- 7622

Floaling rate-assety are short-term deposils and investments at market rates or the base rale of the relevant currency, Non-inferest bearing
balantes include cash In 6tores and cash in ransit, primarily made up ‘of credit-and debit card transactions:not yet settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7.3 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
7.3.2 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL LJABHLITIES
Short-lerm trade payables are excluded from this analysis on the basis that they are all non-intersst bearing.

Fixed rate  Floating Total
£m rate £m
Currancy-analysis £m
Al Sterling
At 26 Janusry 2019 784.3) (224.3)  (4,010.8)
AY 27 Janusary 2018 (187.2} AL UR T 1887.3)
) 2019 2018
Maturity of finsncial sbilitios. £m £m
Repayalie within one. year
Bank ousrdrefts _ o1
Property finance leases (0.5 0.7
Bonds, (276.0) -
Unamorilscd bong iransaction costs ot ~
(#2754} 0.8
Repayabié between one and o yoars
Property finance lsases {0.6) (0.8)
Bonds - (275.0)
Unamortised bond transaction costs - 04
(0.6} 2752)
Répayable behisen twa and five years
Property finance lssses (1.8) (2.0)
Loan {1z5.0} -
Unamortised loan trahsaction costs o7 -
| (125.9) (20
Repayablain more thén five years
Property finance leases {18.4) {20.0)
Bonds {600.0) {600.0}
Unhamoriiaed bond transackon costs 0.7 10.7
®087)  (506.3)
{1.010.6) (887.5)
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8 OTHER NOTES
INTHIS SECTION
This section includes other financial information that is required by accounting standards,
8.1 SHARE CAPITAL
2019 2018
Amhorised tsaued and  Authorised Issued and
) fully peld fully paid
Ghars capital £m £m Ero £&m
Equity
Deferred Ordinary Shares

6,750,400 of £4 each 6T 57 67 6.7

8.2 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
8.2.1 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED.UNDERTAKINGS

All trangactions between the Group and its Subsidiaries and related underakings are eliminated upori consolidation, and therefore do not
nebd to be disclosed separately, A list of subsidiaries and related undertakings within the Group.is included within note 35. Loans to joint
ventures are disclosed in hote 3.3.

8.2.2 ARRANGEMENTS WITH PENSION SCHEME TRUSTEE

The Group entered inte an -arrangament with the Pension Scheme Trustee on-30 January | 2010-to -atkcess an element of the scheme
deficit that-existed af that time.

8.2.3 ARRANGEMENTS WITH JOHN LEWIS PARTNERSHIP TRUST LIMITED

John Lewis Parinership Trust Limited is a related parly and holds fhe Deferred Oidinary Shares in the Group dn behalf of [he Pariners.
JohnLewls Partniership Trust Limited facilitates the approvat and payment of the Partnership: Bonus,

8.2.4 OTHER TRANSACTIONS
Key management compensatioh has been disciosed n nole 2.8.

During the year the Group provided atministrative suppdrt services to charities related to the -Group. The eshmated vajue- of thesa support
senvices is £84,000 (2018: £81.000). The Group also made donatians totalling £0.7m. {2018: £0.6m) to the John Lewis Foundation.

8.3 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that take place after the Balance sheet date of 26 January 2018 and before the date: the. financial statements arg signed- are’
recorded in this note. In order to be-disclosed, these events must be. sufficiently miaterial to watrant disclosure,

8.3.1 COMMERCIAL OPERATING MODEL.

On 31 January 2019, Waitrgse. & Partners announced chenges to-the Commercial Operating Model in head offices, No accounting for
potential rediindancies was recorded for the yearended ‘26 January. 2010 iri respect of these changes.

8.3.2 COMMERCIAL AGREEMENT WITH OCADQ

On 27 February 2019 Waltrose & Parirers confimad that foibwmg carelul review of the relationship, the commercial arrangement with
Eicado. will-come 10 an end in Septemher 2020, inline with contraciual terms. We have strengthened our own-online businegs significantly
“in racent years, and said last summer that we will doubile waitrose.com wilhin five years. This change will bea major pant of achieving this,

and in future, waltroS&.com and our shops will be the exclisive places i the UK fo buy Waltrose & Pariners products, We planto cpen &
second fulfllment centra fo support growing volumes In the London area,

B,




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
8.3 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)
8.3.3 WAITROSE & PARTNERS STORE CLOSURES

On 6 March 2019, Waitrose & Pariners Informed Partners that five shops will be sold fo other retalders. No accounting for potential
regundancies was recorded for the year ended 26 January 2019 in respect of these shiop disposals.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
as-at26 January 2019
2018
{réstatod, nee
2019 aple 93§
Notes Em £
Nommcurrent asseots
12 Intangible:asasts - 369.2 3722
13 Proparty. plantand squipment’ 9436 1,005.0
18 Trade anid other réceivables 2.5 45.7
28 ‘Detivative financlal instroments 2 -
14 lavestments in subsiciaries +136.3 1,400.6
15 Anvestments n snd loans to jeint venture 27 29
26 Detoed Ly asset 73.8 135.2
L6677 29616
Gurrent nssets
7 Inventories 4283, 4019
18 Trade and other recalvables 1457 1420
Curvent tiax receivakie 30.8 21.3
28 Derfvativg financial in 58 6.2
e Asc9ts held for sale 34 -
19 Shortemm invesimants 2654 166.0
20 Cash ahil cash équividanls 6305 505.7
1,520.0 12521
Total assets 40877 42037
Cuirent RabBities.
22 Bortpwings and overdrafs {2749 ©.1
2% ‘Tracie and other payables (14942} (1,614.5)
24 Finance kiase liabfities: @1 (0.2)
25 Provisions. {101.9) (140.0)
28 Dagivative financial i nits. 7.8 {18:8)
(1,876.6) 11.782:6)
Non-current Rabififles.
2 Borrowings {Maa) {8628y
23 Trade ard other payables (203.1) (1837
24 Finance leasa labiites (13.2) (13.3)
25 Provisions 1128:3) (115.8)
28 Dérivative financiat instruments 20 (4.0}
a3 Relirement.bansfit obligations 396.5) (850.5)
(1,483.2) {1.840.1)
Total UabHitios {%.320.8) (3.622.7)
Not asssts 7572 661.0
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

Equity
R Share capital ar 8.7
Share premium 0.3 0.3
Othier resarves - {18.5)
Refined eamings 7502 580.5
Total equity 7572 531.0
The,accompanying ndles are an integral part of}he financial statements.
The financial statéments on pages 83 to 108 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2019 and signed on its behalf by
0 N .
QJ‘A_.A A T ‘v\/I %\N\j}
Sir Ghisrlie Mayfield end Patrick Lewig
Directors, John lLewis-plc- Regisiered number 00233462




JOHN LEWIS PLC
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 26 January 2019

Share Share Hedging Fordigh  Retalned Tatad
capital prothium rasoIve currency  earnings “anuity
tranelation
reserve
Notes [ £m am £m L
Balance ai 28 January 2017 6.7 03 81 - 3283 3444
23 Restatsmant for IFRS 15 - - - - (13:4) 13:4)
Balancs at-2 tanuary 2017’ 8.7 0.3 81 - 1159 2310
1 Profii for the yaar’ - - - - 67.6 57.6
R ament of defined benefii pension scheme - - - - 2494 2494
Faic value lossas m-ggshm hadges - - (22.8) - - ‘(22.8)
- ansfers 1o inventories® - - (1) - - {5:A)
Tay on abiove RErms recogiised b eguily - - 5.9 - 2 f38.5)
Gaiiis on foreign currency transixtons - - - 0.4 - 0.4
Toisl comprehensive incomefaxpense) for tha year - - {25.0) 0.4 2748 250,0
Balance al 27 Janusiry 2018" 67 6.3 (16.5) 04 580.5 581.0
10 Loss for the year - - - - {59.4) (59.4)
Rameasturernant of defined benefa pension scheme = - - - 2673 267.3
Fair value gains. on cash flow hadges - - 218 - - 218
Taxon akiove items récognised In equily - - *.1) - (#8.2) (52.3)
GAins on forsign currehcy tianstatons - - - 0.2 - 0.2 -
Talal comprehensive income for the yaar - - 17 0.2 159.7 177.6
Herdging.gains.transferred to-sast of imventory® - - 4} - - (14)
Beilance.at'26; January 2018 . 6.7 0.3 0.6 0.6 750.2 w572

1 Restated, seo-nate 9.2,
2 Precentation has changed 2 a resutol IFRS 9. See:note 9.3.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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JOHN LEWI|S PLC
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 26 January 2019

01y 2018
Em {iesialad, sen
) noté 9.3)
Hotes £m
30 Cash generaied frar operations before Partnarshlp Bonus 1821 240,2-
Net taxation paid w.n 7.9
Pension deficit reduction payments (R71) (89.8).
Financs costs paki 12y (23)
Net cagh generated from operating activities beforé Partnership Bonus 1344 240,2°
Partnetship Bonus paid (34.3) 0.4}
Wot cash goneraied from operating activities afler Partnorship Bonus- 8.8 1998
Cush Aows froms invésting activities
Purchasa of proparty, plant and-equipment (52.4) (917
Purchase. of itangible. assets {116.0), (119.3)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and squiprient and Ftangible assets 24 30.6
Cach inflow. from loaris to'group companigs 22 37,7
Cash cutflow from ifvastriant in subsidiares. {9.5) -
Dividend ingome recetvar 54 29.5
Finance income recelved’ 25 18
. Cash outfiow from investment in and loans fo joint venture {o.5) -
Cash outfiow from shott-term investments® (99.0) {106:0)
et cash used Ininvesting aciivities (44.2) (17.6)
Cash flows from financing activkies
Financa costs pald in raspect of bonds {54.2) {84.2)
Finence (costs padiintonme recsivied in respect of Ainancial instruments (0.5) 0.7
‘Paymeit of capital element of finance leases 0.2 {0.2)
Cash inflow fiom bomowings 1243 -
Net cash fromr{uoed in} financing activities 594 {531
Incresse/{dacrease}in net cash and cash eqidvalents 126.0 {71.5)
Nat cash and cash squivalents at beginning of he year' &05.5 5774
Net cash and cash equivalents at ond of the year 6306 505.6
20 Net cash and caigh equivalenis comprise:
Cash at bank and in Rand 1.8 584
Shoit-term deposits 6691 4473
Bark ovardrafis - {0.1}
630.8 504.6

"1 Restated. See nols 5.3,
The accompanyirig notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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JOMN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
9 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The separate financial statements of John Lewis plc (the Company) are drawn up in accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), gs adopted by the Europsan Unian- and with the Cempan‘es Act 2006, The Company's accounting policies are aligned
with the Group's accounting palicies as_desctibad.in note 1 to tha consclidated financial stalements, Addilionat accounting poticies are
noted below,

Golng concemn

The Directors, after reviewing the Company’s operating budgets, investirient:plans and financing arrangements, consider that tha Company
has sufficient financing availabie at the dale of the approval of this teport. Accardingly, the Directars are salisfiéd that it is appropriate to
adopt the going.concen basis in:preparing the Company financial statements.

B2 INVESTMENT IN. SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The Group has a. number of invesiments in subsidiary companies. Investments are valued ‘at cost, less allowances for impalment,
Impairment reviews: are performed.annually, '

9.3 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The following policles iave been consistently applied t all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The following policies were adopted by the Company for the yedr ended 26 January 2019 and have had a.significant inspact on- the-
Company’s profit for the yesr, Equity ahd disclosures: _ ‘ ) '
-~ IFRY 16 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (applicatie for the petiod beginning 28 January 2018)
IFRS 15 establishes a compreherisive framawaork for detefiining whather, how much and when revanue is recognised. It replaces |AS
18 "Revenue and related interpretations’. The Company adopted IFRS 16 from 28 January 2018 uéing a fulty retrospettive approach.

The main jmpact for the Company on adoption was i respect-of the timing "of revenue recognition of free service guarantees in John
Lewis & Pariners, principalty for cerlain efectrical produsts, Under 1AS 18, the full sale. value paid.by the customer was recognised in
the Income statement al the timie of sale and a provision was reGorded on the Balaiice sheel. for the expected liability for futura repair
costs under the warranly. Under IFRS 15, the free- warranty is considered a separate performance obligation, theréfore the Company
allocates a pariiof of the consideration raceived to:providing the warranty. The aliocation is based-on the stand alone sefling price of
the product and the relative fair value of the wamanty which includes an asscciated profit margin. The amount allocated to free
wamaniies is then recorded 5 Delferred income ort the Balance sheet and refeased lo Revénue over the petiod of the warranty.

The impact of these changes,-going forward, Is a-decrease in revenue recoqnised at the-puint of sale with a corresponding increase in
ihe Defeired income bability held in Trade and, ofber payablés arid the elimination of tha provision held in retation to the warranties on
the Balance sheet.

The Openiing balanca sheet position and comparative periods have been reétatéd through Retained earnings-to reflect the decrease in
Provisions and the increase in the Deferred. income liability, as well-as the jmpact. of taxation. On the transhion date, Opaning retained
earnings mainly decreased-as a result of previously recogniset! revenue being deferred undér IFRS 15, subsequently bein released to
revenie tver the period of the waranty resulting in an increase in the amounts previously reported as Revenue in 2018.

As ol 28 January 2017 there is a decrease of £13.4m to brought forward refained earnings as a result of the full retrospaclive approdch.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
9,3 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS {CONTINUED)
The changes as at, and for the period ended 27 January 2018 are shown in the tables beldw;

~Company Balance Sheet
- 2018
{restated) 2010
Em Adjustrnants Em
Arsate
“Delerred taxassat 1%5.2 25 FEEND
‘Other Basets 4,068.5 - 4.066.5
~ Tatal sasets 42047 25 4,201.2
Liabilibes
"Yrade and olher payables’ (3.808.2)° (68.1) {1.740.1)
"Provisions (Z82.8) (47 (318.8)
T Other liabilllies (1,550.7) - {1.550.7)
Yotal Habfilties (3.6227) 3.0 (B.808.7)
“Equity
Shars capital 6.7 - X
““Ghere pramiuim a3 - 03
“Other resarves 6.5} p 16.5)
"Reteined earnings- 590 5 (16.5) "601.0
“Tolal equity 581.0 6.5) 5015
Company Income Statement.
2018
{restatad)} 2018
£m Adjustmants. £m
Texalion (9.8 (0.7) (6.1)
Profit for the-year €76 29 B4.7

“The follwing are new accounting standards: and amendments lo axisting standards thiat.have been published and are applicable for the
Company’s dccounting péricds beginning 27 January 2018 onwards, which the Company has not adopted early:

~IFRS 18 ‘Leases’ (applicable for the perod beginning 27 January-2019)

IFRE 16 ‘Leases’ specifies how to. recognise, measure, preseni and disciose leases, The slandard will be effective for the
Company for the 'year anding 25 January 2020 and jts adoption is expected to have a veiy significant impact to the Company
incame stalement and Company balance sheet. The Company infends to adopt the modified retrospsctive approach on transitiod,
For-gach individual lease, the Right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the Lease liability on adoption {adjusted for
any prepald or accrued [ease expenses and any provision for impairment).

This will require' an adjustment to Equity as at 27 January 2078, however prior year comparatives-wil not be restated. The
Company will apply both the shori-term and low value lease exemptions on transition and will adopt the ‘transition refiefs in
relation o inltial dirsct costa and use of hindsight,

The Company's IFRS 16 project is governed by a Steering Group which oversees. tha refavant project work streams, approves
key declsionis and provides regular updates to the Audit and Risk Cormitise. During the year to 28 January 2019, work has
progressed fo finalise the discount rate methodology, accounting policies and internal controls, complete the data collection and
validation of the Company's portfolio of lease data and fully impiement the IT system soiution which will recard and calcufate the
IFRS 16 impact.

The Company's lease portiolio is prmcpally comprised of property feases in refation- to stores, distribution centres and head
offices. As shown in nole 31.3, the undiscounted value of operating lease. ccmmitments in relation te the Company's leases is
E1.7bn:

On adopticn of IFRS 16, 1he mein impact for the Company will be the recognition of Righl-of-use.assets. and Lease liakilities on
the Cpening balance sheel for all appiicable leases. On 27 January 2019, the Company expdcis to recoghise Lease ligbities of
£1.5bn, representing the. tofal cash commitinends undéer cperating leases (£1.7bn) plus the intercompany arangements
recognised as leases under the new accounting standard IFRS 16, discounted fo-present value, The Company will also recognige
Right-of-use assets of the-equivalant vakie (E1.5bn). The Right-of-aise: assets whl be adjusted for the reclassification of prepald
feaee expenses and Deferred income-{E£120m} and £0.6m of impairment, resulting tn a-net Right-uf-use assats balance of £1.4bn
on transifion. Overall Net assets will increase by £2m, after adjusling existing IAS 17 Finance leases by £2.5m anid recognising
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
9.3 AMENDMENTS TO ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

£0.5tm for impairment of the Right-of-use aseets. A Deferred tax liability of £0.3m wil -also be recognised as a result of this
adjustment to Equity.

Going forward. a straight-line deprecistion expense will be recégnised in the Campany income statement in relalion to the Right-
of-use assets and-an amorlising interest charge will be recognised in the Company incorme statement in relation to the Lease
liabiliies. The interest charge will be fronl-loaded in the earlier periods of & lease as the interast element unwinds. This- will
replace the Operating lease expense curréntly recogniséd in the Income: statemant under 1AS- 17..For the year ending 26 January
2020, assuming no clianges in the lease porifolio; this will result-in a material raduction in Profit before tax of approximately
£20m, comprising an incresse in Operating profil of approximalely £60m offset by ah estimatéd Incredse in Finance costs of

There will be no Guantitative impact to cash fiows (other than the phasing of tax cash.-flows related to movements in Profit),
however the classification of cash flows will change, It is estimatad that the Company’s Operaling cash outflows wiil decrease and
Financing cash outflows will increase by approximately E30m as repayment-of the principal portion of the Lease llabllities will be
classified as Cash-flows from financing activities.

The. Company's activities.as a Jessor.are nol material and therefore the Gompany does not expect.any -slgnificant impact.on the.

financial siatements. However; as required by IFRS 16, additionat disclosures will be included within the notes to the finandial
staternents for the year ending 25 January 2020,

Reclassification of Short-term investments and Cash and cash equivalents
Following a review of the Company's Short-term deposils, certain deposits previously presented as Cash ‘and cash equivalents at 27

Januafy 2018 are now considered Shorl-tenh investmants due to the risk of vanabilily i’ value of these funids. As a result, £46.0m of
teposits. pravigusly classified 'as Cash and cash equivalenls have been reciassified: to Short-term- investments in the current and

comparative pariods, impacling the Balance sfieel, Statemant of cash Bows and felated rofés 1o the accounts. There is no'impact on
Current assels, Cash generated fiom aperations after Partnership Bonus or Net debt. For furthier details. on’ Short-term investments and

‘Cash and cash équivalents please refer to notés 19 and 20.

Reclassification-of BonusSava raceivable
The John Lewis Partnership. pic aperates a BonusSave scheme (the-scheme), a Share Incentive Plan (SIP) which allows Partners to alact

to invest part.of thair Parthership Bonys back into the Pastnership, The scheme is operated by John Lewts Parinership Trust Limited which
purchases SiP shares on behalf of Partners who have chosen lo invest & portion of their Parinership Bofws for this purpose,

Where there are an excéss niimber of shares. in iséue the shares. are. ndt cancelled, instead the Company provides a loan ta the-scheme in
order to cover the cagh outflows resulting. from redemplions, and thay are held as “unallocaled” shares within the Plan; The' Gampany holds
a receivable in respect of the loan made fo the gcheme for these Linaliocated shares.

Following a review of the scheme, John Lewis Parinership plc has concluded that defacto control of the scheme is beld by John Lewis
Parnership ple and accordingly the scheme is now consofidated within the Parinership's consolidatad financial staterhents. This has
resulied in. & reclassification of the reveivable held by the Company i raspect of the loan made to the BonusSave scheme for unaftocated

shares from Gthar récaivables to an Intercompany receivable from he BonusSavie scheme. This is reflected in both tha Company and the

Group's consolidated accounts, The BonusSave scheme does not form parl of the Group's corisolidalted financial statements. There is no
impact onh the Income Statement; Cash ganbrated from operations afler Parirfership Bonus or Net Dabt.
10 PROEIT AND LOSS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR

As permitied by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, Jahn Lewls plc has not presented.its own Income statement or Statement of
comprehensivée incomef(expense). The result deak with in the accounts of the Company amounted to £59.4m loss (2018: £67.6m profit),
This result inchudes an kmpairivierd of an histotic nlercompany balance of £51.9m. During the year an Ai:i_tm-‘gmup dividend of £5.4m (2018:
£26.5m) was recaived: £nil (2018: £11.5m) from JLP Insurance Limited, £5.4m (2018: £18.0m) from Wailrose Limited.

Details of the auditor's remuneration are provided in-note 2.6 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TG THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

11 PARTNERS

11.1 PARTNER NUMBERS

The Company has no direct empioyees. The Partner numbers and benefits réferred 1o beiow relats 10 Pariners working at John Lewis &
‘Partners and Group, who. are employees of the John Lewis plc Group. Full-émployes. nuimbers -are provided lh nofe 2.8.1 to the

Consolidated financial statements of the Group,

During the year the average number of Partners employed by the Company. was as follows:

2019 2018
" John Lewis & Partners 28,100 28,600
Other 3,200 31000
a1,300 -31.60(
11.2 PARTNER PAY AND BENEFITS
Employmeént and related costs were as follows:
2018 2018
£m £m
Staff coats
Wagas and =alasies (676.2) (6524)
Social secunity costs (87.1) {56.4)
Parmarship Bonus 18.2). a0 4)
Empfoyers’ national insurance on Paringrship Bonus (23} (3.9)
Other parsn exponses (24 {1239]
Leng (eave cost T(B.3) @8
" Towl before Fartner discounts (845.5) (867.8)
Pariner discounts {@xcludad from reveriue) (47 6) (A7)
Included above are the following amounts in respect of key managemint compensation:
“Baluries and shortlerm benefs N
Postemphoyment bengfis ) (BN
(10.0) (9.3)

1 Includes cash supplsmsats In flew of fiture pension accrual,

Key managemment indiiides the Directors of he Company, members of the Group's Divisional Management Boards and other officers of the-
Group. Key management compengation includes salaries, Parinership Bonue, national insurance cosfs. pension costs arid the cost of other
employmmient benefils, such as company cafs, private - médical Insurance and termination paymenis where applicable. Cosls of key
management compengation are included within operating expenses and exceptional items as applicable.

Key management participate: in the Group's lonig leave scheme, which Is open to all Partners and provides up to six months' paid leave
after 25 years’ servica, Thare is no proportional entitlement for sharler periods of service, It Is not practical to allocate the. cost of accruing
entitlement to this bénéfit to individuals, and therefoie no allowance has been made-for this benefit in the amounts disclosed.

11.3 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments are-disclosed in'note 2:8.4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computes software
Purchased: tntemnatly Work in Total,
.Bavelnped prograss
fntangihk assets- £m £m Em £m
GCost
At 28 Januaey 2017 1303 349 1285 5737
Addifions* - - 126.5 126.5-
Teansfers, 124 54,1 (66.2} -
Digposals and write-offs {218) 45.2) - (67.1}
| AY2T January 2015 1205 3238 188:6 6331
Additions" - - 164.5 104 5
Transfers 876 85,3 {222.9) ~
Disposals-and vrite-offs (5.3) (10.8) 118.4) (32.2)
" AL26 January 2013 152.8 -498.3 643 7064
Agcundated amortiastion
AL 28 January 217 {80.0) (721 - {252.1)
Charfis for e year' {195} (55.4) ~ (75.9)
Digposafs and wiite-offa 218 452 -~ 67.1
AL 27 janusry 2018 {778) {183.3) ~ {260.8)
Charge for he year® (a05) (8D.0) - (90.5)
Disposals ahd wiite-offe - 52 10.6- ~ 15.8
At 26 January 2079 (102.9) {232.7) - [336:6)
Net book valus at January 2017 50:3 142 1285 2718
Net book value at Jadusry 2018 42.3 140.5 1888 a72.2
Nelbook value at January 2019 -a89 e 843 3808

1 For e yearended 26 lanuary 2019, addisons for the yeer include the nan-cash capital expéndiure hocrual onintangrble assets of £3.3m (2098: £16.4m),

2. Forihe year ended 26 Jenuary 2018, IMs includes an impalamgnt.charge of £1.8m (2018; £9,6m) o intangible assats.

Intangible assets principally relate to customer and distribution projects with useful economic lives of up to 10-years.
There are three.individually significant assels within the total carrying amaunt of intangible assets as al 26 Jariuary 2019: two are customer
projects (£138.0m, 2018: £126.8im) and one relates to a distribition project (£87.6m, 2018: £104,3m).
fhuring the yeay fo 26 January 2019 computer systems valued at £222.9m (2018 £66.2m) were brought into use. This.covered a range of
selling, stppoit; siipply chain, admicistration and information technology infrastricture applications, with asset ives ranging from three to

tén years.
Amortisation of intengible aseels is charged within operating expanses.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Laind and Fixtires,  Assets in courne Total
. buikdings Fitingsand  of construction
Properiy; plant 2nd equipmant squipment
£m £m £m £m
Cost
~ AL28 January 2017 9487 0547 LY 1.958.8
-Additlons’ - 0.4 ae.3 897
Transters 2185 614 {s2.9) -
Disposals and wiite-offs (10.6} (7T1.6} - (82.2)
ALZT Janusy 2018 957.6 8449 64,8 1,967.4
Adifions' z9 - 68.1 e
Transters 525 57.6 {(110,1) -
Disposals and write-offs {5.8) (25.4) (1.1 (32.3)
Transfers to assots held for'sals {61.5) - - {51.5)
AL 25 Jamueary 2019 8867 8771 .. 1,984.8
Accumulated depreclation
At 28 Jarvuary 2017 - {266.3) (638.5) - (807.8).
Chargefor the yeir (42.3) {80.9) - (123.2)
Disposels and wite-offs. {3.5) 72.1 - 88.6
A1 27 January 2018 (B15:1) {6473y - (962.4)
Charge for the-year* (41.4) (76.8) - {14723
Disposaia-and wiite-offs 33 23:2. - 265,
Tranaters o assets held for sake a2 - - 421
At 26.Junuary 2019 1) (699,9) - £1,011.0}
Net book value at January 2017 8774 31822 58.5 1052.1
Nat book valu at danuary 2018. 8125 278 64.9 10050
Net hook-value at Janiary 2019 6446 2172 2t8 9435

1 - For the year-endod 26.January 2018, addluomforme year inchude the non-cash capital expanditure accrual on property. plant arid equipment of £14.2m-(2098;
£0.8m).

2 Fot the year snded 26 January 2018, this inclisdes a net impaimyient change of £12.6m t'land.and bulldings {27 Januaey 2018 £nd),

Intluded above are [and and buliding assefs held under finance leases wiih & net book vatue of £11,1m (2018: £11,6m).

In accordance with IAS 38, the Company reviews its property, plant and. equipment for impairment at least anniaily or whenever events or
circumstances Indicate that the vatue on the Balance shael may rot be recoverable,

The impaimmanit-réview compares the retoverable amount for each CGU o the camying value on the Balance sheet. The key assumpiions
used in the calculations are {he discount rate, long term.growth rate; expected sales performance and costs.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES ‘
The Gompany has the following investments in subsidiaries at 26 January 2019,

Sharss in Groug Losn to Tota|

companies Group

corfpanios
tm €m £m
At 28 Janyary 2017 a7 1,391.4 14331
_ Movements: 21 {34.6) {32.5)
AL27 January 2018 43.8 1,258.8- 1.400.6-
Movemenis 9.8 (275, (265.3)
AU28 danuary 2018 536 1,081.7 1,135.3.

The intefcompany loan from John Lewls Partnersivp pie to the Company is non-interest bearing with no specific repayment tems..
Allst of subsidiary undartakings is provided in note 35,
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO JOINT VENTURE

“The Company applies IFRS 11 o all jdirit afrangements.. inder IFRS 11 investments i jolnt.atrangements are classified as either joint
operations o joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations- of each ihvestor. The Company has assessad the nature of
ifs joint arrangements ard detemmined thém to be joint ventwres.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method afer initially being recognised at cost In the Consolidated balance
sheet.

The Company financlal statements include the-‘Company's sharé. of the profit or loss.and other comprehensive income. of the Equity
accounted investees, from the date thet joint contrcl commeances until the date that joint control ceases.

John Lewis pic and Clipper Logistics plc are both investors in Clicklink Logistics Limited. Each party owns 50.0% of the equity of Clicklink
Logistics Limited and declsions.regarding Clicklink Logistics Limited require the unanimous consent of both parties.

Invastmont -‘Loan Totst
Joiot venture £m £m £m
Cost
Al 2. Janiary 2017 21 1.5 38
Additions. - - -
AL 27 January 2048 21 14 38
Addiions - 0.5 0.5
A28 January 2019 24 20 441
‘Bhare of profit{loss)
At28 January 2017 ‘0.3 - 03
Share of loss (1.0 - (1.0
At 27 Janumry 2018 o - 0.7
Share of loss (0.7} - oIy
At 26 January 2019 (1:4) - .4
A1 27 January 2018 14 18 29
At 26 January 2019 (1% 4 20 2.y '

16 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
At'26 January 2015, one property asset (£9.4m) was recorted as held for sale,
At 27 January 2018. there were no assets recorded as held for sale.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17 INVENTORIES
2019 2018
Inventory Em- £m
Raw materisly- - 06
‘ Finished goods and goods for resale 428.3 4003
4283 401.8

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense by the Company in tha year was £2,344 7m (2018: £2,201.0m). Provisions against
rnventories ot £27.7m were charged (2018: £10.7m charged) to cost of sales,

Finished goods and godds for resale include a right to retum gaods assel of £20.0m (2018: £22.5m). This relales to the Group’s expected

-returng inventory based on previous rates of return.

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

018 2018
Tiade aivd othet receivables £m £m
Current:
Trade receivables Li0 ) 421
Othex tecsivables’ .8 25.5
Piepaymenls 8.8 60.2
Accnied income 17.4 442
1487 1420
Non-curtent:
Onar receivabies 4.0 4.5
Prapaymiants. 38.5 41.2
a8 467

] ﬁeshted sse nola 9.3,

‘Trade 1eceivables are nop-interest bearing and generally on credit lerms of less than 90 days. Concentrations of cregit risk are- aonsjdered
to be very limited. The carrying amount of trade and other receivables approdimates to fair valie and is denominated i Sﬁerlmg Within
trade racaivablas is acerved rebate ingome of £11.6m {2018, £4.5m). Suppler income that has been invoiced but not pald is included in
trade recaivables and supplier income that has baen inveiced but not yel setiled against fullre tratle payable balances is included in trade
payabiles.

Ag at 26 January 2019, frade and othar recelvables of £2 Bm (2018: £1,5m) were-partially or fully impaired.
The creation and retease of the allowancé. 6r impaiied receivables have been included i branch spérating -expenses in the Incéme
statemient.

As at 26 January. 2619 trade and other receivables of £19.0m (2018: £18.1m).were past due bul nat impairad, The dgeing analysis of the-
past ‘dua’amoimts is as follpws:

2018 2018
Up to 2 months past due 18.7 18.9
310 12 monthé: past due 0.3 a7
Over 12 nnths past.due - [

190 18.1




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
19 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

s 2018
Short-torim investinents £m £m
Shorttam investments' 2654 188.0

Far the year ended 26 January 2019, he effective mterast rate on Short-term investments was 1.0% (2018: 05% ) and: hese investments
had an average maturity of 116 days (2018: 88 days’).

1 Restiried, £00 nots 5.3

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2013 2018
Cash and cash equivalents- £ £m
Cash at bank and fn hand 61.5 58.4
Bhort-term deposits’ 5691 447.3.
6.8 506.7

1 Resled, sea nole 9.3,

For tha year ended 26 January 2019, the eflective interest rate on Shart-term deposits was 0.6% (2018:-0.3%) and these: deposm had an
average matinity of 3 days (2018; 1 day).

In the Company statement of cash flows, net Cash and cash equivaleits are shown after deducting bank overdrafts, as follows:

2019 ‘2018

£m £m,

Cash and cash aquivaldnts. ai ahove' 8306 5D5.7.
Less hank overdraits - (0.1)

" Netcash-and cash equivalents 630.6 5086

1 Restaled, see note 9.3,

21 ANAL.YSIS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Short-term trade and other receivables and derivative financial assets are exciuded from this analysis, on the basis that they are primarily
nisn-intérest bearing and deriominated in Sterimg

Floating Non-interest Total
rate bearing

Currency analysis £m £m £m
Sterling financial assety 8341 "BE 8956
‘Giher financial. asséts 04 - 04
AtZ6 January 2018 834.5 61,6 3960
Steding Hnancial assate 61286 58.4 €71.0
Othar financlal-assats o7 - 0.7
AL 27 January 2018 6133 58.4 6717

FIoaLfng role assels Bre Short-lerm depasits and investments -at market rates. of the base rate. of ‘the relevant curency. Non-inteiest
bedring balances in¢lude cesh in stores and-cash in transit, primarily miade up of credit-and deblt card transactions pot yet settlad.




JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TOTHE cOMPANY'FmAH CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
22 BORROWINGS AND OVERDRAFTS

2019 we
Bm £
Current:
Benk overdeatt - w1y
&% Bonds, 2019 {rrsm -
Unarmiorised hond trnsaction cosis .1 -
(274.8) @)
Non-cument:
Medr tem loan $126.0) -
8% Bonds; 2019 - (275.0)
&'¢% Bonds, 2025° (3000) {300:0)
4'/,% Bondy, 2034 {200.0) {3000}
Uriamorfsed bond transaction-cosls' 10.4 1.t
Fair vatue adjusiment for hedged element o1 bonds 08 1.4
(7138 (#e28)

All horrowings are unsécured, denominated in sterling, and are repayable on the dates Shown, af par.

Duing thie yedr, the Group entered info new lgan-arrangements with its: banking partners totalling £125.0m. These loans mature beiween

2021 and 2023,

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2019 2018
Em £m
Current: .
Trade payables {4162y {408.5}
Amourits owed t parent company’ (65.1j (7943
 Amounts owed 1o Group companies . 482.9) (639.9)
Other payabies {1324 {1das)
Olher {axation and sodial Eecurity (142.2) {i40.8)
Accrush (131.9j (437:3)
Deferred Income! "0 (102.4) .
Partnersiip Bonus- {30.2 (85.7)
(1,492.2) (1.674.9
NON-SUrrant
Deferrad iicome' {203.4§ (193.7)
(203.1) {193.7)

"1 Restaled soe role 8.9,

The canrying amount of trade and othér payables approximatss to fair value,
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
24 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

2019 2018
£m £m
The minimum leasa payments under finance Wasel f2) due as fallows:
Not laler than bne year o) (0.5)
Later than one year but not more than five (£.5§ (1.6)
More than fiva years (219) 223
{239 {24.4)
Future Hnarice charge an'finance (eases 10:8 10.8
Present value of finance lease libilities 13.3) {13,5)
O which:
iNot later than ene yEar ©.4) ©2)
Later thian one ysar but riot more fhan five - {0.6)
Moro than five years (1.3 (127

The Company's-finance lease liabilities relate to property, plant and equipment that have been classified as finance leases in accordance
with 1AS 17.

25 PROVISIONS
Long Customer  Insurance Reorganisation Other Total’
loave refunds -clalms.
£€m £m &m £m £m Em
Ar27 January 2018 {139.6) (39.4} (10.0) (27.4) 7.4 -(263.8)
Charged to income staterrient (12.4) - (8.0) (24.8) {6.0) (53.0
' Relzasad bo incomn atatement 48 - - 4.5 .8 #3.9
Utilisad 711 51 4.8 238 5.1 45.7
A28 January 2019 {140.1) {343} FRER] (24.5) (16.5} {2272)
Of which;
Currant 342 {34.3) .2 {24.0) 5:2) (101:5)
Non-current (105.8) - e.m {0.1) (jb.a). {125.3)

T Restaked, ses note 9.3,

The Company hes a iong leave schieme, open to all Pattnérs, which provides up-to.six menths' paid leave-after 25 years' service. There Is
no proportionat entitlement for shorfer periods of service, The provision for the liabiities under the scheme s assessed on an actuarial
‘basls, reflecting Pariners’ expecled service profliee, and tising ‘economic assumptions consistent with thosé usad for.the Group's refirement
benefits {nota. 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements), with the exception of the real discount rate, where a rate appropriate to the
shorter duration of the long laave llability is ised, sa as'to accrua the cost over Pariners’ service periods.

Provisions for customer refunds reflsct the Company's expected liability for returns. of goods. sokd based on ‘experience of rafes of return,

Provisions for. reorganisation reflect restructuring and redundancy costs, principally In relation lo our branch, dislributmn and retail
operations as well as functional restructurings in Finance, Personnel and IT.

Cther Pravisions include praperty related costs and pay Provisions,
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JOHN LEWIS PLC

NQTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26 DEFERRED TAX.

26.1 DEFERRED TAX
Daferred tax Js calcuiated on temporary differénces using 3 tax fate of 19% for those expecled to reverse before 1-Aprit 2020, and 17% for

those assets or habillties expected to.reverse aftar 1 April 2020, In the year 1o 26 January 2019, -a'tax rate of 19% Is used for deferred tax

asgets or fiabililles expecied t reverse bafore 1 April 2020 and 17% for those assets tr Habilities expected to reverse after 1 April 2020,
The movemnaent on the deferred tax:accouni is shown below:

2019 2018

£m £m

Opening asset’ 135.2 156.2
Creditéd to income statament’ 0.3 174
Chirged to other cimpirehandiva Incomalaxpense) 818} (38.4)

" Closing assal 38 135.2

1 Restated, seennta 9.3.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26.1 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

JOHN LEWIS PLC

The movements in deferréd tax assets and liabilities during this year are shown below.

Accelorited Ravahiation. Rooyar Other Total
tax depraciation of land and gaing
bulldings

Deferred tax llabilities £m £m -£m £m £€m
At 2 Japuary 2017 (39.9) (3.m (6:6) 27 (45.8)
 Creditedf{charged) to itcome stalsment g 0.1 - (2.0) 18
Cradited-to other comprehiensive incomaNaxpanse) - = - 59 59
AL27 January 2018 (36,1 2.9 {5.6) 68 (38.0)
Creditad/{charged) (o incoms stilemant 43 0.1 - {0.8) 35
Creditad 1o oiher comprahensiva incomef{sxpense) - - o &8 6.6y
At 26 Japusry 2048 (31.8 {2.8 L] 0.9 1.9

‘Capital guins Pansians Totat

tax on land and provisions
and biufidings

Daferrsd tax assels £m £m gn

AL28 January 2017' 1.7 1903 2020

Credited to Income statement’ 1.4 4.4 15,5

Credited to other comprehensive: nuome.'(expmse) - (443 (44,3),

ALZT January 2018 128 180.4: 178.2

Charged 1o incoivie statement (1.8) (1.8} (32

Charged tp ather cotnpréhensive income/{expense) - (85.3} (55.3)

At28 January 2019 142 103,56 1147,

1 Restated, so0 nate 9.3,

Deferred tax assets and liabiilties are only offsel where there Is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an Infention 1o settie the

balances nat;

The recoverability of deferred tax agsels |3 supported by the expected level of future prdfits in the countries concerned.
Deferred tax assets are racognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the refated tax benefit through future

profits s probable.

“The deferred iax balance associated with the pension deficit has been adjusted-to refiect the current tax.benefit obtained in the financial -
yearended-30 .January 2010, following the contribution of the limited parinership interestin JLP Scotlish Limited Partnership to the pansion,
scheme {see note 6.1 to the consolidated financial statements).

The defemed tax-assets and liabilitles-are recoverabte after mare than one year.

26.2 FACTORS AFFECTING TAX CHARGES IN CURRENT AND FUTURE YEARS

Legislation has been enacted lo reduce the UK corporation tax rate from 19% 1o 17% from 1 April 2020.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
MOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

27 MANAGEMENT OF FINANCIAL RISKS

27.1 CAPITAL AND LONG-TERM FUNDING RISK
The approach to capital and long-term funding rigks has been discussed in note 7.1.1 1o the.consolidated financial statements.

27.2 LIQUIDITY RISK
“The approach to figuldity risks has been discuesed in nole 7.1.2 ta the consolidated financial statements,

The foliowing analysis shaws the contrictual undiscounted cash flows payatile undet financia! liabilities and derivative financial liabilifigs at,
the Batance sheet.date:

‘Due within Due botween Due 2 years’
1 yoar 1 and 2 years and boyond
£m Em Em
Nori-derivative.financial liabilittes
Borrowirigs and-overdeafts (2749} - (726.0)
Interest payments an borrowings (67.2) i24.2) {254.2)
Financa laase Babilies- {04y - '(23.5}
Trate and other payanies, T THassey z -
Derivative finantial NabWities
'Derivalive contracts — receipts 360.4. 6.8 6
Derivative contracts — payments (360.1} iy (23.5).
. ALZ6 Januaty 20718 601 35.9) {1,001.6)
Dua within Due belwgen Due.2 yoars’
1 year 1 id 2 years and beyond
Em Em -Em
Non-deriviative Anancidl liablittios -
" Romowngs and overdratts' (1) (276.0) (8000}
Tnlares peynients on baninags 54.2) 542) @59)
Finance fease lbifiey (.5) (0.4} 235
Trade and gther payables: (1.3719) - ~
Derivative finsncial Habillties
Derivatie coniracts — teceipts -335.1 N-rird 30.7
Derivative contracts — payments: (348.2) (99.6) 131.8)
" atar January 2018 {1.440.2) (331.5) (801.7)

1 Restated, sde note 43,

For the purposes.of this note; the forelgr currency-element of forward foreign cumency contracts is {ranslated at spot rates prevailing at the
year-end.

27.3 INTEREST RATE RISK
The approach io |nterest raté risks has béen diséussed in note 7.1.3 1o the Consolidated Bnancjal statemerits.

27.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The appfoach ta forekin clmency risks has been discuesed i note 7.1.4 to the consclidated fihancial statements,
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JOHN LEWIS FLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.5 CREDIT RISK

The Partnership haa no. significint exposure to an individual customer's: credit rigk due to fransactions being principaly of a high volume,
low value and short maturity, Cash deposits and other financial Instrumenis giva rise fo credit fisk on the amounts. due from counlerparties.
These riskd are managed by restricting such lransattions to an approved fist of counterparties, who have ari investment grade credit rating
by at least lwo of the three primary rating agencies. Appropriate credit iimits are designated to each courterparty. ;

The Company considers its maximumm exposure to credit risk Is as follows:

2019 2018

Em £rm

Trade and ofher recefvables "nae 724
Shott-tem investmenits' 2654 1660
Cash and cash equivalents’ 6206 508.7
Darivative financis! insiruments 0 52
T4 748.0

1 Restaled, 368 note 8.3,

27.6 ENERGY RISK

Tha approach to energy risks has bean discussed In note 7.1.6 to the consolidated financial stalements.

27.7 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
A sensitivity analysis has been parformed in note 7.1.7 to the consolidated financial statlements.

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

28.1 BASIS OF FAIR VALUE

Fair value estimation

The different levels per the IFRS 13 fair value higrarchy have been-defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabllities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within-lavel 1 thal are observable for the asset o liabillty, sither directly (that is. as pricas)
ot indirectly (that is, derived from prices), :

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable.market data (that Is; uncbsarvabls inpits).

During ing year ended 28 Jjanuary 2019, there have been no tr,ans?ers between any levels of the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy and there
were o reclassifications of finantlal assets as a result of a change in the. puipose-or Use of those assets.
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JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28.2 FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of derivative financigl instruments Is as foliows:

719 018
Assets' Llablifles  Recognisedln.  Recognisod Assels Libiites  Recogrisedin  Recognised
Em Em Other in Jacome £m £m Oier in inconie
Comprotonsive Statament Compretiersive Statament
Falr vafue-of dertvativa financial Income £ Income £m
instrumeonts. £m £m
Notcurrent
Currency derivatives — cash low hedge 0.2 (1.4} - - - {2.9) {2.9) ~
Other derivatives - {0.8) - 0.8) - [{5)] - [RE)
02 24) 1.3) {0.8) - (4.0} {29) an
Curent
Cuniency derlyatives ~ cash flow hédge 6.4 (5.9} G5 - 1.8 (19.8) ‘8.3 -
Other derivatives 04 .8} - ".2) 37 - - ar
6.8 {1.5) 0.5 iz 52 (fa.8) 183 ar

The fair value of a defivative fihancial mstmment represents the difference between the value of the oulstanding conlracts' at their
contracted ratas and a valuation calculated using the forward rales of exchange and interést ratés préevailing at the Balance shest date.

The fair value of the derivative finaricial instrurnents held by the Company are classified as level 2 under the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy,

as alf significant inputs to the vatuation inodel used areé basad on oliservable miarket dala and-are:not traded i an active market,
-Specific valudtion Wchnigues used to value the finangial instrurents include gquoted marke_t prices. There have been no changes in

valugtion lechnigues from the prioryear.

28.3 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD AT AMORTISED

COST
The following table compares. the Company's Yiabilitles held at-amortisad cost, where there is.a difference belween camying value (CV) and
tait value (FV):
20ty 2m8
Em £
oV Fv cv Fv
Financial Habiitles
Listed bonds {864:5) {883:4) (B2:8) (e82.6)

Thé fair values: of the Company’s listed bonds: have been delermined by reference to market price quotations and are classified as level 1

under the (FRS 13 fair valua h:erarchy

For other fihandial assels and liabilities, there are no material differences betwesn carrying value and feir valus,

103



JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

29 ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Short-term trade payables are excluded from this analysis on'the basie that they are all non-interest bearing,

‘Fixed rate Floating raté Totsl
e £m En
Al Steving
At 28 Jenuary 2018 [784) (224.3) (1,002.7)
At 27 January 2018 {777.4) (100.1) 877.5)
2019 2018
Mutusity of Anancial Habilition tm. im
Repayable within.one yaar
Bank overdrafts - to:1)
Propaity finance [seses {o.1) 0.2)
Bongs {2749 -
Unamortisad bonds transacion cosls- 0.1 -
‘ (274.9) ©3)
Repaykble betwean one and iwo years
Property finance leases - @1)
Bonds: - 7500
“Uniiniirtised bond fransaclion costs - 0.4
- (274:7)
Repayable between two and five years
Property finance laases - {0.5)
" Bonds [125.9) -
_ Unamorlleed bond trahsaction costs 0.7 -
(124.3) (0.8)
Repayable in more than five years
Property financa leases 13.2) (12.7).
Bonds, {800.0). {600.0)
Unamortised biond tranaaciion coits 7 107
'(B03.86) (69210)
{1,002.7) {877.5)
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

30 RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS BEFORE PARTNERSHIP BONUS

2018 2018
£ Em
Profit before tax* (43.3) T34
Dividend income received 154 {29.5)
“Amorligation and write affs of intangible assets” 108.8 759
Depraciaiion” 172 1232
Share-of loss of joint-venivire (nel of tax) 0.7 i.0
Ned finance costs 66.2 705
Pattnership Bonus 20.5 Mz
Foir value ksssot on derivalive financial instryments 21 02
Loss/(profity on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangilie assats 34 ©0)
Ingrease in mventonss (26.4} @.0) '
Décreaselincraase) in receivablis 13 4.y
Docrense in payables’ 79:7) {31.0)
Increase in rotirsment bensfit obiigations 134 338
(Decrease)incroans in provisions' {39.8) 18.8
Cash goneratod from operstions before Perinership Bonus 1821 340.2

1 Rastaiéd, see npte 9.3, )
-2 inckides naf impaiiment charges. See note’ 17,
3. Indlictes net impeaiment cheipes. See note 13.
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31 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

31.1 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 26 -January 2019 conlracts had been enfered ino for future capital expenditure of £16.4m (2018: £14.9m) of which £18.1m (2018:
£14.4m) relates {o property, plant and équipment and'£1.3m (2018; £0,5m} relates to intangible assets.

31.2 LEASE GUARANTEES

Pravicusly, John Lewts plc-provided lease guarantees in favour of the Company's former ‘associate company, Coado Limited; in respect of
leased land and buildings., For 2018, the maximum liability due from tha Parinership as the gliaranfor was. £6.8m which would have
‘become payabie had Ocado Limited défaulted on rental payments. For 2019, this: guarantee is no longer pravided.

31.3 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The Company's operating leases relate to supermarkets, department stares, offices and distribution centres. L'eases may include break
clauses or options to renew . (opuons to-renew are not-included in the commilments table). The majority of our ledse payments are subjecl
to market review, usually every five| years, to reflect market rentals, but because of the uncertainty over the amount of any future changes,
such changes have not bean reflected in the table below, Some of our lease agreements include rental payments contingsnt on tumover or
economic Indices. These contingant rents are also excluded from the tabie below.

‘2019 2018

Land ans tand and

bisilfings buidings

Fisture aggregate minimum |sase payments under pon-cancellable operating leases, payabla: £m £m

Wiihin one year {68.7) (65.1)

Lates than one-yoer end less:ihan five years (263.9) (244.1)

_ Aterfive yeary {1335.9) {1,711.6)
2019 218

Land and Land-and

bulklings bulldings

Future aggragate minimum lesss payments undor non-canceflable operating teases, payable after five years: Em ‘B

Later than five years snd less (han 10. years {292.9) [289.7)

_ Laterthan 10 years arid [#ss.than 20 yaays (484.8) {485.5_}

Later than.20 years and ess ihan 40 vears. (366.8) {441.9)

Later than 40 years and less than BO years (i99.4) {2437

After 80 yaars (12.1) (250:5)

{1,336.8) (1.711.6)

For the year ending 25 January 2020, the Company will adopt the neiw aceounting standard for Jeases, IFRS 16. Under this slandard the
commitmatits under cparating leases refiected in the tables above (£1.7bn) plus the intercompany arangements recegnised s leases
under the new accounting standard IFRS. 16, will be récogniaed on the Company balancé sheot as lease lisbilties discounted ta present
value (£1:50n). See note 9.3,
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31.3 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES {CONTINUED) s

Total fture sub~jease payments receivable relating. to the above operating leases amounted to £1.5m (2018: £1.3m),

20.19 2018
Amounts recognised in-the Incosne statement £m m
Operatiig ieesa rontate?
~land and buildings (68.2). (66.6)
- plant and machinery - {0.)
Sub-lesse inocme:
~tand and bulldings o5 08

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As disclosed In nole 5.1 to’ the consolidaied financial stalements, the Company's investment in the pension scheme in-JLP Scottish
Parinership of £71.6m (2018; £80.8m). represents a plan asset for the Company accounts which is offset against the Group's abligation of
F468. 1 {2018: £731.3m). Tha retiremant benefit abiigation of the Cnmpany as at 26 January 2018 was £396.5m (2018: £650.5m), Note
6.1 of the consplidated financial statements details the financial assumptions ysed.

33 SHARE CAPITAL
219 2008
Agthorised ssued and Authorised lssued ang
fully pald fully pakd

Bhare capital £m Em £ £m
Equity.
Deferrad Oritfinary Shares
6,750,000 of £1 aach, 8.7 57 6.7 87

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
34.1 LOAN FROM JOHN LEWIS PARTNERSHIP PLC

The loan from John Lewis Parinershin plc-has been disclosed im note 23. The loan is nonHinterest bearing with no spéecific repayment
lerms,

34.2 TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER GROUP COMPANIES

During the year John Lewis plc entered. into transactions with other Group companies in. respec!. of supply -of goods for resale.and
assaclaled services totalling £11.6m (2018 €11 £m), pirchase of gocds for resale totalling £12.3m (2018, £54.5my), the supply of

“administrative and other shared services tolalling £146.5m {2018: £40.3m) and the hire of vehicles totalling £28,1m {2018; £27.0m),

In addition; John Lewis-plc setfied other ransaciions on biehalf of Group campanies for administrative convenience; such as payroll and
supplier setlement. Al such transactions were charged .at cost o the relevant Group company, it is not practical. to guantify these
fecharges.

A list o subsidiaries and refated undertakings within the Group is inchuded within noig’35. Loans lo joint venlures are gisciosad in note 15.

34.3 OTHER TRANSACTIONS
Key managenment compensation has baen disclosed in note 11,2,

During the-year the Company provided acminisirative suppart services to chaities ralaled o ihe Company. The estimated valua of these
support seivices is £84.000 (2018' £81.000). The Company also made donatiohs tutallmg £0.7m {2018: £0.6m) 1o the John Lewis
Foundation.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

JOHN LEWIS PLC.

35 SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED UNDERTAKINGS
The Company has a number of subsidiaries and relatad undertakings which contribute t6.the overall profitability of the Grotp.,

Subsidiaries and related undertakings as at 26 January 2019 were as follows:

.=
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The addriess of the sajistersd office Is Hill Houte, 1 Lithe New Stieri, London EC4A 3TR.
~John Lewis Parinership.Pensions Trust.and JLP Scotlagd Limited are the Limited Pariners. John Lewds plc i the Genarel Pastner. .
JLP Scottish Limited Perinership and John Lawis Properies plc are d\n Ganeral Pariners.

Name Principsl acthvity Country of Class of share Percéntage
incorporation shareholdings
Admiral Park Retal Management Limitad Propecty holding company Guattany Ovdinary 54%
Buy.Com Limiied Dormant England & Walas' Ordinary 100%
Garlisle Place Ventures Home improvement senvices England & Wales' Oydinary 100%
ClicKlink Loglatics Lim#ed Logistical services England & Wales® Ordinery 50%
Herbert Parkinson Limited" Manufacturing and making up England & Wales® Qrdinary took
JLE (fsuranta Licnited* Insurance Guamsey” Ordinary 100%
JLP Scoland Linvited Darmant Scotland® Ordinary 100%
JLP-Scottish Limitéd Partnercivp® ¢ Invastmant holding undertaking Scottand® Partnsrship irterest 100%
JLP Scotlish Partnership* # Investmen! holding undertaking Scotiand® Partnership intevest 100%
John Lewls Car Finance Limited- Car finance England & Wales' Ordinsary 100%
John Leiwis Defvary Limited (i liquidation) - England B Wales" "Ogdinary 106%
John Lewis Hong Kong Limited Sourcing company Hong Kéng" Ordinary 160%
Jolin Lewis Properties, plc” Propeny helding company England 8 Walas' ‘Ordinary 100%.
John Lewis PT Holdings Linited. Holding company England &Wales' Crdinary 100%
John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust Nonstrading England & Wales' Ordnary 100%
John Lewls internations] Limited® Intemationat opline retal England & Wales' Ordinary 100%
Jonetle Jewalidry Limited Dormant England & Wales' ‘Ordinary 100%
Jonefle {imited Dormant Englanc-& VWales' Crdinary- 100%
~ Park One Managemerit Limited Provision of mansgement services  Englend & Wales' Crdinary v
Péter Jones Limited Dormant Engiand & Wales' -Ovdinary 100%
Tha Odney Estale Limited Doment England & Wales' Ordiniary 100%
iWsitrose (Jersey) Limited™ Food retaling Jerney® Ordinary 100%
Wartrose {Guarnsey) Limitad® Food retaling Guomsey’ Crtinary 100%
Waitrosa Limited® Faod retading England & Waies' Ondinary 100%
. Principal subsidiary uridertakiig as at 28 Jafw!rr 2019,
' The.address of the registered office’is 171 Vicioria Street, London SWAE SN,
? The address of the registerad office is Maielia Court, Admiral Park. St Peter Port, Guarnkey GY1 3HB,
?  Thaaddgessof the repistered office is 44 Esplanade, S Helier Jarkey JE4 6WG.
*  The addrass of the regisiered office s Suite 3201, Jardine Hause. 1 Connaught Place, Cantral, Hong Kong.
?  The'address of the repistered office is John Léwis Aberdeen, Gaorge Strest, Aberdeen AB25' B,
®  Theaddmss of the registered office is 50 Leith Street, Edinburgh EH1 3SP:
¥ The-address-of the registered office Is St, Martins House La Bordage, S\ Peter Port, Gusmsey GYT 4AU,
¥ e -address of tha regisiered office s Cligper Loglstics Group, Gelderd Road, Lesds. Wast Yorkshire LS12 6LT.
]



JOHN LEWIS PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
35 SUBSIDIARIES AND. RELATED UNDERTAKINGS (CONTINUED)
The whole of the Ordinary Share capiat of the subsidiary- undertaknngs of John Lewis-plc is heki within the (roup. Excepl as noled -abaove,

all.of thesa subsidiary undertakings oparate whofly ar mainly in the United Kingdoarm.

Ultimate control rests with John: Lewis Partnership: Trust' Limited, which- holds the Deferred Ordinaty Shares issued by John Lewis
Partnership plc in trust for the. bénet.of employees. Both of these companies are registered in Engkand and Wales. Copias of thaseé
accounls May be obtained from the Company Secretary, John Lewis Partnership pic. 171 Victoria Street. London, SWHE SNN.

The Company is a General Parther of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, a qualifying limited parinership registered at John Lewis, 68 5t
James Centre, Edinburgh, EH1 35P. This is consolitated within Jotin Lewis pic:

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by regulation 7 of the Pannersmps (Accounts) Regulations 2008 and has
therefara not appended the accounts of JLP Soottish Parinarship and JLP Scatlish Limited Parinershlp to these accounts. Separate’
accounts forthesa partnerships are not required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies.
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JOHN LEWIS PL.C
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for the Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors are respongibie for praparing the Group and parent Company financial "statem‘ents in'accordance with applicable law
and regulations. '

Gompany lew requlres the Directors {o prepeaite Group end parent Company fipancial statemerits for each financial year, Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial siatements in accordance with Intematiorial Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs .28 adopted by tha EU) and applicable law and have elecled to prepare the parent
Company financial-statémenis on {he same basis.

Under company law the diteciors. mist not approve the financial. stalements unless they are satisfied that they give & true and fair
view of the.state of affaifs of the Group and parent Company -and of their profit or loss. for that period. In preparing each of the
Group and parant Comripany financial statements, the diraclors-are required to:

select suitable-accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that ara reasonable. relevant and reliable;

state whether they have besn prepared in accordence with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

assess §he Group and parent Company's ability to-continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters relsted
to going concem; and

*  use'the going concem basis of accounting uniess they eittier intend 1o liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to
cease operationg, or have no fealistic attemative biut to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate actourting records that are sufficient. fo show and explain the parent
oompany s transagtions and disclosa with reasonable accuracy at arty time the financial position of the parent. Company and enable
them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such iiternal control as
they determine is necessary t endbls the preparation of financial statements ﬂ\at are free from material misstatément, whether due
to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably- apen to- them To safeguard the assets of
the group and to pravent and detect fraud and other ifregularittes.

Under appiicable law and regulations, the directors are also respongible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directars’ Reporf, and
Corporate Governarks Statement that compiles with that law and those regutations.

The directdrs are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial staterients may differ from
legislation in-other jurfsdictions.

Responsihility statement of the Directors in respect of the Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowiedge:

+ the financiel statements, prepared in accoidance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view
of the aseels, Nabllities, financial position and profut or loss of the company and the underiakings included in the
consalidation taken as-a whole; and

+ the strategic. report Includes. & fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
iasuer and the undertakings-includeéd in the consolidation taken as a whols, together with a dascription of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face.

On'behalf of the Board

Sir Chartie Mayfield and Patrick Lewis CL\D\ "L\.L_/Vf %

‘Directors, Jehn Lewis plc

11 April 2019
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Independent
auditor’s report

to the members of John Lewis pic
1. Quropinien isunmodified

We have gudited the financial statements of John Lewis
Bl (“the Company™) for the year ended 26 Januaty 2019
whith com prise the consolidated Income statement,
consolidated statement of comprebensive income,
corisafidated balance slieet, consolidated staterment of
changes in equlity, consolidatad statement of cash
flows, company balance sheet, company statement-of
changes-in equity; comipany statement of cash flows
-and the related notés, including the sccounting policies
in note-i:

In pur opinion;

— ‘the financial statemints giva a true and fair view of
the state of the Partnership™'s-and of the parent
Company's-affairs a< st 26 Januafy 2019 and of the
Partnership’s profit for the year then ended:
thePartnership financial § tatements have heen
properly prepared inaccardance with.International
Financiat Reporting Standards as adopted by the'
Eurapean Union {IFRSs as udopted by the EU);

thie parignt Company financial statémenichave
bean properly prepared in sccordance with IFRSe

as adopted by the EU and as 3pplied in accordance
with the provisions ofthe

Gompienies Act 2006; aind

the finandial statements have baen preparedin
_accordarnice with the requirements.of the-
Companiles Aét 2006 and, .asregards. the

Partnetship financial statements, Article d of the 1AS
Regulation,

Basis for opinipn

We conducted our audit In accordance with
Internatianal Standards on Auditing {UK) [“ISAs (UK}*)
and applicable law.. Qur responsibilities are d'escn:hec(
below. We believe that tha audit evidence we have
obtalned is a sufficient and approprlate basis foraur
opinion, Ouf audit opinjon it consistent with our report
to the audit committes,

*.In thisreport we use. the term “i’armm’h:'é‘ to mearn the “Group®,.
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We ware first appointed as avditer by the Board on 8
Junie 2016. The igeriod of total uninterrupted engagement
Is:for the threa financial years ended 26.Japuary 2019. We
have fulfiled our ethical responsibilities undér, and we
remain independent.of the Partnership in accordance.
with, UK ‘ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standord as applied to publie interast entities. No non-

“audit'services prokiibited by that standard were provided,

Tverviow
Materlaiity: £13.5m (2018:£14.4m )
Partnershi .
ﬁ?:a::i: » 5% of thie 3-year average (2018: 5%) of
Statements as a  consolidated profit befpre tax,
’ Partnership Bonus and exceptional
whole : .
e items-
‘Coverage B5% {2018:97%).0f Partnership ‘
consofidated profit before tax,
Partnership Bonus and exceptional
ems
Key audit matters vs.2013
Recurring risks ‘Carrying amount of -
property, plant and
eqiipment[PPE)
Net defined benefit «<p
obligation
Long.leave provision - p
New: Falr value of free-
service warranty
Event driven New: Brexit

‘New: Golng concern




U U S S

1. Keyaudit matters: our of risks of materiaimisstatement.

Koy audit matters are those matters {hat, in pur profésiinal judgment,-were of- ‘miost signifizance in the audit of the financidl statenents
and include the most significant assessed risks of matarial misstatement {whether or not due to frauci] |dantlf|ed by us, including those
which had the-grestest effect on:the overdll audit stratepy; the aliocation of tesoiirces in the audit; and directing tha efforts of the,
engagement team. We summarise below the key audir matters, in arriving-at our auditopinion abovo, together with our key audit
procedures to addrass those matters and, as required for public’ Interest entitles; pur results from those procedures. . These matters were
addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and salely for the purpose of, our audit-of the financia
statements as.a whole, and in formingaur opinion thereun,and consequently areincidental to that opinion, dnd-we do not provide a

separate opinjon on these matters.

Qur response

The risk

The impact of Unprecadentad levels of uncertainty
uncs s dife o All augiits assess and chalicnge thé reasondblensss
the UK exiting the S . ., K -
European Unign on our of estimates, in particular as described in carrying

ak‘” ' Hnlo ; amount of PRE, nel defired benefit otifigation, long
Budlit. leave provision, and related disclosures and the
Refer to page 2 appropiriateness of the going concern basis of
{Principat Risks) preparation of the financis! statements below. All

of these depend on assessments of the future
-econamic environment and-the Partnarship’s
‘tutureprospects and performance.

i additict we are foguired tp consider the other
informatiori presented.in the Anpual Report and
Accounts inéluding the principal risks distlosure
and the viabillty statement and ta consider the
Girectors’ statement tat the Asin val Report and
financie! statements taken as @ whole isfalr,
balanced and understandable and provides the
JInfarmation necessary for shareholdors 1o assess
the Partnership’s position and performanca,
business modet and strategy.

Bréxit is ont of the most significant economic
avents for the UK and at the dute of Ihis report its:
effects are subject to unpriécedented lavels of
uncertainly of outcomes; with the 1ui! range of
‘passible effects ynknown.

We developed @ standardised firm-wide approach to the
consideration of the uncertainties arising from Brexit in plarining
and performing our audits, Qur procedures Included:

~— Our Brexit knowledge: We considered the Directory’
assessmiont of Broxii-related sources of risk for the
Partonership.and financial resoutces comred with our own
understanding of the risks. Wo ennsidered the Directos”
“plans to take action o mitigate the risks:

— Sdnsuiv‘tvanalysis whetraddressing carryingamount.of
FPE, net defined beaehit ohbgation and othét areas that
depend on fgrecasts, wemmpafed the Directors’ ana!ysfs to
our assessment of the full range.of reasonably passnhle
scenatias resulting from Brewit untertalnty-and, where
forecostcash llows arerequired to be discountéd, considered
adjustments ta discount cites for the level of femaining
uhcertajnty.

-=— Assexsing transparency: As well as assesiing individual
diselosures-as part of our firocedures on carrying amount
of FPE, net defined beneht obligation and other araas, we
consldered all of the Brexitrelated disclosures together,
Induding those in the Strategic report, com paring the.
oyerall picture pgainst our ungerstanding of the risks.

Qur results:

— Aireported undér carrying amount'of PPE, net defined
benefit obligation and long leave provision, we found the
resulting estimates and related disclosures and disclosures in-
refation to going concarn to be acceptable, However, no audit:
should be exgiected ta predict t& snknowable factors of alk
possibletuture Implications Far a company and this is
particularty the case in relation to Brext,.
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The sk

Our response

Carfying amount of
peoperty, plantand
equipment

£3,809.7 million {2017
£3,971.2 milllan)

Poge 51 faccounting polf'éy)
and page 51 {financial
disclasures)

Forecast-based valuation
Impairment considerations:

The Partnership has significant Property, Plant.and
Equipment (PPE) assets held on its consolidated
bajance sheet,

n particular, PPE in Waltrose & Partners s
significant. There s uncertainty associated with the
outcome of Brexit and the effects of continuing
market compitition that could have implications on.
the underlying trading of Waktrose & Partiers and
hernice impact the recoverable amount o1 its PPE. The
estimated recoverable amount is subjective due to
thie inherent uncertainty involved in farecasting and
dkscounting future cash flows. The-key assumptions
used il the value-ih-use (VIU) calculations for

-estimating the recoverable amount are expected

sales and costs in the short-tefin cash-flow forecasts;
the Jang-term {LT) growth rate.and the discotnt rate.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of dur
Tisk assessment for audit planning purposes, we

_déterminied that the VIU had a high degree of

estimation uncertainty, with a potqnﬂal range of
reasanable outcomes greater than aur matorjality
for the financial staternents as awhole, In
canducting our final audit work; we reassessed the

‘degree of estiniation uncertainty to be less than

that mateiiallty.

Subjective judgemient
Residual values of bulldings:

The judgement around determiination of residual
values drivies the depreciation charged to the
income statement, Irv particular, the determination
of such fesjdusl value requires spétific expertise-and
knowledge of the market. The Birectors engage
third party speclausts to review a simple of the
property partfolio ta assist them in determining the
valué of theresidual values. These viluations
inciude, in-most cases, lend and bulldlngs together
and therefore the Directors naed to exercise

Judgement.oyer the amount that is to be allocated

torthe buildings which, unlike land, are-deprediated,

Given the:magnitude of the PPE balance, movements

In these Judgements could-result In'a material
‘misstatemant ifthere were ta be a significant

decrease in the-value allocated to the property
portfolio as a whole. However, in conducting aut final
audit work, we reassessed the degree of estimation

ncertainty of réstdual valdes Lo'be isss than that

materiality over deprecistion expense in.any
particular. yeat.

Our procedures Included:

— Re-performance; We re-performed the calculations the
Directors.pérformed for determining the VIU of each cish
generating unit and compared data used nthe maodel
against Yourea informiation, when applicable.

— Oiusr-sector experience: We evaluated sssuivptions-used, in-
particular those relating to forecast révenue. growth and
profit argins for each Waitrose & Partriérs branch. We also
chaflenged the Directors as-to the achievability of their
forecasts and business plan, taking Inte account the histarical
accuracy bf previous foretasts and wider market factors
{suchas performanca of competitors),

— Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the Blrectors’
assumptions to extérnally derived data in redation to key
Inputs such as projected economic growth, comgetition,
costinflation and discount rates.

Sansitivity analysis: We perfarmied sensitlvity analysis ta
stress-test the assumptions noted above,

—_—

Dur proparty valuation axpertise: With the assistance of our
property valuation spedlalist, we reviewed the third party
valuation repors produced for a sample of the assets to
.e3tablish residual values, Our spe;ialist eritically assessed the
methodalogv and assumptions be?'llnd these valuations by
using their own expariise and market understanding.

Anesﬁing&lldﬂsuus:
We alsa assessed whether the Partnership's disciasures
about the sensitlvity-of the outcame of the |mpairment

assesyment to changés. In’ key assumptions reflected the risks
inherent in the carryingamount of PPE.

Our resdts:

'— \We found the resulting éstimate of therecoverable

amount of PPE in Waitrose & Partners and. the
Partnership’s assessment of résidual values of its buildings to
ba acceptable {2018 result: acceptable).
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T_in risk Our response
Net defined benefit Subjective valuation OuF procedures Induded;
obligation. Aslgnificant level of estimation Js reqiiredinofder  — Benchrivarking assurnptions: We used our actuaial
£468.1 million (2018: ta detemmine the vatuation of the gross iiability. spedialists to chatlenge the key-assumptions {in particutar,
£731.3 milllon) Smalt changes in the Key assumptions lin particular, discount rétes, inflation, mortality ratesand.salary
diszount rntes, inflatian, mortalily rates and salary- ‘Increases), This involved com paringthe assumptions to
Refer to page 67 Increases} an have a-matedial impsct on the gross avallable market data, our eipectation and.to pther similyy
{atcounting WW, and lnbility. UK pensfon schemes’ assumptions.
pages 67 to 77 (findncial  pye to the.volume of members both joining and — - Assessing base data: We have confirmed the data used in
disclosures) moving categories{i.c. between active, deferred ‘the current year valuation js consistent with that preparedaat -
and pensioner} errors in the membership the trienpial valuation as at 31 March 2016,
records copld result in a matefial misstatement ‘We used our actuarial speciallsts to thallenge the
if not complete and accuretely Included fn the methodology used to roli-forward-the resufts of the
calculation-uf the gross lakflity, trignnial valuation as at 31 March 2016,
in additioh, within the Partharship’s pension asset — Qurvaluation expertise; For hard-to-value glan assets, we
portfolic arg a number of assets whose valuation used olsr awn propesty valuation specialists. to assess the key
require sighificant Judgement s a’result of guoled [hputs aind assurivptions wsed by externol valuers by
prices bang-unavallable {level 3 assets). These- reference to our own market and industry benchmarks, For
holdings topether represented I private equity funds we ubiained divect confirmations apd
35.2 % {€1.3 billion) of the total pension sssets-held, atsessed histofical accuracy of valitatians.ta halp inform
The assel categorles within this where significant whether current valuations were-appropriate.
audit ¢fiort G judgement was focused were: — Methedology choice: We have assassed the pricihg modet
investment property, special pyrpose investment methodologies used with referente. to the Royal Institute of
vehiclesand private equity lhvestments. Chartered Surveyors for property and the intsrnational
The effect of-thise mauérs{sitiat, 95 part of our Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation guldance far
sk assessyaent, we determined that the private equity funds included In.plan assets.
valustlon of the gross defined. benefit obligation  _ scspssing disclosures: We also considered the adeguacy
and leva_l 3 pension assets has a high degree of 6f ihe Partership’s disclpsires b respect of the sensitivity
‘estimation uncertainty, with a potentlal range ot of the deficit Lo these assumptions.
-reasonahle  oulcomes greatee  tham  our o )
materialily for the financial statemenls as @ Our-resuits
whale, The financial statements (note — ‘We found the valuation of the net defined benebi
6.1.5] disclos e the sensitivity estimated by the tligatinn tg bi-3cceptable {2018 resulk: acceptable).
Partnership,
Long lea\(e ‘provision Sub_iecthe estimate Our procedures induded:
£141.8 million {Z018: The Parmership has-a long leave scheme, opentoall — Benchmarking assumptions: Weused our own actuarial
E13 9.6 milllion) gaitners, which provides up to si¥ months’ paid leave speclalists to consider' lhe key assumptions used. This involved
after 25 years' service, The basis of the calculation of com paring the assumptions to
Refer to poge 53 the liabdity Is based upoh & significant level of warfabie market data: and our expected range;
efer iy Sl ; - -
(ascousiting poficy] and :::L“;;‘:::S"T (:::::n?:l:tlhimdaulslcg‘u:l:g;: ::‘:f:‘ﬁ\" _ Sensiﬁvhtanalysis: we also performed sensitivity
poge 52 (fingncial “turivbver rates and salaryMicreases can have a analysis over thase assumptions.
disclasdres) materialimpact on the liability.

The effect of thise matiers Is that, as part of our risk
assessthent, we detarmingd that thevaluation of
the long leave Babliity has a high degree of
estimation uncertainty, with a potential range of
‘regsonahle outeoiries greater than our materality
for tha linanclal Statements a5 3 whaie, In
conducting our final-audit work, we.renssessed the
degiee af estimatlon uncertalnty to be lest.than that.
materlafity.

Out resolis

— Fram the evidence oblained, wie considerad the lovol of
pravisioning to.be acceptable I_Zﬂlﬁ result: icceptablel
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The risk

Ourrespansa

Falr value of free-

Subjéctive wstimate

Our procedures thcluded:

congiderad to be the area that hed the greatest
effect-on our overall parent company audir.

sardce warranty Following the adoption of IFRS 15, the timing of — Asgessing methodblogyand assumptions: Wo havo
£5 0.0million (2018; revenue recognition of frea service warranty in .considered the undertying. caleulations for the frgé- service
‘£65.8 millton] John Lewls & Partners, principelly for certain warfanty calculation, induding asséssing the uadeitying.
electrical products, hes changed because the free ~datafhistorical data used and com pering this to source
Refer to pages 35and S8 warranty is now consldered a separate documentation, the methodology and appropriateness of
{accounting policy) and performance obligation. Awnrdln;[v, the assumptions used in calculating the cost Lo repair for itens
poge 58 (financiol Parinership allocates a portion of the product’s full sald In-the period to 8 margin s applied. In particular, we.
disclosures) sale value (consideration received) to providing evalusted whether thie sodrce of the histerjcal data was,

) such warranty: This allocstion is based on the reasonable based on our understanding of the industry and
starid-along selling prices of the productand the business and performed trend analyses In reggect of
relative fair velue-of the warranty. The amount Wistorical- cost perunit.

:lqud to free warvanties i ttien recarded as — Sensitivity analysis:We have performedsensitivity

eferred Income on the balance sheet and released ) " L T .
to revencie over the period of the warranty. analysis an the assumptions made, including the product
) repair and replace frequency rates.
[ : dine ir val . . .

encond ree warronty, management uses.a cost. | 1MdeRehdestre-performance: We have re-performed the

plus-approach, which tom prises b5 valuation cajcutatioh using the underlying data inputs.

technique that reflects the amount that would be Our results.

required to replaca of repali the sefvice capacity i )

of the good sold. Therefore, a signficant level of ~ — We found the atfiounts aF revenue deferred-at 26

astimation is raquired For the assumptions.around’ January 2018 to beacceptable.

frequancy and value of the expected- future costs-

of setvicing the free watrantyand use of

appropriate historical data to form the

agsumptions,

Thé effect of these matters I8 that, s part of sur

risk assessment for audlt planning purposes, we

determined that the fair value of free-service

warranty has 2 high degrae of estimation

uncertalnty, with a patential range of reasonzble

outtomes greater than our materiality for the

financial statements as a whole. In conducting our

final audit work; we reassessed the degree.of

_estimation uncertainty to be less than that

materiality.
Parent comp any Low risk, hilgh value Our procedures included:
c:;g:‘:f“mm ,‘Ijhe carrying amount of the Company’sinvestment - Test of detflb: Com pan:ng_ the investment l:arrving values to
lvestients Insubsidiaries are valued at cost, less nno'wanc;es ‘the: net asséts of the investment to identify whglher the net
) AR ‘ for Impalrment. We do not consider-the valuation asset values.of the subsidlaries, baing an approximation of
£1,135.3milllon (20182 of thasa irivatfments to be ata high risk of their minimum recaverabie amount, were In‘excess of their
£1,400.6 miillon} significant misstatement, or to be subject to 8 carrying amount.
_ significant level of judgement. — Assessing subsldiary audits: Assessing the work
Aefer to page 57 However, due to-their materjafity In the context of perfarmed by the audit team on the subsidisres and
{financiot disciosures) the parent company finanzial statements, this is considering the results of the work an thosa subsidiarfes’

profit-and nat assets.
Our results.

-~ We found assessmentofthe carfying value of Investments 1o
be acceptable (2018 result: acceptable).
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The risk

Our responsa

-Goling concem

Refer ta page 23
{financial disclosuresf

Disclosute quality

The financial §tataments explaln how the
Board has farmed a Jutigement that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concetn basis
of préparation for the:Partnership and parent
company:

That Judgement ks based on an evaluation

of the inherent mks to the Partnership’s and
Company's busin del and how those risks
might affect the Partnership’s and
Company's financial resources or abillty to
¢eatiniue operations over 3 pericd of 3t jeast a
year from the date of approval of the {inancial
statements.

The.risks most ikely to adversely affect the
Partnership’s and Company's available finonciab

resources over. this peiisd were the impact of Braxit
on the Pantnership's and Company’s supply chain,

recrultment needs and cost base both relating 1o
forcign éxchange and impartlexpart tariffs,

The risk for aur audit was whether or not those
risks weresuch that thev amounted to a
matérial uncertainty that may have cast’
significant doubit about the ability fo-continue
as  pding concarn, Had they Bees such, then
that fact would have been required 10 have,

‘been disclosed,

Qui procedures irciuded:

e

Test ot details: Evatuated the procass aivd modgls the
Directors used in its agsessment, including use of the work
of speciafists. -

Test of detils! Evaluated whatt the iptions are’
realistic . and achlevable and consistant wim the external
andfer inlemal environmant and other matters identified in
the audie,

Sensitivity analysis: We considered sensitivities over the
levat of availatle fingncial resources indicated by the
Partnership's-financial forecasts Laking account of reasonably
possible (but nat unrealisiic adverse elfects \hat could arise
from thes risks individually and collectively;

Test of detatls: Evaluoted management's assessment of the
entity’s’comptiynce with dabt covenants.

Historieal comparisons: Conistdering the historical

securacy of the Partnership’s cash flow lorecasts and growth
rates by assessing the dccuracy of prevaus forecasis viade by
the Partaership against actual performance;

Our ewpertise: Consultation with-cur restructuring,

specialists to assess the Directors' going concérn

-assessment,

Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the
projdcted growthrates 10 eiierhally derived dpte;

‘Qur sectoraxpeartise: Challonged management’s plans for
future actions, and verified the roliability and ralevance of
data used including plans to refinance external debt against
ouc own knowiedge of the indusiry,

Assessing ansparency: Assessing the
reasonableness of the going congern disclosure.

Qur results’

— We lqund the going concern disclosure without any

‘material uncertainty to be aceeptable (2018 result:
acceplabje],

The seryice guarantee prowisior [s o longer required after adopting IERS 15 in 2019, We continue to perfarm procediras over the catryiig amount of
intangibles, customer refunds. provisiaa, and other provisions In respect af ngtional minim um wage. However; intangibles capitafized inthe prior year
ware braught into use this.year and the degres of estimatjon and Uncertafnty over these other pravisions has been igassested Lo be fess thap maferiality.
Therefore, we have not assessied these as the most significant risks in ol turrent-year-dudit ahd they are notséparately identified in.our report this year,
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2. Ourapplication of inateriality snd an ovarview of the scope Farinsrship profit vefors tax, Metoriohty
of our audit -Partnership Boaus sand exceptional

Materiality for the Partnership financlal statements as a whole £373.Bm
was sat 3t £13.5. mlliien, determihed with reference tc a
berchmark of Partnership profit beforé. tax,nomallsed to
:axdude Partnership Bonus and exceptional itein 3 (as disclosed
Innotes 2.6.2 and 2.3, respactively) by.averagitg ovar the last
three years dua 1o fluctuations in the busiess cycle, of E273.6
million, of which itreprasents 5.0% (2018: 5,0% of actual
Partnership profit before tax, Partnershlp Bonus and exceptional
items.,
Materiality for the parent company financial statements as-a
whole was set.at £12.0 million (2018: £14.0.milllan), determined
with reference to a benehmark of £2,943.8 milllon which is total
assets. Materiafl reft = ;

ty on this basis represents. 0.5% [2018; 03%}, Pty oataraity h repzad i the
We-agreed to report ko the puditand risk committee any dud: god Risk Commitres
cotrected or uncoifected identifled misstatements exceeding. Q01580 74
£0.7 million, In additon to otlier idehtified misstatements that
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.
The Partnership has 16 rgporﬁng components each
representing'a statutory entity based ifytha' UK or Chanhel
Islands.
Of tha Partnership’s 16 reportlag components, we subjected 5
{2018: 10) to fulf scope audits for Partnershin purposes. The
decrease.in componenty subject to full scope audlts s
attributable-to the statutory audits-of 5 subsidiaries being
subistantially completed at the same time.as the audit of the
Partnership in the previous year. Inadditlon, 1 component
{2018: 1) was sub]ected to specitied risk-focused audit
procedures. The Jatter was not individually financielly significant
ehough to. requirea full scope audit for Partnership purposes,
'_l;:ur did present specific individual risks that needed to be
addiessed avera flabllity: batance.

The comparients within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated opposite.

Rarga n‘ materait st d
M comporaris (3w 21538y
| 818 edm s itzont

Lo . . Fartnarship profit hafors tex, Partesrship
The remaining 1% of total Partnership revenue, 15%.of - Bf:zs and mbptl:r-l:l' Hems

Partnership profit before tax and 9% of total Partniership assets
ks represented by 10 reporting comgonents, none of which
Ihdlwdualrvrep:esented more thav 4%.of anv of total
Partnership revenue, Partnorship profit befare tax ortotal
Partnérship assets. For these residusl components, we'
performed analysls at an aggregated Partnership level tore-
examine our assessmentthatthera were na significant risks of
materisl misstatemant within these,

The Group team Instructed component-auditars as to the
signiﬁcant areasto be mvered induding the relevant risks
detailed above-and the information to bereported back.

The Group team approved the compenent materialies, which
ranged from £13.5 million to £3.0 million, having-regard to the
mix of size and risk profiie of the Partnership across the
components. The woik on 2 of the 6 dampanents (2018: 1.of the
10 components) was performed by component auditors and the:
rest, induding the audit of the parent company was peiformad
by the Group team: The-Group team performed procedures on
the items excluded from  normallsed Partnership prafit before.
tax, Pat tnevship Bonus and exceptional items,
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3. We have iothingto reportan going concarn

The Directors hava prepared the finandal statemenits on tha golag:
concern basts as thay do notintend to liquidate the Campany or
the Partnership ot to cease their operations, and asthey have
concluded that the Company’s and the Partnarshig's financial
position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that
thare are no materml uncertainties that could have castSignificant
doubt over. thalrahllitv 10 continue as a going concerh for atlepst a
year from the date of approval of the finandal statements (“the
golig concern period®).

Our responsibility-is ta coriclude &n the appropriatensssiof the
Dirgctors’ mﬂdushnstnd, had there been a material uncertainty
reiated to going concém, to make referénce fo that in this audit

retigit-However, a3 we cannot predict all future events or conditions

and as subsequent events may resudlin outcarmes that dre
inconsistent with Judgemants that were reasohable at the time they
were made, the absence of reference to a malerial uncertainty in

this abditor'sTeport s not a guarantee that the Parngrship angd rhe

Campany will continue in operation:

We idgntifiedf going concern as a key audit matter(see sectfan 2at
this report}). Based an the work dascribod in our risporise lnrl.hat key
autht mattar, we are required to report to you If we haveanvlhmg

‘matesisl to add-or draw attention tain ralation ta the Directors’
‘statement in'Néte 1 td the finandal statements on the use of tho:

going concern basis of actounting with no materlatuncertainties

-that may cast sighificant doubt over the Partnérshig and Company's
‘tise of that basis for a period of at least-twelve monthsframthe date

of approval of ths finandal statements.
We-have nothing to.report in these respects.:

4. Wehave ngthing to report on the other informationin the
.Annual Report

‘the Ditectors are responisible for the other information presénted in
thie.Annual Report together with the financial statements. Our:
epinion on the financial statements dossnot cover the other
informatlon and, accordingly, we do notexpress ‘an’ audit opinien or,
exceptas explicitly stated below, any form of assurance concluston
thereoh,

Dur respohsfbility is to read the-other information and, in doing so,-
constder whether, based on our financial statements auditwork,
the infocmation therein s materlally miastafed or inconsistent

with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based

salely on that work we havenot jdentified] mateclal
misstatements inthe other information.

Strateglc report and Directors’ report

Based-suie!y_on our.work an the other informalion:

— we have not identified materialmisstatements inthe
strategic report and the Difectors” teport;

— inguropihion the information given in thosc reports for the
financlal year is consistent with thie financiat statements;
and

— ih oAr opiniohthose reports have been prepared in
‘dccordapce with the Companies Acl 2006.

5. Wehave nothing t report on the other matiers on which
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wie are required ta repart by exception

Unider the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to vau

“if; in-our pplalon:

— adequate accounting records. have not bsen kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audithave not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

—-+."the parent Company financidhstatements.are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

— - cersain disciosures of Directars’ remuneration specified by
law are not made;or

— we have not received all the information and
‘explanaligns we require:for our. audit,

We: have nothirig to reportin these rospects.

Respective respossibitities
Directors’ respansibifities

Ag explained more Fufly In-their statement set out on page 140,
thie Ditgitors are respensibie for; the preparation of the financial
stataments including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
vigw; such intéfnal mmrdf asthey determine (s necessary to-
enable the preparation of finandial statements thatare free from
watiral misstatement, whether due 1o fraud aor efrar; assesting
the Partnership and parent company's abllity to continue as &
Eoing concein, disclosing, as-applicable, matters related to going
concery; and using the poing concern basis af accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Parinership pr the parent

_eOmEpany or to cgase opefations, o have rio-realistic alternative.

but to do sos
Audltor’s responsibitities

our shijeclves are 10 cbtain redsonable assurance dbout
whether the financial statements as'a whole are free from
matertal misstitemant, whethér due to fraud or othed’
irregularities (see below), or error, and1oissue our opinion in
an auditor’s repork. Reasonablé assurance is-8 high level of
assurance, but does not guarantea thit an gudit conductad in
ateordance with )SAs [UK] wilk always detect 3 materal
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements.can atise front
fraud, other irregulasities-of error and are considered material if;
individually or in aggregate, hay could reasonably be expettéd
to influence the etonvmic decisions of users taken on the basis
of the finaricial statements.

Afuller desc.ripmn of our mpanslbﬂines is prmdded ontha FRC's
websiteat Wi .

Jrregufarmes - abiflity to detect

We identified aceds of laws and regulatitng thist could
reéasopably| henxpecred to have a material effect an the finandlal
statermnénts from our, aeﬁefnl comimercial ahd sector experience
and thrgugh discussion with the Directors and other
management {as requlred by auiliting standards), and discussed
with the Directors.and ather management the policias and
procedures fegarding compliance with laws and regulations, We:

cofamuniiated ldentificd laws and regulations thrpughiout our

team and remained alert to any indications.of hon-compliance
throughout the audit; The patanilal effect of these laws and
regulntions on the finantial statements varies considerably.



Firstly, the Partnership.is subjact to laws and régulations that
directty sffect the finandal statements including financial
reporting iegislstion {ncluding refeted corripanies legislation} and
taxation legisiation apd we assessed the extant of compliance-

-with these laws and regutations as part of our pracedures.on the

related finandial staterment items-

‘secondly, the Partndrship is'subject to meany other laws and

reguiations where the consequences &f nonrompliance could
have.a materlal elfect:0n amaurirs or discldsures in the financial
statements, for Instance through the mpasition of fines or-
litigation of the fass of the Partnershii’s license to operate. -‘We
(dentifled the fallowing areas asthose most lkely tohave suchan
effect; health dnd safety, General Data Protéction Regulation
(GDPR); antl-bribery dnd employment lawsetopnising the niature
ofthePartnershlp s activitles, Auditing stasidards. it the
raquired audit procedires to identify noh-cnmp!ia nce with these,
faws and regulations to engisiry of the Directers and other
management and Inspectiari-of reguiatory and kegal
<oriespondence; if arly. Through these:procedures, we became
4ware of actuel or suspectad rion-<compliarice and considered the
efféct as.patt of our procedures ah.the relatad finandal

-statément item s. The identified actual or suspected non-

compilance was not sufficieritly significant to-our audit-to resuit in
our response-bieing Identified as a key andit matter,

Owing to the inherent Jimitations of an audlt, there is-an
unavaidable risk fhat we may not have detected some.material
misskatefrients in the finandial statements, éven théugh we have
praperly plenned and performed our audit in accordance with
suditing standards. For examiple, the further rem oved non-
eompliarica with laws and regulations-[iregularitiés} is from the
avents and transactions reflected in the financlal statements, the
less Fkely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing
standards would Identify it, in addition, as with any sudlt, there
rémained a higher risk of non-detection of irregulatities; as these
may Involve colluslon, fargery, intentional onilséions,
miscepresentations,; or-the:override of internal cantrols, We are
not resaonsible for preventing non-compllance snd canniot he

-expected to detect non-compliance with alt laws arid regulations.

The purpose of gur au dit work and ta whom we owe our
raspanifbilities

This.raport s made salely tothe Company's members,as a body.
‘inaccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16.ofthe

Companies Act 2006, Our.sudit work-has been undertaken so-
fthat we might State to the Company’s membiré thase mattars
wa-are required to state ta them In an auditar’s report and for.no
‘other purpose, T¢ the fullest extent. permittad by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibillty to anyone other than the
Company anit the Cympany's mambers,as a body, far-our audit
work, for this report, or for tha opinianswe have formed.,

nn ]

Michael Maloney (Senfor Sﬁtutorv Auditor}

for and on hehalf of KPMG LLP; Statutory Audltor
Chorteted Accountants

15 Canada Square, Landdn E14 561

131 .April 2019
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JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Strategic report for the year ended 26 January 2019

Review of performance

Key performance indicators:

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Profit for the year 3,7511 4,021.0
investment in JLP Scottish Partnership 99,825.1 99,350.1
Net assets/partners’ interests 99,823.7 99,850.2

The statement of comprehensive income on page 6 shows a profit for the year ended 28 January 2019 of
£3,751,100 (2018: £4,021,000) principally as a resuit of the distribution received from JLP Scottish
Partnership.

The balance sheet on page 6 shows the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership's financia! positicn at the year
end. The partners' funds as at 26 January 2019 were £99,823,700 (2018: £99,850,200).

No significant changes in the activities of the JLP Scoftish Limited Partnership are anticipated in the
forthcoming year.

Principal risks and uncertainties

JLP Scotiish Limited Partnership’s financial and operational issues are managed on a Partnership wide
basis by John Lewis Partnership plc (the Partnership) and so, where it is relevant, the Strategic report
and General partner's report provides information in respect of the Partnership. Details of principal risks
and uncertainties are included within pages 40 {o 42 of the Partnership’s Annual Report and Accounts.

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership's principal risks and uncertainties are in line with those of the
Partnership. However, the risk that is most relevant to the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership is external
environment, which for the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership is the risk that the market shifts against the
retail sector and current channe! format causes a fall in freehold estate valuation.

Details of key mitigations to these principal risks and uncertainties are presented in pages 40 and 42 of
the Partnership’s Annual Report and Accounts.

For and on behalf of the general partner

v v
S CHAmua Mrr\@

Director

John Lewis plc

11 April 2019




JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

General partner’s report for the year ended 26 January 2019

The general partner presents its report and the audited financial statements of JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership for the year to 26 January 2019.

Principal activity
The principal activity of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership is an investment hoiding partnership.

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership was registered (number SL0O07561) in Scotland as a limited
partnership by the Registrar of Companies in Scotland on 17 December 2009 and is a parinership
between John Lewis pic, JLP Scotland Limited and John Lewis Partnership Pensions Trust as trustee of
the John Lewis Partnership Trust for Pensions. The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership allocates and
distributes income to its pastners in accordance with an Amended and Restated Limited Parinership
Agreement dated 26 January 2010, which has been further revised on 27 January 2012, following
agreement of the partners.

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership has an interest in JLP Scottish Partnership, which is a property
holding partnership established pursuant to a Partnership Agreement with John Lewis Properties plc and
it receives income and capital distributions from JLP Scottish Partnership in accordance with that
agreement.

General partner and manager

John Lewis plc
171 Victoria Street
Londen

SW1E 5NN

Political donations
JLP Scotiish Limited Partnership made no politicaf donations during the year (2018: £nil).

Golng concern

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership is cumrently in a net assets position. The Directors of the general
partner are of the opinion that the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership has sufficient financing available at
the date of this repoit. The Directors of the general partner are satisfied with the JLP Scottish Limited
Partnership’s results and its financial position and will continue to pursue suitable business opportunities.

Auditor
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2008, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and
KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

Disclosure of information to the independent auditor

Each of the persons who are a Director of the general partner at:thes date of. approxah ofsthis®report
confirms that:

1. So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the JLP Scoftish
Limited Partnership's auditor is unaware; and

2, The Director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a Director in order to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of
that information.

For and on behalf of the general partner
SIR CHmmus MWIAELD

Director > )
John Lewis plc uﬁ\/\ JH LA

11 April 2019
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JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Statement of general partner’s responsibilities in respect of
the Strategic Report, the General Parther's Report and the
financial statements

The general partner is responsible for preparing the Strategic Repori, the General Partners’ Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and reguiations.

Company law requires the general partner to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting
standards and applicable law {UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the general partner must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the qualifying partnership and of the
profit or loss of the qualifying partnership for that petiod. In preparing these financial statements, the
general partner is required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ siate whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« assess the qualifying partnership’s ability fo continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concem; and

= use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying
partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic aliernative but to do so.

The general partner is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the gualifying partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the qualifying partnership and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necaessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the partnership and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

For and on behalf of the general partner

S chmrug MayPed

Director . \_"—)\
John Lewis plc (A~_/\ A.——\

11 April 2019
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JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Income statement
for the year ended 26 January 2019

2019 2018
Note £'000 £'000
Distribution received 3.754.1 4,024.0
2 Administrative expenses {3.0) {3.0)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 3,751.1 4,021.0
Balance sheet
as at 26 January 2019
2019 2018
Notes £'000 £'000
Non current assets
3 Investment in JLP Scottish Partnership 99,825.1 99,850.1
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27.0 255
270 25.5
Total assets 99,852.1 99,875.6
Current liabilities
Amounts due to John Lewis plc (25.4) (22.4)
4 QOther payables {3.0) (3.0)
Net current {liabilities)/assets (1.4) 01
Total assets less current liabilitles 99,823.7 99,850.2
Net assets 99,823.7 99,850.2
Represented by:
Partners' interests
5 Partners' capital and other interests 99,823.7 99, 880.2

The accompanying notes on pages 7 to 9 form part of these financial statements.

These financial statements on pages 6 to 9 were approved by the general partner on 11 April 2019 and
signed on its behalf by:

518 Chnnus C/(A,_A_ u(._\ { N

Director Mnayfirdesy
John Lewis plc

: Registered number;

5L007561




JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Notes

1 Accounting Policies

Baslis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, in
particular Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to qualifying partnerships.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a “qualifyving entity” as defined in the standard
which addresses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the individual financial
statements of qualifying entities that otherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership is a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 101.

The disclosure exemptions adopted by the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership in accordance with FRS 101
are as follows:

» The requirements of JAS 7 tc present on cash flow statements and related notes;

« The requirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, and the requirements of
IAS 24 to disclose related party transactions between two or more members of a group for wholly
owned subsidiaries; and

s The requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 to disclose information assessing the possible
impact of new issued standards but which are not yet affective.

The JLP Scoftish Limited Partnership is an intermediate parent entity and is exempt from preparing
consolidated financial statements as noted in section 400 of the Companies Act 2006.

Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis.

Distributions
Distributions received from JLP Scottish Parinership are credited to the statement of comprehensive
income when received.

Investments
Investments are carried at cost and consist of an interest in JLP Scottish Partnership.

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand in the balance sheet comprises cash at bank,

Taxation
No tax is recorded in the financial statements of the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership, as all tax liabilities
are liabilities of the partners and not the JLP Scottish Limited Partnership.
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JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

Notes (continued)

2 Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses comprise auditor remuneration of £3,030 (2018: £3,000).

The JLP Scottish Limited Partnership had no employees during the current year (2018; nil).

3 Investment in JLP Scottish Partnership

£'000
Cost
As at 28 January 2017 09,875.1
Decrease in investment {25.0)
As at 27 January 2018 99,850.1
Decrease in investment (25.0)
As at 26 January 2019 99,825.1

JLP Scottish Limited Partnership has a 69% (2018: 69%) investment in JLP Scottish Partnership, a
property holding partnership, as set out in the General partner's report on page 4. JLP Scottish Limited
Parinership jointly shares control over the operation and the management of JLP Scottish Partnership
with John Lewis Properties plc. As such, JL.LP Scottish Limited Partnership does not have control to direct
the relevant activities of JLP Scottish Partnership and therefore consolidated financial staternents are not
prepared.

JLP Scoftish Limited Partnership’s investment in JLP Scoftish Partnership has a carrying value of
£101,670,300 at 26 January 2019 (2018: £101,716,800) including capital (£99,825,100) and other
interests (£1,864,700). The value of the investment in JLP Scottish Partnership decreased during the year
following the return of capital from JLP Scofttish Partnership and the share of profits and income
distributions in accordance with the terms of the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement.

4 Other payables
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Accruals 3.0 3.0




JLP Scoftish Limited Partnership

Notes (continued)

5 Partners’ interests

Total Share of  Distribution Return Total
interests at income of capital interests at
27 January profit 26 January
2018 2019
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Limited partners:
JLP Scotland Limited 0.1 - - - 0.1
John Lewis Partnership 95,000.0 3.732.4 {3,733.9) - 94,998.5
Pensions Trust
General partner:
John Lewis ple 4,850.1 18.7 (18.7) (25.0) 4,8251
Total partners’ interests 99,850.2 3,751.4 (3,752.6) (25.0) 99,8237
Total Share of  Distribution Return Total
interests at income of capital  inlerests at
28 January profit 27 January
2017 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Limited partners:
JLP Scotland Limited 0.1 - - - 01
John Lewis Partnership 95,000.0 4,000.9 {4,000.9) ~ 95,000.0
Pensions Trust
General partner:
John Lewis plc 4,875.1 201 (20.1) (25.0) 4,850.1
Total partners’ interests 96,875.2 4,021.0 (4,021.0} (25.0) 99,850.2

The partners' interests include the initial capital contribution plus Share of income profit less
Distributicns and Return of capital since incorporation.

6 Ultimate parent company and controiling entity

John Lewis ple' is the parent company of the smallest group to consolidate the financial statements of
JLP Scottish Limited Partnership. John Lewis Partnership pic!, JLP Scottish Limited Partnership’s
ultimate parent company, is the parent company of the largest group to consolidate these financial
statements. Ultimate control rests with John Lewis Partnership Trust Limited!, which holds the
Deferred Ordinary Shares issued by John Lewis Parinership plc in Trust for the benefit of employees.
These companies are registered in England and Wales. JLP Scottish Limited Partnership is registered
in Scotland.

The consolidated financial statements of these groups and of these financial staternents are available

to the public and may be obfained from the Company Secretary, John Lewis Partnership, Partnership
House, Carlisle Place, London SW1P 1BX.

1The address of the registered office is 171 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5NN,




KPMG
Independent auditor’s report to the members of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership

We have audited the financial statements of JLP Scottish Limited Partnership ("the qualifying
partnership”) for the year ended 26 January 2019 which comprise the income statement, balance sheet
and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 26 January 2019 and
of its profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UKY} and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and are independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The general partners’ have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liguidate the group or the qualifying partnership or to cease their operations, and as they have
concluded that the group and the qualifying partnership's financial position means that this is realistic.
They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt
over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the
financial statements (“the going concem petiod”).

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
over the use of that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial
statements. In our evaluation of the general partners’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks fo the
qualifying partnership’s business model, including the impact of Brexit, and analysed how those risks
might affect the qualifying partnership’s financial resources or ability to continue operations aver the going
concemn period. We have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a guarantee that the group or
the qualifying partnership will continue in operation.

Other Matter - Impact of the uncertainty due to the UK exiting the European Union on our audit
The Risk

All audits assess and chailenge the reasonableness of estimates, in particular as described in camrying
amount of PPE and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of preparation of the financial
statements below. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the
Partnership’s future prospects and performance.

Brexit is one of the most significant economic events for the UK and at the date of this report its effects
are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty of outcomes, with the full range of possible effects
unknown.

Qur Response

We developed a standardised firm-wide approach to the consideration of the uncertainties arising from
Brexit in plarning and performing our audits. Our procedures included:

Our Brexit knowledge: We considered the general partners’ assessment of Brexit-related sources of risk
for the Partnership and financial resources compared with our own understanding of the risks. We
considered the general parthers’ plans to take action to mitigate the risks.
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Sensitivity analysis: When addressing carrying amount of PPE and other areas that depend on forecasts,
we compared the general partners’ analysis to our assessment of the full range of reasonably possible
scenarios resulting from Brexit uncertainty and, where forecast cash flows are required to be discounted,
considered adjustments to discount rates for the level of remaining uncertainty.

Assessing transparency: As well as assessing individual disclosures as part of our procedures on
carrying amount of PPE and other areas, we considered all of the Brexit related disclosures together,
including those in the strategic report, comparing the overall picture against our understanding of the
risks.

Our Resulls

As reported under camying amount of PPE we found the resulting estimates and related disclosures and
disclosures in relation to going concern to be acceptable. However, no audit should be expected to
predici unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a company and this is particularly the
case in relation to Brexit.

Strategic report and general parfners’ report

The general partner is responsible for the strategic report and the general partners’ report. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the general partners’ report and, in doing so, consider
whether, based on our fnancial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the generai partners’
report;

. in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the
financial statements; and

. in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 20086.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to you if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agraement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of members’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

General partners’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the general pariner is responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the qualifying partnership’'s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the qualifying
partnership or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's
report. Reasonable assurance is a high ievel of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detlect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
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they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilties is provided on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely te the qualifying parinership’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the qualifying partnership's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
respensibility to anyone other than the qualifying partnership and its members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

M N s
Michael Maloney (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
L.ondon
E14 5GL
11 April 2019
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